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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this report misleading.
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Corporate information of the Company as at the date of this

report is as follows:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)

Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer)
(Redesignated on 22 January 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

Dr. Yang Jingjing (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chu Kin Ming CPA, FCCA, ACIS, ACMA
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
Mr. Chu Kin Ming CPA, FCCA, ACIS, ACMA

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

Dr. Yang Jingjing (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Sun Fei
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Dr. Yang Jingjing (Appointed on 4 March 2022)
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Dr. Yang Jingjing (Chairman) (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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Corporate Information
/NGIE-§E!
PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank SinoPac

First Commercial Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre
Oleander Way

802 West Bay Road

P.O. Box 32052

Grand Cayman KY1-1208

Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 601, 6/F., Ovest
77 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
8296

WEBSITE

www.sinolifegroup.com
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Chairman’s Statement

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), with
the phased results achieved in the prevention and control of
coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") pandemic in Mainland China
and the rapid recovery of social and economic activities, China’s
Gross Domestics Product (“GDP") reached Renminbi (“RMB")
114.4 trillion in 2021, ranking the second largest economy in
the world. The real GDP growth rate was 8.1%, with a two-
year average growth of 5.1%, and the economic development
was in a leading position in the world. From the perspective of
economic structure, the performance of traditional industries such
as real estate and infrastructure was sluggish, the consumption
of residents has not yet fully recovered, and strategic emerging
industries such as new energy, intelligent manufacturing,
biomedicine and semiconductors have further emerged, becomes
a new engine for economic growth and promoting the high-
quality development of China’s economy. In November 2021, the
Chinese government established the Beijing Stock Exchange to
expand financing channels for small and medium-sized enterprises
and further promote the innovative development of emerging
industries.

The Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”), and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”). The Group has formed a
business pattern focusing on traditional funeral services and
emerging biotechnology. At present, the traditional funeral
services business accounts for a large proportion of the Group's
business and the revenue of the Group is mainly derived
from the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Therefore,
the operating results for the Year maintained a stable and
positive trend. The revenue for the Year was approximately
RMB72,864,000, as compared with RMB68,340,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Prior Year”), representing
a year-on-year increase of 6.6%.

Due to its special business nature of the funeral services, the
funeral services business of the Group was less affected by the
macro-economy, and the overall operation remained stable. In
the second quarter of 2021, due to the new round of outbreak
of the pandemic in Taiwan, the Taiwan government adopted
strict control measures, resulting in a decline in the revenue of
the funeral business in Taiwan. During the Year, revenue from
the Taiwan market was approximately RMB1,450,000 (Prior
Year: RMB2,148,000), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 32.5%. In the third quarter of 2021, Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the PRC (“Hong Kong"”) gradually
relaxed the measures for pandemic prevention and control,
and the funeral arrangement and related consultancy services
in Hong Kong resumed development and achieved a revenue
of approximately RMB892,000 (Prior year: RMB488,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 82.8%.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEMRE

Biotechnology is the Group’s long-term focus for its business
expansion. Currently, the Group has mainly made presence
in the subdivided fields such as stem cells and advanced
biotechnical equipment, and substantial progress has been
achieved. As the policy for the application of stem cell in
Mainland China has not been completely liberalized, the stem
cell business has not yet formed a large-scale development.
In order to avoid any adverse impact on the Group’s overall
operating results, the Group will reduce its investments in stem
cell business in the short term. With the gradual resumption of
economic activities in Europe, the Group's European suppliers
have accelerated the resumption of work and production, and
the Group will fully utilize its resource advantages and seize
the opportunities arising from the rapid development of the
electron microscope industry in Mainland China to further
expand the business scale of advanced biotechnical equipment.

In addition, in order to further promote the rapid development
of the biotechnology business, the Group established a
specialized and comprehensive investment platform in
December 2021, mainly focusing on investment in the
development direction of the biotechnology industry, including
but not limited to, biomedicine, medical healthcare, life science
instruments etc., as well as those emerging industries which
could create synergy effect.

Looking ahead, the world is undergoing major changes
unseen in a century. The COVID-19 pandemic is still evolving
and geopolitical risks are intensifying. China is also facing
the triple pressure of “shrinking demand, supply shock and
expected weakening”, and the uncertainty of economic
development is increasing. However, China’s strategic goal
of deepening innovation-driven development, supporting the
rapid development of emerging industries and promoting high-
quality economic development remain unchanged. Therefore,
the Group will continue to adhere to diversified development.
While consolidating the traditional funeral services business,
the Group will actively seize the strategic opportunities arising
from the booming development of the biotechnology industry,
allocate more resources to support the development of the
Group's biotechnology business, and will actively seek suitable
investment targets and opportunities from time to time to
diversify income sources and promote business development.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Chairman’s Statement

Finally, I would again like to acknowledge and thank the
health and emergency personnel who have worked so hard
to ensure the safety of the nation. | would also like to thank
the Group's entire management and staff for their efforts and
contributions. | would also like to take this opportunity to
express heartfelt thanks to the Company’s shareholders and
business partners for their longtime support and trust.

Chairman
Xu Jianchun

14 April 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E S W AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), despite
the growth of the mainland China’s economy continued to slow
down as the result of the coronavirus disease (“COVID-19")
pandemic, the revenue from the operation of Sino-Life Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") remained relatively
steady as compared with the corresponding year in 2020
(the “Prior Year”), while performance in Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the PRC (“Hong Kong"”) and Taiwan has
been sluggish. The operations in Socialist Republic of Vietnam
(“Vietnam”) also remained steady over the Year.

During the Year, the mainland Chinese government successfully
controlled the outbreak of that the COVID-19 pandemic.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China (the
“National Bureau of Statistics”), the preliminary results of the
Gross Domestics Product (“GDP") of the PRC for the 2021
was approximately RMB114,367 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 8.1% at comparable prices and a two-
year average growth rate of 5.1%. From the perspective of
economic structure, the performance of traditional industries
such as real estate and infrastructure was sluggish, the
consumption of residents has not yet fully recovered, and
strategic emerging industries such as new energy, intelligent
manufacturing, biomedicine and semiconductors have further
emerged, becoming a new engine for economic growth and
promoting the high-quality development of China’s economy.
In November 2021, the Chinese government established the
Beijing Stock Exchange to expand financing channels for
small and medium-sized enterprises and further promote the
innovative development of emerging industries.

The Group has formed a business pattern focusing on
traditional funeral services and emerging biotechnology. While
the traditional funeral services business currently accounts for
a large proportion of the Group’s business and the revenue
of the Group is mainly derived from the PRC market, the
biotechnology is the Group’s long-term focus for its business
expansion.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Currently, the Group has mainly made presence in the
subdivided fields such as stem cells and advanced biotechnical
equipment, and substantial progress has been achieved. As
the policy for application of stem cell in Mainland China has
not been completely liberalized, the stem cell business has not
yet formed a large-scale development. In order to avoid any
adverse impact of the Group's overall operating results, the
Group will reduce its investment in stem cell business in the
short term. With the gradual resumption of economic activities
in Europe, the Group’s European suppliers have accelerated
the resumption of work and production, and the Group will
fully utilize its resource advantages and seize the opportunities
arising from the rapid development of the electron microscope
industry in Mainland China to further expand the business scale
of advanced biotechnical equipment.

In addition, in order to further promote the rapid development
of the biotechnology business, the Group established a
specialized and comprehensive investment platform in
December 2021, mainly focusing on investment in the
development direction of the biotechnology industry, including
but not limited to, biomedicine, medical healthcare, life science
instruments etc., as well as those emerging industries which
could create synergy effect.

During the Year and the Prior Year, the amount and percentage
of the revenue derived from respective geographical segments
were as follow:
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2021 2020
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RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR BRLE ARETT ERzlsd
The PRC s 70,294 96.5 61,317 89.8
Taiwan =0 1,450 2.0 2,148 3.1
Hong Kong BE 892 1.2 4,440 6.5
Vietnam W 228 0.3 435 0.6
72,864 100.0 68,340 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The PRC

Business in the PRC continues to be the major source of
income of the operations of the Group during the Year.
The Group’s revenue that was derived from the PRC market
recorded on year-on-year increase of 14.6% to approximately
RMB70,294,000 to the Group for the Year from approximately
RMB61,317,000 of the Prior Year. In the PRC, the Group is
principally engaged in provision of funeral, cremation and
cemetery services in funeral parlours and funeral service centres
under the Group’s management in Chongging. The Group also
carried out the advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes
under an agency agreement in Guangzhou city, Guangdong
province.

The provision of funeral, cremation and cemetery services
business and advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes
contributed approximately RMB69,561,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB60,961,000) and RMB733,000 (The Prior Year:
RMB356,000), respectively, of the revenue in the PRC during
the Year.

In the PRC, there had been a phased suspension of group
gathering activities such as vigil and farewell in Chongging
due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in the first
quarter of 2020. Benefited from the recovery of the impact of
COVID-19 outbreak, the performance of the Group’s funeral
services in the PRC bounced back from COVID-19 outbreak
impact during the Year.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Taiwan and Hong Kong

In Taiwan and Hong Kong, the Group is principally engaged in
the sales of funeral services deeds, which was accounted for
by the Group as contract liabilities, and provision of funeral
arrangement services to the deed holders and non-funeral
services deed holders, which are accounted for by the Group
as revenue. The Group also carries out sales of biotechnical
machineries and other electronics products in Hong Kong
during the Year.

Revenue from the Taiwan market was approximately
RMB1,450,000 for the Year (The Prior Year: RMB2,148,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 32.5% from the Prior
Year. On the other hand, revenue from the Hong Kong market
was approximately RMB892,000 for the Year (The Prior Year:
RMB4,440,000), representing a decrease of approximately
79.9% from the Prior Year.

During the second quarter of 2021 in Taiwan, there was
another round of outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the
Taiwan government has adopted another round of control
measures including business shutdown, traffic control and
personnel isolation, causing a drop in revenue from Taiwan's
business.

On the other hand, as the foreign governments requested
biotechnical companies to give priority to the production
of epidemic prevention supplies in order to cope with the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group's sales of biotechnical
machinery business were deferred because overseas suppliers
of this business segment were unable to produce and deliver
on time and accept new orders. However, the revenue from
funeral arrangement and related consultancy services in Hong
Kong recorded an increase of approximately RMB404,000,
representing an year on year increase of approximately
82.8%, after the relaxation of the COVID-19 pandemic control
measures during the Year.

Vietnam

The Group's revenue from the sales of burial plots in Vietnam
was approximately RMB228,000 for the Year (The Prior Year:
RMB435,000), representing a decrease of approximately 47.6%
from the Prior Year. The decrease was mainly because the
government imposed a temporary lockdown in Vietnam as the
result of another round of outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E S W AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt ¥ ERR

Revenue W &=
2021 2020
“B--% ko5
Segment Segment
Segment operating Segment operating
operating profit/(loss) operating profit/(loss)
Revenue profit/(loss) margin Revenue profit/(loss) margin
PHEE HipEE HEbEe AHEE
k& @ (B8 &R (BR)% Wa R/ (BB) &R/ (BR)%
RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR®TR ARETT Bl AREFI ARETR Al
Funeral services BERE 72,131 3,0M 43% 63,686 9,598 15.1%
Stem cells and immunocytes and HEBREEER
other business REM RS 733 (520) (70.9)% 4,654 (366) (7.9%
72,864 2,551 3.5% 68,340 9,232 13.5%
The Group generated its revenue from its: AEBKRSZEEAE:

(i) funeral services, which manly involve provision of
funeral related service, including arrangement services
and related consultancy services, provision of funeral
and cremation services and sale of burial plots and
tombstones;

(i) provision of advisory service on stem cells and
immunocytes; and

(ili)  sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB72,864,000 (The Prior Year: RMB68,340,000), representing
an increase of approximately 6.6% as compared with the
Prior Year. The increase was mainly contributed by the funeral
services business in the PRC as the business in the PRC
bounced back from COVID-19 outbreak impact during the
Year.
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Cost of sales

For the Group's funeral services, the cost of sales primarily
consists of costs directly attributable to the provision of its
services, which mainly include: (i) direct labour and staff cost
for the funeral services provided by individuals during the
funeral ceremony held in a funeral parlour or a funeral service
centre managed by the Group; (ii) subcontracting charges
for services provided by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii)
commission expenses from the recognition of commission paid
to sales agents for funeral services deeds at the point when
the services of the funeral services deeds are provided; (iv)
the management fee and operating lease charges for hire of
funeral parlours and funeral service centres; and (v) materials
used for funeral ceremonies and cremation services such as
fresh flowers, fuel for the cremation furnace and cost of the
goods sold in the funeral parlour and funeral service centres
under the Group’s management in the PRC.

On the other hand, the Group’s business in provision of
advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes and sales of
biotechnical machineries and other electronic products, the cost
of sales primarily consists of the costs of provision of advisory
services on stem cells and immunocytes and biotechnical
machineries and other electronic products.

Cost of sales for the Year was approximately RMB34,887,000
(The Prior Year: RMB39,173,000), decreased by approximately
10.9% as compared with the Prior Year. The decrease in cost
of sales for the Year was mainly contributed by the decrease in
the sales volume of the sales of biotechnology machineries and
other electronic products business in Hong Kong.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the Year was approximately RMB37,977,000
(The Prior Year: RMB29,167,000), and representing a year
on year increase of 30.2% and the gross profit margin was
approximately 52.1% (The Prior Year: 42.7%). The increase in
gross profit was mainly contributed by the funeral services in
the PRC. The increase in the gross profit margin was mainly
because of decrease in sales volume of the sales of biotechnical
machineries and other electronic products business, which has
lower gross profit margin and the increase in the sales volume
of the funeral services business, which has higher gross profit
margin.
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Other income and other net (loss)/gain

Other loss, which was approximately RMB10,771,000
during the Year, against the other gain of approximately
RMB2,314,000 for the Prior Year. Other loss for the Year
was mainly contributed by the written off of prepayment of
approximately RMB12,013,000, while other gain for the Prior
Year was mainly contributed by reversal of impairment losses
on prepayment of approximately RMB784,000, government
grant of approximately RMB712,000 and written back of
provision for cost of service of approximately RMB399,000.

During the Year, one of the agents, which was incorporated
in Taiwan with limited liability, was dissolved. The Company
considered that the Group is no longer able to request future
services from this agent, and the chance of recovering the
prepayments made to this agent is remote as advised by the
Group's Taiwan legal adviser. Thus, the Group has written off
the relevant amount of prepayments with this agent in full
under the funeral services segment, and recognised a loss on
written off of prepayment of approximately RMB12,013,000
(2020: Nil) during the Year.

Selling and administrative expenses

Compared with the Prior Year, selling expenses for the
Year decreased by approximately 24.9% to approximately
RMB2,385,000 as the result of the reduction of advertising
activities during the Year. Administrative expenses, which
accounted for approximately 48.6% (The Prior Year: 36.5%) of
revenue, increased by approximately 42.2% to approximately
RMB35,432,000 (The Prior Year: RMB24,922,000) due to the
general increase in the salary level across different geographical
segments during the Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group manly consisted of the interest
expenses on the bank borrowings and the interest expenses on
the lease liabilities under HKFRS 16. The finance costs remained
relatively stable at approximately RMB2,182,000, as compared
to that of the Prior Year of approximately RMB2,521,000.
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Income tax expense

Income tax expense was mainly incurred by operations in
the PRC, which was approximately RMB2,902,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB3,421,000) for the Year, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB519,000 or approximately 15.2%
as compared with the Prior Year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to decrease in withholding tax of RMB1,538,000
arising from the dividend received from the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC, netted by the increase in PRC Enterprise
Income Tax of RMB1,005,000 as the result of increase in
taxable profit from the funeral services segment.

Loss for the Year attributable to the owners of the
Company

As the result of the cumulative effect from the above-
mentioned factors, the loss attributable to the owners of the
Company for the Year was approximately RMB9,872,000,
as compared with that of approximately RMB2,974,000 for
the Prior Year. Loss per share for the Year was approximately
RMB1.33 cents (The Prior Year: RMB0.40 cents).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB117,557,000 (2020: RMB123,674,000),
while current and non-current bank borrowings were
approximately RMB1,192,000 and approximately
RMB4,812,000 respectively (2020: RMB1,138,000 and
RMB5,826,000 respectively). All bank loans were denominated
in New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD"), at prevailing market interest
rate.

During the Year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes. It is the Group’s policy
to adopt a prudent financial management strategy and
maintain a suitable level of liquidity facilities to meet operation
requirements and acquisition opportunities. As at 31 December
2021, the gearing ratio representing the ratio of total
borrowing to the total assets of the Group was approximately
2.3% (2020: 2.5%).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitment for the
capital injections in associates, a joint venture and construction
in progress, in aggregate, amounted to RMB18,428,000
(2020: capital injections in associates and a joint venture of
RMB15,200,000).
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
capital commitments, material contracts, contingent liabilities
or significant investment plans.

Since January 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
has impacted on the global business environment. Given the
ongoing and dynamic nature of the circumstances surrounding
COVID-19 pandemic, it is difficult to predict how significant the
impact of this coronavirus outbreak, including any responses to
it, will be on the global economy, the Group’s customers and
businesses or for how long disruptions are likely to continue.
Up to the date of this report, COVID-19 pandemic has not
caused material financial difficulties to the Group.

The Group remained in a healthy and sound liquidity position
as at 31 December 2021. Depending on the development and
spread of COVID-19 pandemic, subsequent to the date of this
report, further changes in economic conditions for the Group
arising thereof may have impact on the financial results for
the year ending 31 December 2022 of the Group, the extent
of which could not be estimated as at the date of this report.
The Group will keep continuous attention on the situation of
COVID-19 pandemic and react actively to its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s operations are geographically based in the PRC,
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in RMB, except for certain incomes and expenses
which are denominated in United States Dollars (“USD"), NTD,
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") and Vietnamese Dong (“VTD").

It is possible that the value of RMB may fluctuate against that
of USD, NTD, HKD and VTD. The Group's operating results and
financial condition may be affected by changes in the exchange
rates of RMB against USD, NTD, HKD and VTD in which the
Group’s revenue and expenses are denominated.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
borrowings, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any material interest
and exchange risks.
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SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF INVESTMENTS

On 13 September 2021, Zhongke Xunda Biotechnology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* (/R ®&E&1E A W R ORI
BBR2AF]) (“Zhongke Xunda”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase
agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Nanyue Crown Block Bio Intelligent Equipment Investment
Co., Ltd* (RIITERRELENEREBEREARRA)
(“Nanyue CB") to increase the registered capital of Zhongke
Zhenhui (Guangdong) Medical Technology Company Limited*
(FRZFZ(BER)BERFER QA (“Zhongke Zhenhui”)
from RMB10,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 on a pro rata
basis. Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, Zhongke
Xunda and Nanyue CB agreed to contribute, by way of cash,
RMB35,700,000 and RMB34,300,000 into the registered capital
of Zhongke Zhenhui, respectively.

On 13 September 2021, Zhongke Zhenhui entered into a
joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Huaxin Times Investment Co., Ltd.* GRIITTEEHRIZES
FRA®]) ("JV Partner”) pursuant to which the parties thereto
agreed to jointly establish a limited liability company (the “JV
Company”) in the PRC which will be principally engaged in
investment activities and corporate management consultation.
The registered capital of the JV Company shall be amounted to
RMB70,000,000, among which, Zhongke Zhenhui and the JV
Partner shall contribute, by way of cash, as to RMB40,000,000
and RMB30,000,000, respectively, representing approximately
57.14% and 42.86% equity interest in the JV Company,
respectively.

Zhongke Zhenhui is planned to be a comprehensive investment
platform of the Group and will actively look for suitable
investments and/or business opportunities to diversify the
business of Group with an objective to broaden the Group’s
source of income and enhance the long-term growth potential
of the Group.

il
K W R B4

R-ZZE-—FAA+=H AREEEE2E
MEBARFRRMEEYRE CFIDABERA
A ([PRIFEDERYTEBRAREEDS
ERBIREARAG ([MHKRE])ETLE
B ([EERZE]) BPRZEE(ER)
EEREARAR ([FRIFE]) 2 ME
KB AR ¥10,000,0007T 4% b Il 1 i &= A
R #80,000,0007T » R 1 & # 3% - P BH&
ERmBRERENR S A NS 5[+ E
ZFEFMEARTE ARK35,700,0005T
& AR ¥34,300,0007T °

RZEBE-—FNAA+=ZH FREZERF
NHECRHRREEERAA ([EEEH])
FIueZEwmE ([6E8mE]) B 574
EFTRERTEERKIETERERE
EBRCEEEFANERAA (44
DA - BERBZHMEARBAEARE
70,000,000 - FRIHEERE L BT
D RIAR & F A HEAR40,000,0007T
& AR #30,000,0007T ' 7 Bl{E & &2 AR
#4957.14% K 42.86% °

PRIZRZHINAAREZRARETY S
W HERYESENRE R LEE - AE
AEEZEBZ BERREARE 2
ARIRA IR AR E R ERNE

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis

B E S W AT

The increased registered capital of Zhongke Zhenhui, together
with the further investment from Nanyue CB, can provide
sufficient funding for Zhongke Zhenhui to grasp the investment
opportunities that become available from time to time, which
in turn is expected to bring in investment income to the
Group. The formation of the JV Company enables the Group
to introduce the JV Partner, being a company that is principally
engaged in venture capital and investment consultation
which focuses on investment in emerging industries, and has
a professional investment team with extensive investment
experience, will benefit the Group in obtaining strategic
support in the long run and promote the sustainability and
stability for the Group’s business development, whereas
strengthening the competitive edges of the Group. The
formation of the JV Company also allows the Company to
further expand the scale of investment, and thus, increase the
investment income of the Group as well as the return to the
shareholders of the Company.

For details of the Capital Increase Agreement and the JV
Agreement, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 13 September 2021, 26 October 2021 and 22
November 2021, and the circular of the Company dated 29
October 2021.

THE NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately
171 employees (The Prior Year: 179 employees). The Group
determines staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing
market salary scales, individual qualifications and performance.
Remuneration packages including performance bonuses and
entitlements to share options are reviewed on regular basis.
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CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s
bank borrowings was approximately RMB23,552,000 (2020:
RMB20,394,000).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB1,303,000 (The Prior Year: RMB3,713,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitment for the
capital injections in associates, a joint venture and construction
in progress, in aggregate, amounted to RMB18,428,000
(2020: capital injections in associates and a joint venture of
RMB15,200,000).

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Save as disclosed above and in note 37 to these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no other material capital
commitments, material contracts, contingent liabilities or
significant investment plans.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties including business risks and operational
risks.
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The key business and operations risk exposure by the Group are
summarised as follows:

(i)  Slowing down of the economy and customer spending;
(i)  Deterioration of market competition;

(iii)  Increasing life expectancy and decline in the number of
deceased persons;

(iv)  Non-compliance with any relevant rules and regulations
in the PRC by the owners of funeral parlour and funeral
service centres in the PRC; and

(v)  Reliance on qualified and skilled employees as the
business operations of the Group are service-oriented.

PROSPECTS

Since January 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
has continued to adversely affect the global economic
environment. Given the ongoing and dynamic nature of the
circumstances surrounding COVID-19 pandemic, it is difficult
to predict how significant the impact of this coronavirus
outbreak, including any responses to it, will be on the global
economy, the Group’s customers and businesses or for how
long disruptions are likely to continue. In light of the economic
environment, the Company continues to closely monitor
developments of the pandemic. The longer-term impacts of
the restrictions will depend on future developments, which are
highly uncertain, constantly evolving and difficult to predict.
These impacts may differ in magnitude depending on a number
of scenarios, which we continue to monitor and take into
consideration in our decision making as we continue to assess
medium to long-term impacts.
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In 2021, the prevention and control of the COVID-19 pandemic
in Mainland China has achieved phased results, and social
and economic activities have recovered rapidly. At the same
time, it is also under the triple pressure of “shrinking demand,
supply shock, and expected weakening”, and the uncertainty
of economic development has increased. However, China’s
strategic goals of deepening innovation-driven development,
supporting the rapid development of emerging industries
and promoting high-quality economic development remain
unchanged. Strategic emerging industries which focus on new
energy, new materials, Internet of Things and biotechnology
will usher in vigorous development.

The Group has formed a business system focusing on
traditional funeral services and emerging biotechnology. Due to
the Groups business nature of funeral services, the COVID-19
pandemic has limited adverse effect on the provision of funeral
services, and cremation and cemetery services. The Group
recorded positive year-on-year growth in the PRC. On the other
hand, the Group has made a presence in the biotechnology
business since early 2019, which prioritising in pilot stem cells,
advanced biotechnical equipment and other related businesses,
and made a substantial progress.

In order to further promote the development of the
biotechnology business, the Group positions Zhongke Zhenhui
as a specialized and comprehensive investment platform,
focusing on investment in the development direction of
biotechnology, including but not limited to, biomedicine,
medical healthcare, life science instruments etc., as well as
those emerging industries which could create synergy effect.
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In September 2021, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, Zhongke Xunda entered into the Capital
Increase Agreement with Nanyue CB to increase the registered
capital of Zhongke Zhenhui from RMB10,000,000 to
RMB80,000,000 on a pro rata basis. At the same time, Zhongke
Zhenhui entered into the JV Agreement with the JV Partner,
pursuant to which both parties agreed to jointly establish the
JV Company with registered capital of RMB70,000,000 in the
PRC which will be principally engaged in investment activities.

While increasing the registered capital of Zhongke Zhenhui,
together with the further investment from Nanyue CB, it can
provide sufficient funds for Zhongke Zhenhui to grasp the
investment opportunities that become available from time
to time, which in turn is expected to bring in investment
income to the Group and facilitate its business development.
Further formation of the JV Company and introduction of
the JV Partner, being a company that is principally engaged
in venture capital and investment consultation which focuses
on investment in emerging industries, and has a professional
investment team with extensive investment experience,
will provide the Group with long-term strategic support to
accelerate the Group’s business development, and at the
same time help expand the Group's investment scale, increase
the Group's investment income as well as the return to the
shareholders of the Company.

Up to the date of this report, COVID-19 pandemic has not
caused material financial difficulties to the Group. The Group
will keep continuous attention on the situation of COVID-19
pandemic and react actively to its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Looking forward, the Board remains cautiously optimistic about
the prospects of our core businesses, including funeral services
business, stem cell service business and sales of biotechnical
machineries business. The Group will adopt a prudent and
diversified business strategy to ensure sustainable business
development in 2022.

While consolidating the traditional funeral services, the Group
will actively seize the significant opportunities arising from the
booming development of the emerging biotechnology industry,
and allocate more resources to support the development of the
Group's biotechnology business. Through commencing equity
and securities investment business, which is centered on the
development direction of the biotechnology industry, and will
actively seek suitable investment goals and opportunities from
time to time to expand the investment scale of the Group and
maximize the investment income of the Group and the return
to shareholders of the Company.

From operational management perspective, the Group will
formulate a combination of various incentives to attract and
retain cutting-edge talents, management talents and relevant
persons who have contributed to the development of the
Group, so as to improve the current operating conditions
of the Group, optimize the business structure, enhance
profitability, and promote the long-term sustainable and high-
quality development of the Group’s business. Nonetheless, the
Group will pay continuous attention on the situation of the
COVID-19 pandemic and react actively to its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

#&L:

The corporate governance practices of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) are based on the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the board
(the "Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company,
the Company has complied with the Code for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the "Year”), with the exception for the
following deviation:

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Certain
Directors, for the time when the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 4 June 2021 ("2021 AGM") and
one of the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
(the "2022 EGM") held on 22 November 2022, had other
business engagements and thus, were not able to attend the
2021 AGM and the said EGM. In this regard, the compliance
officer (the “"Compliance Officer”) and company secretary
(the "Company Secretary”) of the Company had reminded
the relevant Directors as well as other current independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Director to attend
general meetings of the Company in future for compliance of
code provision A.6.7 as set out in the Code.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of its business and to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure they comply with the
statutory requirements and the Code and align with the latest
developments.
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Corporate Governance Report

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL
REPORTING PROVISIONS OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Due to the travel restriction in force in Taiwan and Republic of
Vietnam (“Vietnam”) to combat the outbreak of coronavirus
disease (“COVID-19") pandemic, the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 has been affected. The Company was unable to publish
and despatch the audited annual results for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “2020 Annual Results”) and the
related annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “2020 Annual Report”) on or before 31 March 2021 as
required by the GEM Listing Rules. Such delay has constituted
non-compliance with Rules 18.03 and 18.49 of the GEM Listing
Rules. However, in accordance with the FURTHER GUIDANCE
ON THE JOINT STATEMENT IN RELATION TO RESULTS
ANNOUNCEMENTS IN LIGHT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
released on 16 March 2020 (“Further Guidance”) by The
Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange, an
issuer may defer the publication of the annual report initially
for up to 60 days from the date of the Further Guidance if,
among other things, on or before 15 May 2021. The Company
has published its preliminary 2020 Annual Results without its
auditors’ agreement pursuant to the Further Guidance on 31
March 2021. The supplemental announcements on the 2020
Annual Results have been published on 16 April 2021 and the
2020 Annual Report has been published and delivered on 30
April 2021.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A)

Board Composition
For the Year and until the date of this report, the Board
comprises members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)

Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer)
(Redesignated on 22 January 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei
Dr. Yang Jingjing
(Appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun
(Resigned on 4 March 2022)

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”, and further elaborate
below). The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board's
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. There
were changes in members of the Board during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report as below:

- Dr. XU Qiang has been redesignated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director
with effect from 22 January 2021.
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- Dr. Yang Jingjing was appointed as an independent

non-executive Director, the chairman and member
of nomination committee and member of each of
audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company on 4 March 2022.

- Mr. Wang Jun resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman and member of
nomination committee and member of each of
audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company on 4 March 2022.

The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among the members of the Board, if any, are
set out in the “Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management” on pages from 48 to 51 of this
annual report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing
and approving the consolidated financial statements of
the Company. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”), for the manner
in which the affairs of the Group are managed and
operated. As and when necessary, the Directors can
access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group's
expense to ensure that the Board’s procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers
delegated to the management for the day-to-day
management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management should report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management
to discharge its duties and responsibilities in all
circumstances. The Board will review those arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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The independent non-executive Directors have brought
in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and
serving on various Board committees, all independent
non-executive Directors will make various contributions
to the Company.

The Board normally should schedule four meetings a year
at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required
to discuss the overall business, development strategy,
operations and financial reporting of the Company.
For the Year, the Board held 7 meetings. The Directors
can attend meetings in person or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (the "Articles of
Association”). The Directors will receive agenda and
details of items for decision in advance of each board
meeting. The following table shows the attendance of
individual Directors at the Board meetings and general
meetings held during the Year:
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* Dr. Xu has been redesignated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director on 22 January 2021.

During the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
held a closed-session where issues were discussed in the
absence of the executive Directors and the management.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive
officer (the "CEO(s)”) of the Company should be segregated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEOs
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The positions of Chairman and CEOs of the Company for the
Year are held separately by Mr. Xu Jianchun as Chairman,
and Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai as CEO and Dr. Xu Qiang as CEO. The
Chairman is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and
the management of the operations of the Board, while the
CEOs take the lead in the Group’s operations and business
development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and CEOs of the Company which
provides a balance of power and authority.

Dr. Xu Qiang was appointed as the CEO of the Company on 22
January 2021.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board complies at all times with
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive Directors
presenting at least one-third of the Board with at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent for the
Year.
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DIRECTORS' TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, all Directors
have confirmed that they have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to roles,
functions and duties of a director of a listed company. All
newly appointed Directors before their appointment will be
given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

o Audit Committee

o Remuneration Committee

° Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms

of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company's
website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the Year, 6 meetings were held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman) 6/6
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 6/6
Mr. Wang Jun

(Resigned on 4 March 2022) 4/6
Dr. Yang Jingjing

(Appointed on 4 March 2022) N/A

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor of the Company (the “External
Auditor”);

ii. reviewing and monitoring the External Auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
accounting standard,;

iii.  monitoring the integrity of the Group's
consolidated financial statements, annual reports
and accounts, half-yearly reports and quarterly
reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the External Auditor;

V. overviewing the Group's financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual report
before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee
focused not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing
Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the
Group's quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual
report. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, considered the re-election of External Auditor,
discussed with the External Auditor about the audit plan
and reviewed the continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

B) Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the
relevant provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on both the GEM
website and the Company’s website. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the operation model where it
performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee

For the Year, 1 meeting was held. The following table shows
the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the Year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman) 11
Mr. Sun Fei 11
Mr. Wang Jun

(Resigned on 4 March 2022) 11
Dr. Yang Jingjing

(Appointed on 4 March 2022) N/A
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Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management;

determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management;

reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration package of the Board members and the
senior management of the Company. No Director was involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Remuneration of Senior Management by Band
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 the Code, details of
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the Year were as follows:

REEEINESNEEEEHMH
$E<$J%Z¢EJJ%B.1.51|*v,E'ilJﬂ*$< = AR
EEEXNERAFTFENTE X & MF
SIREEH N T

Number of
employee(s)
EEEHB
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to £ %£1,000,0007% 7T 0
approximately RMB829,601 (*ﬁ“‘ﬁMw\Eng 6017C
(2020: RMB889,162)) —E-FF: AR¥S89,1627T) )
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 7t £2,000,00058 7T 3

(equivalent to approximately
RMB829,601 to RMB1,659,203)

(HBERHAREES29,601TE
AN #1,659,2037T)

(2020: RMB889,162 to RMB1,778,325) (—ZT-ZT 4 : AK#889,162T%E

AR#1,778,3257T) )

C) Nomination Committee
The Company has established a nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) with written terms
of reference in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the GEM website
and the Company'’s website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the Year, 1 meeting was held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Wang Jun

(Resigned on 4 March 2022) 171
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 171
Mr. Sun Fei M
Dr. Yang Jingjing

(Appointed on 4 March 2022) N/A
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Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i. reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversify for consistency (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a
regular basis and making recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes;

ii. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

iii. assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors;

iv. . making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman

and the CEO;

V. making recommendations to the Board on the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members;
and

vi.  reviewing and giving full consideration to the

Board Diversity Policy adopted from time to time.

The summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is as follows:

- To review the existing Board’s structure, size,
composition and diversity;

- To review the Board Diversity Policy;

- To review the nomination policy of the Board
("Board Nomination Policy” and further elaborate
below);

- To review and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

= To make recommendations on the retiring Directors
at the 2021 AGM of the Company.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Company adopted the Board Nomination Policy, which
establishes written guidelines to the Nomination Committee to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships with reference to the
formulated criteria. The Board is ultimately responsible for
selection and appointment of new Directors.

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to the
Nomination Committee, has used its best efforts to ensure
that Directors appointed to the Board possess the relevant
background, experience and knowledge in business, finance
and management skills critical to the Group's business to
enable the Board to make sound and well considered decisions.
Collectively, they have competencies in areas which are relevant
and valuable to the Group.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy
on the Board has been created or is expected on a regular basis
or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for
identifying candidates, including recommendations from Board
members, management, and professional search firms. All
candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated
by Shareholders are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director’s qualifications. While candidates will
be evaluated on the same criteria through review of resume,
personal interview and performance of background checks.
The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish
the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based
on the composition, skill sets, age, gender and experiences of
the collective Board rather than on the individual candidate
for the purpose of diversity perspectives appropriate to the
requirement of the Company’s businesses.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account a variety of
factors including without limitation to whether a candidate has
the qualifications, skills, experience and gender diversity that
add to and complement the range of skills, experience and
background of existing Directors by considering the highest
personal and professional ethics and integrity of the candidates,
proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment, skills
that are complementary to those of the existing Board, the
ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and
the Shareholders.

During the Year, no new Director was appointed. Dr. Xu Qiang
was redesignated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director on 22 January 2021 by going through the Board
Nomination Policy.

The Company shall review and reassess the Board Nomination
Policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Board Diversity Policy

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis
by the Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate mix of expertise and experience, and collectively
possesses the necessary core competence for informed
decision-making and effective functioning. The Company
adopted the Board Diversity Policy and recognises the benefits
of having diversity in the composition of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Company noted that people from different background
and with different professional and life experience are likely
to approach problems in different ways and accordingly,
members of the Board with diverse background will bring
different concerns and questions to the table, and allow the
Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the
Group. In determining the Board’s composition and selection
of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider factors including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service.
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All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against the selection criteria,
having regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the
business model and specific needs of the Group. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

#&L:

Composition of the Diversified Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors. The following table further illustrate the composition
and diversity of the Board in terms of age, length of service
with the Group, educational background and professional
experience as of the date of this annual report:

ﬁﬁﬁ%% ZESER R AT RE
MEEREERREAN EFTE %F%%
%ﬁfié\ TEM@m‘KEI%ﬁ” A RA
BERL RERECRFEEREAZE
HEMEREEETROERMME -

BEZntHECESTE 2EMK
RAFEHAY EF@m A AUEFHEK-
TRE-FFHARAFREHN EFTSH
Fik RAEBEZRBFH BEEE =
EELRITAZAKEKEZTTLREE

Age Group Length of Service Educational Background Professional Experience
FHE BEEH SEER 5245
lessthan ~ more than Accounting
Name of Directors 35t0 50 over 50 5 years 5 years Science  Accountancy  Others Science  and Finance  Management
£33 BAE0E  SOEME  SESNT  SEME Hg git L) He Eithed g2
Mr. Xu Jianchun / / / / /
HRERE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai / v / /
ARE L&
Dr. Xu Qiang et / / / v/ /
BEgL
Mr. Chai Chung Wai / 4 4 / /
EREEE
Mr. Sun Fei / / / /
EREE
Mr. Wang Jun e / / / /
Ef‘;jﬁiﬂzz
Dr. Yang Jingjing "3 v/ / 4 /
BEERL®
Note 1: Dr. Xu Qiang was redesignated from a non-executive Director figET - B L e —F_——F - A_+_Ha
to an executive Director on 22 January 2021. FMTESATRNTES
Note 2: Mr. Wang Jun resigned as an independent non-executive fifse2 : %ﬁ%%?éfgffiiﬂ PR B
SEITESF

Director on 4 March 2022.

Note 3: Dr. Yang Jingjing was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 4 March 2022.

The Nomination Committee believes that the current
composition of the Board demonstrates a thorough
consideration of the measurable objectives for achieving board
diversity.

The Board will take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender parity.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. At present, each of Mr. Chai Chung Wai, Mr.
Sun Fei and Mr. Wang Jun, the independent non-executive
Directors, have been appointed for a specific term of three
years.

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles
of Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office at each annual general meeting, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once in every three years. The Directors to retire every
year shall be those appointed by the Board during the year
and those who have been longest in office since their last
re-election. Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring Director to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. A circular containing the
requisite information on such retiring Director will be sent to
Shareholders prior to a general meeting in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in code provision
D.3.1 of the Code, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
(including those on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements), monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the Code and reviewing the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the External Auditor
of the Company. The External Auditor is primarily responsible
for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements. During the Year, the total
remuneration in respect of services provided by Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited amounted to approximately RMB1,161,000, of
which approximately RMB954,000 was incurred for statutory
audit and RMB207,000 was incurred for non-audit services
which mainly included the review of the preliminary result
announcement of the Group and other professional services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

#&L:

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for the period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the VYear,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and on a going concern
basis. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. It is the External Auditor’s responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of the independent
auditor’s report. The statement of the External Auditor about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 73 to 80 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (“Mr. Chu") was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 11 June 2019. Mr. Chu has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

Biographical detail of Mr. Chu is set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
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INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Company has established the framework of risk
management and internal control below with a view to
adopting the Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules:

(a)

(b)

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification — Identifies risks that may potentially
affect the Group's business and operations.

Risk Assessment — (i) Assesses the risks identified by using
the assessment criteria developed by the management;
and (i) Considers the impacts and consequences on the
business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response — (i) Prioritises the risks by comparing the
results of the risk assessment; and (ii) Determines the risk
management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — (i) Performs ongoing
and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that
appropriate internal control processes are in place; (ii)
Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and (iii) Reports the results of risk monitoring
to the management and the Board regularly.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to: (i) safequard
assets against misappropriation and disposition; (ii)
ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations; (iii) ensure proper maintenance of accounting
records for provision of reliable financial information used
within the business or for publication; and (iv) to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss
or fraud.

AL A N/ £
TEEIRME

B i B R o &P o 4=

ARAFEEYINTRBRERE KRNI EEITE
%+ LU GEM L 7 40 RIB 8% + T R L 2
= A

(a)

(b)

FREGR ~ 51 R & FE B K a5 19 72
7

FEBERRBR FHELEEEAM
e R BRI AN T -

[ Bex 58 Bl — 38 Bl AT RE B R R B E
REEBKNBEZEZRR -

R -V EREREERY 274
R FFEEEAN 2B R(i)EE
REBHXFIZERER  UEER
HIRZ AR -

[ b e — ()i B B E R T2
BR-HYIERE LR R(NEE
[\ f B PR R M M RRES IR AR PR IABR
1k~ 38 % 3K PR R L B

RRERIER-()FELERES
BRRR AMBRREEENAE
EERERF (INNEBRERNERES
- (E 7] B B IR SR RS R BB ER A2
FFoR(inmEEEREZS E HIE
HERERNER-

BEREERABEEZRNLEER
il

AEBCDHIEEERF §EORKRE
BETERBAREE : (iVERE
STA BRG] AR R R AR B (i) RE R
ERAREGRERXRAREREHRA
FUBENZEHATHEIZER
B R(v)ETEERBRERM  BRK
BEFTRIEH A ERE-

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER

41



42

Corporate Governance Report

il

(c)

(d)

_LI_/\—/\—\

eSS

An acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses

#&m

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining
the sound risk management and internal control
systems of the Company on an ongoing basis, as well as
reviewing and evaluating their design and effectiveness
at least annually. The Board oversees the overall risk
management of the Group, endeavours to identify
respective risks of major business segments, analyse
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses.

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company has engaged Crowe (HK) Risk Advisory
Limited as its risk management and internal control
review adviser (the “Adviser”) with a view to facilitate the
Company in maintaining an internal audit function. The
Company has also formulated an internal audit charter
to define the scope, duties, responsibilities and reporting
protocol of the internal audit function. The Adviser
has assisted the Company in conducting an annual risk
assessment to identify significant risks by strategic risks,
operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of
its major business segments. A three-year internal audit
plan was determined based upon the results of risk
assessment under the risk-based audit approach. The
Advisor also assisted the Board and the Audit Committee
in performing an independent annual review of the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
and internal control systems for the Year. Such review is
conducted annually according to the three-year internal
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The
Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board
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and the Audit Committee are of the view that there were
no material internal control defeats noted for the Year.
All recommendations from the Adviser would be properly
followed up by the Group to ensure that they would be
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Board therefore considered that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Year.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure
potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The policy regulates the
handling and dissemination of inside information, which
includes: (i) designated reporting channels from different
operations informing any potential inside information
to designated departments; (ii) designated persons
and departments to determine further escalation and
disclosure as required; and (iii) designated persons
authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to
external enquiries.

(e)

/\_LI_/'\-/\— \Z_\

TEERME

NEEHT- A - EFERA K
FERBREERAMBEZERGEN
HREs-

HAREERBEARELEZEFL
B e

REBEDHETEERBECR - BIRTE
REMNBEATEREEANREEE B
ZRBEGEMEMHAEL — B K&
ROEERILE ZBERERERE
MAFBEENARX BREOATRE
i B (7 (M) 35 & 20 P& 3 B £ A
BHEHEBETEEREREE: (VEBEAL
RESFIIZHA TR T E —PIER LT
BAARNECEREATIER
BEARBENAER-

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER

43



44

Corporate Governance Report

/\_LI_/-r/\—\

FXE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

#&L:

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the "EGM(s)”)
shall also be convened on the requisition of two or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may do so in
the same manner, provided that such meeting shall be held
within three months after the deposit of such requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s), as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to nominate a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles of Association, no
person shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
unless during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, there has been given to the Company Secretary
notice in writing by a Shareholder (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

The details of the Company’s procedures for Shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director are set out in the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director” which is available on the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021

B R AEF
RRBABRRISAKAGNERF

RIBABERZMANE 12316 AR A Z K
REpRe (TBRERFAHIAE])HFAH®
ARZEREL2EREARFBELIDRAR
AERRBRARG LREZBERA+2

Z—HRRERK AR ZEERANE
HEAMEERNARAWERE AEXE

EEMZEEXMEECENEERSA
ARRENAG - HMEFARERNARESR
B2LIBAEXBRAZAE AEZ2ERA
ITAAN(EERBEEZERALZHMERE
B—F+UAL) AT RARSTABRAKRREKRE
HZAERNEZERR=ZBEARNEH-
FMIERESERAERASHERERZ ZK
ATEENEGERAX AHARBRESZ
BRALEM-

RREBATZEESENER

REAKERMBAUF 164G EARKEE
%AT’E%E’J}\ii’]TT MERIR K& 2

BES BRFEUHE (BERLPEX A7
RZEBASGBAMEBELRNE —_XFHH-
WAEBRZAGHBRIELRER) BHE
EREFEASYRNE ERENRRE (FEZ
BREADINEEBHRAAWE  BRY
SLIREZBALTZNESR BEXZA
Tfiﬁxh%}\i 25 S HB A F R HEFR

= \;i%o

=
ST

\\)&y

ARARBARRRIEBEALTLZEES
MEFHBE BRARRAHE(www.
sinolifegroup.com)®J [IR R IZ & A T 2%

E=EmEF]-



Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for Shareholders to put enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong or the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office.

Shareholders or investors can raise questions or provide
comments and suggestions to the Company through the
following means:

By post: Unit 601, 6/F., Ovest
77 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan
Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinolifegroup.com

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings
under the memorandum of the Company and the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands. However,
Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating
to the operations and management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be
sent to the Company Secretary at the contact details as set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to
put enquiries to the Board” above by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should
convene an EGM by following the procedures set out in the
paragraphs headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting” above.

AL A N/ £
TEEIRME

BRROESSREEANERF

PRERAIBERS REUA R G 2 AR E R - R
ERARARZBMRELETELRMER
NRAMEHEBARRZEERNBLE
EORREHEMEHAER-

BRERFIKREEAMBRBATHARMAREE
AREEER:

BLIE BB

i
XEEETTTH
Ovest 61£601=E

B H ir@sinolifegroup.com

BRARERRASELREBRNER

ARABABER XM RAMEEAAR A
EREERTLECAGRRAFBRRER
RAELRUBRIIBIRZR AWM
ARABRERRREHERNEENELRE
BAENER AEERRAS LETH
MomRBEAEMERP AR EXITER
MEFSRHSANERF] —BRATSH AR
EHBREERTRANE -BEMRLHEREDN
BREZBEXBRREARRENARE
MR —BRAEMEFARRREIX

&= o
=

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER

45



46

Corporate Governance Report

/\_LI_/-r/\—\

FXE

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

#&m

Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Communication Policy”). Under
the Communication Policy, the Company’s information
shall be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through
general meetings, including annual general meetings, the
Group's financial reports (quarterly reports, half-yearly report
and annual report), its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and meetings with investors and
analysts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the “Dividend Policy”) in March 2019, which establishes an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company.
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The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to the Shareholders after considering the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, which will depend on a number of
factors, including but not limited to:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(i) the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iii)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(iv)  the Group’s liquidity position;

(v)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors
of and affecting the Group. The Board may also consider
declaring interim dividends from time to time.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and
its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management
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As the date of this annual report, the biographical information
of the Group's Directors and senior management are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Jianchun (¥ %), aged 43, was appointed on
22 December 2017 as the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Xu
holds a doctorate degree in economics from Renmin University
of China. Mr. Xu has many years of investment experience in
the biotechnology sector. He has extensive experience in the
biotechnology investment and operation field.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (ZI#%Bf), aged 64, was appointed on
24 February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
corporate strategies, planning, overall operational management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Liu is a director
of all subsidiaries of the Group (including Bau Shan Life
Science Technology Co., Ltd (BILASRERMHER QD
7)) (“Bau Shan”). Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also
the team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the
Group's establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in
training its team. Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit
Making Organisation Management and Mortuary Science and
Funeral Service Management from Nanhua University (58 %
KE)in 2000 and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of
managerial, corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began
his career in funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a
member of Japan Environmental Zhai Yuan Association ( H
AN IRIFEEHHE ), the National Funeral Director Association
of the United States and the FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a
council member of Society of Chinese Funeral Education (#
EREBEHNEELD) and Chinese Society of Life and Death
Studies (AR EASLE 2 ) . Mr. Liu had also been a lecturer
holding seminars on the skills of being a ceremonial master
and cosmetology at the Continuing Education Centre, Ling
Tung College (Z&R M P EEEHEZE F00) in Taiwan.
Mr. Liu is currently an honorary member of the China Funeral
Association (R EIEZE# & ) in the PRC.
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Dr. Xu Qiang (#&3) , aged 44, was appointed on 1 March
2019 as a non-executive Director and was redesignated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 22 January
2021. Dr. Xu obtained his master’'s degree in Materials
Physics and Chemistry from Tsinghua University in 2003. In
2008, he has obtained a doctorate’s degree in Quantitative
Electron Diffraction from Delft University of Technology in
the Netherlands. Since 2012, Dr. Xu has served successively
as Product Manager, Director of Application and is now the
Vice President of Business Development in a nanotechnology
company, focusing on the development of electron microscope
related products, in the Netherlands.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (BB 1&), aged 55, was appointed
on 16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master degree
of Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004 and
of business administration from the University of Manchester
in December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai
has extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting
and financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary
of Ping Shan Tea Group Limited. He is currently independent
non-executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings
Group Limited (a company listed in Hong Kong, stock code:
1096). Mr. Chai was an independent non-executive director of
Asia Coal Limited (a company formerly listed in Hong Kong,
stock code: 835, and cancelled listing on 18 June 2019) from
September 2018 to June 2019.
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Mr. Sun Fei (3&7), aged 42, was appointed on 23 January
2018. Mr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
biophysics from the Department for Intensive Instruction
of Science and Arts of Nanjing University in 2001, and
obtained a doctorate degree in biophysics from the School
of Medicine, Tsinghua University in 2006. Since 2006, he has
been a researcher at the Institute of Biophysics of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences, conducting an independent research on
biophysics and structural biology. Since 2012, he has served as
the director of the Center for Biological Imaging of the Institute
of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, leading
the establishment and operation of the international-class
Center for Biological Imaging. Since 2015, he has been
appointed as professor at the University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences, teaching graduate and undergraduate students.
He has extensive research experience in biophysical technology,
cryo-electron microscopy, biological macromolecular structure
and biological imaging, and has extensive management
experience in the operation and maintenance of research
platforms. In 2009, Mr. Sun was awarded the Shizhang Bei
Prize in Biophysics. In 2013, he was chosen to participate as
a teenage talent in the National Special Support Program for
High-Level Talents, the “Ten Thousand Talent Program”. In
2017, Mr. Sun was awarded the Outstanding Contribution
Award for his contributions to cryo-electron microscopy in
China. In 2017, he was elected as the managing director of
the Biophysical Society of China and the vice-chairman of the
Cryo-electron Microscopy Branch of the Biophysical Society of
China.
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Dr. YANG lJingjing ($5&% ), aged 39, was appointed on 4
March 2022. He obtained a master's degree in finance from
University of Technology Sydney in Australia and a doctorate
degree in finance from Massey University in New Zealand. He
worked as a visiting researcher at City University of Hong Kong.
He is a professor, doctoral tutor, and deputy dean of the School
of Finance, Guangdong University of Foreign Studies, and has
been selected as a high-level financial specialist in Guangzhou.
Currently, he is mainly engaged in teaching and scientific
research in corporate finance and corporate governance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, aged 41, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 June 2019. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Chartered Governance Institute and
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Chu holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and he has extensive experiences in the
field of accounting and financial management.
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Directors’ Report
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the "“Director(s)”) of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is here to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group's principal activities during the
Year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments
in the group’s business, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8 to
23 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's loss for the Year is set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 81 and 82 and the state of affairs of the Group at
that date are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position on pages 83 and 84.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of
funeral services, none of its customers accounted for more
than 10% of its total turnover during the Year. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 19.5% of the
total purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 6.0%.

At no time during the Year, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021

TEEBEEARARA (AR &R
Ht@AmaE [ AEE])ES([EF))
2(EFg)EUHRERE_T_—F
T_A=t—BLFE(AFE]HF
BHRERBEZEAMHRE -

FEGFHREHEER

ARAMNEIBEIRREZBRMEMNE L
AMEBENGEAMBEHRRMEI -AKE
BEREPHNMERAFRLBE AR -

EERNARBIM RS ERYZF R E
HOE—FRm RO MERNAFRESE
EN[EEEBAwmEIN] —&H EFE
EAKEfESOHEERR RN EERSR
BT A R AR SR B S 75 AT BEAE 1T B R 2K
BRER A HAEFTSREN & -

REREH

REBRAFENEBEEHNFES1HKS2E
MEGAEEREMZEREZREAEER
ZHNBBRRE N ESIE MBAHNLELRAE
B IS AR o

EFQUVTEARAFEIMNEARS (=
ToTFE)

FTEERRMES

AEBFENREHEBERS RAF
B HMERERFRhHEBERAEEAEETN
10% - MAEBMAAEEEELHBE N
RNEEBHEBEBEEMIOSK MAEFRHZA
HERELNEEH6.0% -

WA AR EmAD e
WE B RAREARE (REER
8 AR TR BITRAS% A EHBE)
RARBNEAES RUEEEAETE
REH -



SEGMENT REPORTING

Details of segment reporting for the Year are set out in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There are no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 85, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners comprising share premium account
less accumulated losses, amounted to approximately
RMB28,790,000.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
Year (2020: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Dr. Xu Qiang (redesignated from non-executive Director to
executive Director on 22 January 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei
Dr. Yang Jingjing
(Appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

According to the requirements of article 16.2 of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting. Dr. Yang Jingjing will retire in accordance with
article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election in the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the "AGM").

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Xu Jianchun and
Mr. Chai Chung Wai will retire by rotation in accordance with
article 16.18 of the Article of Association, and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, biographical details of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages from 48 to 51 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Mr. Xu Jianchun (“Mr. Xu"), an executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 22 December 2017, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
two months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 9 September 2009, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Dr. Xu Qiang, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 22 January 2021, which continues thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than two
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Chai Chung Wai, an independent non-executive Director,
has renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 9 September 2021,
which can be terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Sun Fei, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years from 23 January 2021, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month's
notice in writing to the other party.

Dr. Yang Jingjing, an independent non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years from 4 March 2022, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month's
notice in writing to the other party.
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None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM, has a service agreement which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees (full-
time and part-time), directors, advisors, consultants, service
providers, agents, customers, partners or joint-venture partners
of the of the Group and to promote the success of the business
of the Group.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments for the Year are set out in note 8 and
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
held by the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares (the “Shares”),
underlying shares (the “Underlying Shares”) and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they have
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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1 Mr. Xu is interested in 220,475,000 Shares through his
controlling interests in Hong Kong Gaogqi Biological Technology
Company Limited (“HK Gaoqi”). Mr. Xu is interested in HK
Gaogqi through his 25.55% direct beneficial interests and 9.78%
through Houp Bio-Technology Limited (“HBT Limited”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. HBT Limited
has two classes of shares, namely class A and class B, in which
shareholders of class A and class B have 30 votes and 1 vote
per share in the shareholders’ meeting respectively. Mr. Xu
holds 94.07% class A interests and Ms. Qiu Qi (EBE) , the
spouse of Mr. Xu, holds 5.93% class A interests and 10.74%
class B interests in HBT Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is
taken to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Qiu Qi, so
Mr. Xu collectively holds 86.78% of the total voting rights of
HBT Limited, and in turn is interested in 9.78% of HK Gaoqi.
Accordingly, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by HK Gaogi by virtue of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short position which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which will be required to be entered into the register
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2021,
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company
whose interests or short positions are disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or its Associated Corporations”
above, the following persons and corporations have interests or
short position in the Shares or Underlying Shares which has to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, and who
were expected, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or
more of the Shares is listed as follows:
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Aggregate long positions in the Shares

Directors’ Report
EEQRE

RIRGD R &R

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Company
HEATEHBT
MR & EEME FifsiRBEE RAMBLOT DL
Hong Kong Gaogqi Biological Beneficial Owner 220,475,000 29.69%
Technology Company Limited
("HK Gaoqi”)
EESREMRKRAR A EnEA A
(I&ESRE])
Ms. QIU Qi Interests of controlled 220,475,000 29.69%
corporation (Note 2)
EREH 20+ RN AR (B aE2)
Notes: BT
1. Mr. Xu is the director of HK Gaogi, which holds 29.69% 1. HEERBEASBZES BEAZRA A

Shares, and the director of HBT Limited, which holds 9.78%
of equity interests in HK Gaogi. Mr. Xu is interested in HK
Gaogqi through his 25.55% direct beneficial interests and
9.78% through HBT Limited. HBT Limited has two classes of
shares, namely class A and class B, in which shareholders of
class A and class B have 30 votes and 1 vote per share in the
shareholders’ meeting respectively, and Mr. Xu holds 94.07%
class A interests in HBT Limited and Ms. Qiu Qi, the spouse
of Mr. Xu, holds 5.93% class A interests and 10.74% class B
interests in HBT Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is taken
to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Qiu Qi, so Mr. Xu
collectively holds 86.78% of the total voting rights of the HBT
Limited, and in turn is interested in 9.78% of HK Gaoqi.

2. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Qiu Qi, the spouse of Mr. Xu, is
taken to be interested in all the shares held by Mr. Xu.

Save as disclosed above and the Directors’ interests as
disclosed in “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or its Associated Corporations”, no person
had interests in shares or short positions in the shares of
the Company or underlying shares which are required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

.III'I

Save as the transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or parent company was a party and in which
a Director or his connected entity had, directly or indirectly, a
material interest subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Agency Agreement

On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell Therapy
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd* (FRIEBRHAREZ (ER)ERA
A)) (“Zhongke Guangju”), a company indirectly held as to
30% equity interest by Mr. XU Jianchun (“Mr. Xu") and his
Associates through a controlled company, entered into an
agency agreement (the “Agency Agreement”) with Zhongke
Zhengi Biotechnology (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (FARIEZEHEAY)
Bl (BE) AR AR (“Zhongke Zhengi”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the Agency Agreement,
Zhongke Guangju has agreed to engage Zhongke Zhenqi
as a distribution agent to market development and market
promotion of stem cells and immunocytes in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Macau and also providing market feedback to
Zhongke Guangju for three years commencing from 31 January
2019.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021

EEREHNPHER

TRV BBMEMAIFABEENRS
- AN E R AR R AR B ) B
BEEENHBEEEERNYAREELEMS
BEANEMNRS THIXEH (KR F
SEEMUHBERR REMBARHER
AR ) PERAFEREEERNEE -

ESRBROIBEEHER

BRENEEREETHRAERARARK
HABEBENRMD HEROREEEZ
EHERKE| —HBEENFEBIN BAE
F AT MR AR A sk E T E R A
SRRAMBARMEEM L BEXRR
AZEBSTBTHRABRESEHEA
(TEERGEMEMRAERATRBEAAR
AINEAMAEEEIE(TEEREAFLBE
GO 2 BHOERN HBEBBAKXRQF
AT E A ABRE 2 RSk EREEmE
ZHER o

FEBEMERX S

ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁi
RZE—NF—A=+—8 HHEZH
f%(fﬁi)*ﬁﬁ&“?(ﬁfﬂﬂfmj'
/H\BO%HXTEEEﬁ@%fii(fﬁf‘iiﬂ&
HBMEAZBIEQARAMERE) AR R
EEHEMBME(BER)BERAR ([F %
Hl - BARRZEMBRGR)FZREW
F(RERZ]) - BEREHZ RRE
FEREBEEZTFREHATR FERE
PSR EeERARMERERTISEHE
EBHSHERE TRFREBREMSER
B R T NF—A=+—HBHEKEH
=%



Mr. XU, the chairman of the Board and executive Director of
the Company, and his Associates indirectly hold through a
controlled company 30% of the shares in Zhongke Guangju.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Agency
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors estimate that for the period from the effective
date of the Agency Agreement to 31 December 2019, the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the year ended 31 December
2021, the aggregate value of the products and/or services
provided to Zhongke Zhengi under the Agency Agreement
by Zhongke Guangju will not exceed RMB&,000,000
(approximately HK$9,290,000), RMB8,500,000 (approximately
HK$9,871,000) and RMB&,500,000 (approximately
HK$9,871,000) respectively.

The annual cap of the aggregate value of the products and/
or services provided to Zhongke Zhengi under the Agency
Agreement by Zhongke Guangju set by the Board for the
period from 31 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 is
RMB8,500,000 (approximately HK$9,871,000). During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the total amount incurred by
Zhongke Guangju to Zhongke Zhengi pursuant to the Agency
Agreement was approximately RMB212,000. Further details
of this continuing connected transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 January 2019 and
1 February 2019.

The Company has adopted the following internal control
measures to ensure that the continuing connected transaction
is conducted in accordance with the pricing policy and terms of
the Agency Agreement as well as the GEM Listing Rules:

(i)  The Company's finance department will from time to
time obtain proof of market prices of products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju. All quotations
and/or prices will be filed as reference prices for the
continuing connected transaction to ensure that prices
for products and/or services provided to Zhongke Zhenqi
by Zhongke Guangju do not exceed general market price
and prices for identical or similar for products and/or
services provided to other independent third party agents
by Zhongke Guangju;

(i)  The Company's finance department will monitor and
ensure that the continuing connected transaction is
conducted in accordance with the terms of the Agency
Agreement and do not exceed the annual caps of the
continuing connected transaction;
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(iii)  The Board will continue to review on a regular basis the
Group's internal control system and its effectiveness; and

Al

(iv)  The Company will appoint an external auditor pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules to conduct annual reviews of
the continuing connected transactions and its annual
caps.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transaction and confirmed that
the transaction has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing the
auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules as follows, a copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transaction has not been approved by the Board;

(2)  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transaction; and
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(3) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transaction has exceeded the respective maximum
aggregate annual value as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Discloseable Transaction and Connected Transaction
in relation to the Acquisition of the sale equity
in the Target Company and entering into the VIE
Agreements

On 26 November 2019, FIEREFEAVEEEELE (B
R & %) Shenzhen Fuying Daxin Biotechnology Partnership
(Limited Partnership)* (the “Vendor”), the Company (the
“Purchaser A”) and R RIFAZEEWEIE ORI E RAF
Zhongke Xunda Biotechnology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser
B”), entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchasers conditionally
agreed to acquire the sale equity, including 32% equity interest
in BMSEAEWMRIEAR DR ("GZRT"), at the aggregated
consideration of HK$28,880,000 (the “Acquisition”).

BERNBREYWRHBEREMF AR Guangdong Xtem
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability (the “Target Company”), GZRT,
and the PRC equity owners (the “PRC Equity Owners”),
which consisting of the Vendor, FITEHAEEEESR
[R A a] Shenzhen Nanyue Asset Management Co., Ltd.*(a
company established in the PRC with limited liability) (the
“PRC Shareholder A"), /&I EEE MK F AT AR A
A} Shenzhen Yebao Micro-Nano Chip Research Institute Co.,
Ltd.* (a company established in the PRC with limited liability)
(the “PRC Shareholder B"), FHITEHBREEEBR A
&], Shenzhen Houpu Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (a
company established in the PRC with limited liability) (the “PRC
Shareholder C”), and B & B (Mr. Lan Zhinan) (“Mr. Lan"), will
implement a reorganization and enter into the variable interest
entity agreements (the “VIE Agreements”), pursuant to which
GZRT will have effective control over the finance and operation
of the Target Company and will be entitled to 95% economic
interests and benefits generated by the Target Company.

* for reference only
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Due to the impact of the anomalous coronavirus pneumonia
pandemic, the due diligence workload and the delay in all
other relevant tasks, the Vendor and the Purchasers mutually
agreed not to proceed with the transactions and entered into
a termination agreement on 8 March 2021 to terminate the
Sale and Purchase Agreement with immediate effect, and all
relevant parties shall be released and discharged from their
respective rights and obligations therein. Given that the Sale
and Purchase Agreement will not proceed, the Company will
not prepare the corresponding circular and will not convene an
extraordinary general meeting in approving the agreements.
The Board is of the view that the termination of the S&P
Agreement will not cause material adverse effect on the
operation, business and financial position of the Group.

Further details of this discloseable transaction and connected
transaction are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 26 November 2019, 16 December 2019, 9 January
2020, 2 March 2020, 9 April 2020, 1 June 2020, 30 June
2020, 3 August 2020, 15 September 2020, 15 October 2020,
20 November 2020, 18 December 2020, 29 January 2021 and
9 March 2021.

Major and Connected Transaction in relation to
Capital Increase of Zhongke Zhenhui (Guangdong)
Medical Technology Company Limited* (P EIEZ
(BR)EEFRIZFRLE)

On 13 September 2021, the Company has entered into a capital
increase agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”) between
Zhongke Xunda Biotechnology (Shenzhen) Company Limited*
(RRIEFREEDRE ORI BR QR ("Zhongke Xunda”), a
company established in the PRC on 17 September 2019 with
limited liability, Shenzhen Nanyue Crown Block Bio Intelligent
Fquipment Investment Co., Ltd.* (R IIITh K B £ ¥ %5 85
HEIEAMRAT)) (“Nanyue CB”), a company established in
the PRC on 8 March 2021 with limited liability, and Zhongke
Zhenhui (Guangdong) Medical Technology Company Limited*
(hRIZE (BER)BEREAR AR ("Zhongke Zhenhui”),
a company established in the PRC on 19 May 2020 with
limited liability, to increase the registered capital of Zhongke
Zhenhui from RMB10,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 on a pro rata
basis. Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, Zhongke
Xunda and Nanyue CB agreed to contribute, by way of cash,
RMB35,700,000 and RMB34,300,000 into the registered capital
of Zhongke Zhenhui, respectively.
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Nanyue CB, is controlled as to 71.25% by Mr. Xu (together
with his associates), an executive Director and therefore a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, pursuant to
Rule 20.10 of the GEM Listing Rules, Nanyue CB is an associate
of a connected person of the Company and the entering into
of the Capital Increase Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. For details of the Capital Increase Agreement,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 13
September 2021 and 26 October 2021 and the circular of the
Company dated 29 October 2021.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, all other related party transactions
and balances did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

As disclosed in the announcement (the “Announcement”)
dated 13 September 2021 and the circular (the “Circular”)
dated 29 October 2021 of the Company with respect to (i)
the major and connected transaction in relation to the capital
increase in Zhongke Zhenhui; and (ii) the major transaction in
relation to the formation of the JV Company, the Company
has entered into the Capital Increase Agreement and the JV
Agreement on 13 September 2021. Capitalised terms used in
this report shall bear the same meanings as those defined in
the Announcement and the Circular unless the context requires
otherwise.

If the Capital Increase and the Formation of the JV Company
are crystalised, the Group through (i) the JV Company will
engage in equity and/or securities investment business; and
(i) Zhongke Zhenhui engaged in technical development
and consultation services, investment activities and business
management consultation. The businesses of Nanyue AM
are mainly engaged in asset management, investment
management, equity investment and investment consulting
services through its private equity funds. Mr. Xu is a director
of Nanyue AM and, together with his associates, ultimately
owned as to approximately 71.25% equity interests of Nanyue
AM, therefore, Mr. Xu may be regarded as being interested
in the competing business with the business of the Group.
As the Company’s management and administrative structure
are independent to that of Nanyue AM, and coupled with the
diligence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
Group is capable of carrying its businesses independently on an
arm'’s length basis.

For more details, please refer to the Announcement and the
Circular.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is interested in
a business apart from the Group’s business which competes or
is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, and is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The old share option scheme, which was adopted by the
Company on 24 August 2009, was expired and there was no
outstanding share option. A new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 22 April 2021. The Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing from the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme from 22 April
2021 (the "Date of Adoption”) (that is from 22 April 2021 to
21 April 2031). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to the participants and to promote the
success of the business of the Group. The participants include
any director, employee (full-time and part-time), advisor,
consultant, supplier, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company,
who, in the absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group so as to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any director, employee, advisors consultant, supplier, agent,
customer, partner or jointventure partner of the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company whom the Board considers, in
its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the Date of Adoption and as at the
approval date of refreshment from time to time, excluding for
this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined at the absolute discretion of the
Directors but in any event will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five consecutive business days immediately preceding
the offer date of that particular option; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date of the particular option.
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Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee of the Share
Option Scheme shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer of the
grant of the option must be made within 10 days from the
date of offer. The exercise period of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board upon
granting the options but in any event must not be more than
10 years commencing on the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’ approval,
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme. The Board may seek approval by the
shareholders of the Company at general meeting to refresh the
10% limit. However, the total number of shares available for
issue under exercise of options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme in these circumstances must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment of the 10%
limit.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this interim report.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time and the maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to each eligible participant shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue for the time being in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of offer of the grant.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since the Date of Adoption.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
24 to 47 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year, a permitted indemnity provision that meets
the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the Companies
Ordinance for the benefit of the Directors is in force.

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty by any of the Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers during
the Year and the indemnity provision and Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance remains in force as of the date of
this annual report.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in Directors’ information subsequent to the date
of interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2021, as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules, are set out below:

Directors’ Report
== =

EREWS

ESEHEY

BE_T-_—FA=Z+THIEAHEAHN
PHREBHE EEERNEE (BIE
GEM TR B ZE17.50ANV T B IHEE)
ETR| RN

Name of Directors

ESHS

Details of Changes
b

Dr. Yang Jingjing

HBEEEL

Mr. Wang Jun

FHkE

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman and
member of nomination committee and member of each of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 4 March 2022.
R-B__F=AHBEZERERRABIINTESE EBREEEFRR
KEAREZZEGRTMNEEGREZEGKE-

Resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman and
member of nomination committee and member of each of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 4 March 2022.
RIEZ_F=ZANBHEARABIRNTES REZEGTERKE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 240 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year comply with
applicable reporting standards, GEM Listing Rules, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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AUDITOR

On 14 December 2020, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned
as the auditor of the Company and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
was then appointed as the auditor of the Company thereafter.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2020 have been audited by Elite
Partners CPA Limited and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited respectively.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited will retire at the end of the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director

14 April 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report

Crowe

To the shareholders of
Sino-Life Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
81 to 239, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

T8 N A% BLAD RS

BEELE (F8) SEHEHAERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

5 RS ISRET7R 1$ER 0948
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor's Report

18 N A% BLAD R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Key audit matter

PSS EIE

T8 N A% BLAD RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BT AR S FIRETRE

Valuation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties

KA RIEFURBREMENGE

We identified the valuation of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the
fair values.
BMBERKAER T RBFARKEYENGE
REARBEAETEERNETLATER P REBNEEH N
H T S Ah 5 e

As disclosed in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amounts of freehold
land and buildings and investment properties were
approximately RMB28,339,000 and RMB7,401,000
as at 31 December 2021 respectively. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, a revaluation surplus
on freehold land and buildings of approximately
RMB3,704,000 and a revaluation deficit on freehold
land and buildings of approximately RMB158,000
were recognised in other comprehensive income and
in profit or loss respectively, and a fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately RMB711,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

WA BREWFI4RI6FER R = —
FHZRA=+—HB kAXRIHREFUARKREY
EWREESD A AKRK28,339,0007T & A R
7,401,000 HEZZT=_—F+=ZA=+—HLF
B KAZBLIHWRBF I EFHERKOARK
3,704,0007T ROk A M T REF 2 EFH G EEBA
# AR %158,0007T 73 B A H b 2 1 W 25 Ko 1B 28 N B
RoMREMHEZ A TFERELOARET11,0007T B4R
EERARHEMPEBRRER -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
freehold land and buildings and investment
properties included:

BMEBT M KAER T REFRREME
RFFeE:

o Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s valuation processes and
significant assumptions to assess if these
approaches are in compliance with the
requirements of HKFRSs and industry norms;

. THREEENMFEERFREARRK  AFHE
ZENERENAERYBRESERMITE
R ERK

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer,
J AAhEMcER BB RFHME

o Obtaining the detailed work of the Valuer to
evaluate the accuracy and relevance of key
inputs used in the valuation;

. EREEMN TIEFIE AT EEEMRB A
ABIE 2 MM RAERA M

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methods used based on our knowledge of the
property markets; and

e REEFHWMEMSHN T HRTEMAERN
HETENGEN: &

o Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
and assumptions, including unit sale rate by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific
information and market data based on our
knowledge of the property markets.

. BREEZSHMETSNTH FREZEM
THEERBBEEMRMISEEMAL Ul
AR ABBEIARR (BEEVEE)NEE
o

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER

75



76

Independent Auditor's Report
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Key audit matter
FSEETEIR
KAEELTHREFURBEMENKE ()

As disclosed in notes 2(g) and 2(f) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's freehold land and
buildings and investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer (“Valuer”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations of freehold land and buildings, and
investment properties are disclosed in notes 14 and 16
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

MR E M IS mKR M 20 R2(F K EE - EREKA
FERLWEEFRREMEDIRBEB LS ERMEER
([MEER])ETHEERIFEINR BREKAERE
T REBFRIREYEGEMANMGER AR BRE
ABEBZHBEDRBRBERNGE M BRI T14R16 -

The valuations have been arrived at using direct
comparison method, which are dependent on certain
key inputs and assumptions in respect of prevailing
market conditions such as unit sale rate.
ZEMEDRAERELBURES HEURRBGRART
MRAZETEREBABBEMBR (NBELEE) -
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Independent Auditor's Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 April 2022

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

= AN/
AeBa EMEE RS
For the year ended 31 December 2021 @ifg:_fﬁ—'——ﬂ = F—EllEEE
2021 2020
—g-—% —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AREBTT AR¥ETTT
Revenue W 2 4 72,864 68,340
Cost of sales and services rendered  $5 & AR5 A X (34,887) (39,173)
Gross profit EF 37,977 29,167
Fair value gain on investment REWME 2 N FERES
properties 16 711 101
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial BAFEFTAER
assets measured at fair value ([BAFEFAEE])
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ﬁizﬁﬁkﬁﬁz
N ENE (BE) 19 811 (32)
Other income and other E A R E A
net (loss)/gain (F1R) W35 5 (10,771) 2,314
Selling expenses HERY (2,385) (3,175)
Administrative expenses THAX (35,432) (24,922)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of B 5 RHEADEYKIAZ
impairment losses recognised BHEEEE
under expected credit loss (“ECL")  ([TEHIEEBE])
model on trade and other RAIET 2 EHER
receivables, net CREEE)/ 6(d),
VERIEN SENEIEC o L 34(a) (2,797) 1,226
Other operating expenses B &M= (674) (679)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWBAR &R 41 (31) =
(Loss)/profit from operations | (B8, (12,591) 4,000
Finance costs ELEZ N 6(a) (2,182) (2,521)
(Loss)/profit before taxation RBial (5518) @R 6 (14,773) 1,479
Income tax expense Fr iR 2 7 (2,902) (3.421)
Loss for the year ERE (17,675) (1,942)
Other comprehensive income/  H{t 2@z~ (FX)
(expense)
Items that will not be reclassified to #7717 & & #7 77 48 2 18 25 A
profit or loss: HA :
Surplus on revaluation of land THREFZ
and buildings ERpag= 14(c) 3,704 279
Exchange difference arising on HREMEEZER
translation E=Ha (2,803) (5,187)
Item that may be reclassified Hig e @B 5
subsequently to profit or loss: BmiHE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETEFIEE
translation of foreign ZMEH Z5
operations 5,686 927
Other comprehensive FEHb2EKE
income/(expense) for the year, (BAZ) (OBRFAIBH)
net of income tax 10 6,587 (3,981)
Total comprehensive FEZ2EWKE(FAX)
income/(expense) for the year, #2%F (INBRFAEH)
net of income tax (11,088) (5,923)
FEEGEEERAT —ZT=-—FFRH

81



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and O her Comprehensive Income

e B N E M A WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B-—% —T-THF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTR ARETT
(Loss)/profit for the year DTALELEE
attributable to: (B548) i #
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE FEIN (9.872) (2,974)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 2 (7,803) 1,032
(17,675) (1,942)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ KT ATEEEZE
income attributable to: (X)) Wis48EE:
Owners of the Company KABER A (5,023) (6,759)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR HE 2 (6,065) 836
(11,088) (5,923)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted HAR#E 11 RMB(1.33) cents RMB(0.40) cents

AR®(1.33)% AR#(0.40)5

Sy
H>

5 7% R

SR A

%
&

The notes on pages 89 to 239 form part of these consolidated ~ s589E & 239EZ M EE R
financial statements. xKZ—Ho
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e M IR R

As at 31 December 2021 E’S:;ﬁ:—i‘f’:ﬁ] =4=E

2021 2020
—E-—% —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B o AREFT AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% WE M E 14 32,773 30,142
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 27,638 32,619
Investment properties WEME 16 7,401 6,531
Intangible assets BVEE 17 2,024 2
Interests in associates REEE QN F =S 18 = =
Goodwill EHaE 20 = =
Other deposits Hiniz e 23 44 99
Deposits for hire of funeral HABBRENEE
parlours and funeral services RIS LR
centres 23 1,000 1,000
70,880 70,393
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Financial assets measured BAFEFABREE
at FVTPL LI EEE 19 38,577 33,639
Development and formation costs B % M A 37 Ak AR 21 4,529 4,542
Inventories FE 22 1,625 1,546
Trade and other receivables g5 N H A e W FkIA 23 30,686 43,820
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTE R 24 117,557 123,674
192,974 207,221
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R EMER IR 25 14,099 16,876
Contract liabilities EHaE 26 90,207 87,994
Lease liabilities HEaRE 27 4,564 4,403
Bank borrowings SRITIEE 28 1,192 1,138
Income tax liabilities mEHRaE 29(a) 3,567 3,567
Amounts due to directors B EE 2 FA 35(e) 1,563 3,660
Amount due to a shareholder JEN — R R Z KB 35(f) 11,899 10,544
Provisions B 30 3,086 2,550
130,177 130,732
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 62,797 76,489
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 133,677 146,882
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES #;”ﬁ.ibﬁ%
Contract liabilities S ON-Kr 26 353 186
Lease liabilities fﬂf—i:i% 27 22,924 27,467
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 4,812 5,826
Amount due to a shareholder B —RBREZFKIE 35(f) = 1,677
28,089 35,156
NET ASSETS BEFE 105,588 111,726

TEEGEEERA R
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e M IR R

As at 31 December 2021 A-ZE-_—F+_-_HA=+—H

2021 2020
- el 3 —E_TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

(= AR®BTRT ARETT

EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners EATHAANEIEES
of the Company

Share capital [N 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves W 32 45,390 50,052
114,608 119,270

Non-controlling interests FEIE R HE (9,020) (7,544)
TOTAL EQUITY LS 105,588 111,726

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
14 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director
FESF

ERNTESE

The notes on pages 89 to 239 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equiity
SRy Et L E-

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHFNES
Foreign
Statutory Properties currency Share-based
Share Merger Statutory surplus revaluation translation  compensation Other
Share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Non-
capital (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) Accumulated controlling
(Note 31) (i) (ii)) (i) (iv)) v) (vi)) (viii)) (viil)) losses Sub-total interests Total
EERE HREE SRER  URHBER
R#ER Bt AEEE L L] L L] L L] ZHRER
L3 (Mat32(b) (Kts2() (Mat32() [{:E:70) (Ha32() (Kts2() (Wi320)  RABHE (e
(1) [0l (i) (ii)) (i) ) (i) (viil)) 32 (b)viii)) Rt Mt FRRER 85
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETR AR#FR ARETR AR#FR ARETR ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-¥-¥5-R-H 69,218 220633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,99 (15,242) 7,007 & (144,684) 126,029 (8,380) 117,649
Loss)profit for the year £5 (BB)/4H - - - - - - - - - 2974) (2.974) 1032 (1942)

Surplus on revaluation of

THRETZERR

land and buldings - - - - - 143 - - - - 143 136 m
Exchange differences arising on % B
translation of foreign 1
operations S o S > S > (3,928 - - - (3,928) (332) (4,260)

Other comprehensive income/ X2 A/
(expense) (R%) - - - - - 143 (3,928) - - - (3,785) (196) (3.981)
Total comprehensive income/ /% 2EME/

(expense) for the year

Transfer to reserves BREE = = & = 10,508 = - = = (10,508) = = =
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - - - - (7,00 - 7,001 S = =
At 31 December 2020 RoB%E
+-R=+-8 69,218 220633 (16,261) 790 12,058 3141 (19,170) o 0 (151,139) 119,270 (7,544) 111,726

At 1 January 2021 R-¥=-%-5-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 79 12,058 34 (19,170) = S (151,139) 19270 (7,544) 11,726
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - - - (9872) (9872) (7,803) (17,675)
Surplus on revaluation of THRBFIERRS

land and buildings - - - - - 2,354 - - - - 2,354 1,350 3,704
Exchange differences arising on BHEL,

translation of foreign EXZR

operations - - - - - - 2,495 - - - 2,495 388 2883

Other comprehensive income £t 2 Bz - - - - - 2,35 2,495 - - - 4,849 1738 6,587

Total comprehensive income/

(expense) for the year - - - - - 235 2,495 - - (9.872) (5.023) (6,065) (11,088)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary
without loss of control
(note 40) - - - - - - - - 361 - 361 (361) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41)
(Hsta) = = = = = = = = = = = (830) (830)
Contribution from ThiE
non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 5,780 5,780
At 31 December 2021
69,218 20,633 (16,261) 790 12,058 5495 (16,675) - 361 (161,011) 114,608 (9,020) 105,588

FBIEE29A M ERZKFTHRA M BR
R Z g v ©

The notes on pages 89 to 239 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nﬂ_\/\fﬁi;ﬁiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—%F —E-THF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff 5 AREFR AR¥ETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEETR
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiAT (E58),SEF (14,773) 1,479
Adjustments for: P
Amortisation of intangible asset B B 6(c) 578 =
Finance costs & A A 6(a) 2,182 2,521
Depreciation of property, ME HE LR
plant and equipment e 6(c) 2,707 5,352
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE
assets 6(c) 5,031 5,076
Impairment losses/(reversal of B 5 K& E e W I8
impairment losses) recognised ZTEHEEEE
under ECL model on trade BRAIET 2 EHER
and other receivables, net BEEE (RE
BB ) 6(d) 2,797 (1,226)
Provision/(written back of BRAGRR A B4,
provision) for cost of service (BB ) 5 454 (399)
Reversal of impairment losses on [B] 4% T8 1 SRIE R B
prepayment E1a 5 - (784)
Loss on written off of prepayment WEETE N B BB 5 12,013 -
Fair value gain on investment BREMEZRFE
properties g = 16 (711) (101)
Revaluation deficit on freehold KA FERE T REF
land and buildings L EREEA 5 158 =
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE  BE R
plant and equipment R EE 5 35 -
Gain on lease modification HEEWR 2 W 5 (29) =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBRARZ
E18 41 31 =
Interest income B U A 5 (587) (210)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial BRATEFABR
assets measured at FVTPL AR
EE2ATAE
(Wez) /B8 19 (811) 32
Net exchange (gain)/loss N (W) BE
FER 5 (28) 343
9,047 12,083
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
selREeREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—®|-—5 —E-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREBTT ARBFIT
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL E&ZL%F)
Increase in inventories FEEM (79) (640)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 N E Ath ' Uk FR0E
other receivables () R (1,427) 8,197
Decrease in financial ERAFEFABRE
assets measured at FVTPL U EEERD 518 3,397
Decrease in development and 7 & M AR ST AR AR
formation costs 13 419
Decrease in trade and 8 5 & H M FE R 5UE
other payables VA (1,724) (347)
Increase/(decrease) in contract AHEEEN, CRD)
liabilities 8 (6,432)
Increase in amount due to a ER—2BREZ
shareholder FRIEE I 24(b) S 2,666
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due  FEfHE E3IE
to directors (R A) /4 (3,625) 3,066
(6.316) 10,326
CASH GENERATED FROM HERRRE
OPERATIONS 2,731 22,409
Income taxes paid in B fE AREME
the People’s Republic of China (THE])ZmER
("PRC") 29(a) (3,138) (4,519)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED #EZ %% (FiH), P8
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&FE (407) 17,890
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREETH
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BEX
equipment B 14 (1,303) (3,713)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWHE HEREZEZ
plant and equipment Fri550R 235 =
Net cash outflow arising on HE—EHE AR
disposal of a subsidiary EENRS R FE 41 (907) =
Purchase of an intangible asset BE-—EELAE 17 (2,600) -
Purchase of financial assets BEIZAFETA
measured at FVTPL BomrtEcWBEE (4,906) S
Proceed from disposal of HEZRAFEFTA
financial assets measured BRitEs B
at FVTPL BEZFEHIE 1,282 -
Contribution from non-controlling BB A R FEIE AR i 2
interest of a subsidiary = 5,780 -
Interest received B U F B 587 210
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BREEHFAREFHE
ACTIVITIES (1,832) (3,503)
FEEGEEERAT —ZT=-—FFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= R =
meERERE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
2021 2020
—E=-—4 —E-FEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFxT AREFTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES =)
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEBETEE 24(b) (1,161) (1,166)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITEERNE 24(b) (105) (155)
Repayment of lease liabilities, BEEHEEE(BE
including related interests HENE) 24(b) (6,480) (6,523)
Increase in amount due to a ER— 2R
shareholder TRIE I AN 24(b) - 1,677
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING LS EEN TR &S
ACTIVITIES (7,746) (6,167)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeRRELEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (L), HmigiE (9,985) 8,220
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WR—H—BZHER
AT 1 JANUARY H&%EY 123,674 119,216
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE  jMEEREH 2L
RATE CHANGES 3,868 (3,762)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WR+=A=+—-HZ
AT 31 DECEMBER RERFAEEEYD 117,557 123,674
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF He&RREEBEYSLR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  4#F
Cash and bank balances Ba MIBrTER 24(a) 117,557 123,674

The notes on pages 89 to 239 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021

F8IH EF 239EZ|31]LE REZEEEVBR

x2—HD



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
wm

G e s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law. Its shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in
the provision of funeral and related services in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the PRC ("Hong Kong"), sale of burial
plots and tombstones and provision of cemetery
maintenance services in Socialist Republic of Vietnam
(“Vietnam"), provision of advisory services on stem
cells and immunocytes in the PRC and sales of advance
biotechnical machinery and other electronic products in
Hong Kong. The Company and its subsidiaries are herein
collectively referred to as the “Group”. The addresses
of the Company’s registered office and principal place
of business are The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 32052,
Grand Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman Islands and Unit 601,
6/F., Ovest, No. 77 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong respectively.

1.

—BREH

TEABDEEARAR ([ARF])
DRERERERARER_-_FTZTA
F_AZTHBEERSFSEMK
VUR—RAERREREMERA HK
MR _ZFEZFNFALANBERTRR
ERGAERATE ([BRF]) GEM
Ee

ARG FEREREZER -AWELQ
AFEEBRRIE AERPEHEF
BERTHE ([H8])FRERE
RABRY RmteEs LM
(THEDEEEREBRRERE
B &4 R 7 - 7R B4R (1 %Zﬁﬂﬁ’@&%
EHREARE  ARRELHEE
Jﬁi%ﬂ%ﬂ*““&ﬁﬁﬂ%%%uuﬁ
BEB -ARARAEMBRATRTX
,%$§7%T$’§IJ AR FEM S
BE K EBEFEME 2t 55 Bl AThe
Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road,
P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman
KY1-1208, Cayman Islandsk & -
IRk B ATT775 Ovest 612601 E -

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4T A

B M 1% R Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group's interests in
associates.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollars (“US$"). The
functional currencies are Renminbi ("RMB"),
Taiwan dollars (“NTD"), Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and Vietnamese dong (“VND") for subsidiaries
incorporated/established in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Vietnam respectively. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise
indicated, which is different from the functional
currency of the Company as majority of the
Group’s transactions are denominated in RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that the following assets
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties;
- freehold land and buildings; and

- financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

2.

(b)

G e s
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4T A

B M 1% R Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 44.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(o)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income or expense for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income or expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

(c)
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as
at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment.

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group's
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(n)). At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate, after applying the ECL model to
such other long-term interests where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2(h)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(s).

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)):

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see note
2(h)).

(f)

(9)
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation;
and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will
be credited to profit or loss to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to
profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- freehold land is not depreciated;

- buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- The Group’s interests in buildings situated
on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion;

- Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

- Furniture, fixtures 2 to 5 years
and office
equipment

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of
the items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,
plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from
the properties revaluation reserve to accumulated
losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as similar assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated losses.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(g) and 2(n)), except for the following
types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment properties are
carried at fair value in accordance with
note 2(f); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is
the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2(g).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE —Z —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments
in debt securities carried at amortised cost.
Any difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the condition set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —

(Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2(s).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2(h)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

= —

=

—F+ZA=+t-ALFE
BB (%)

(hy HEEE (&

(ii)

ﬁ%&ﬁx
AEBERHEAR  H
EHERBRKEER
EEETABEMEENR
EHE-HEKHEREE
P B B & 0 B KA
[ B Ko B ¥R 88 B = A
/\ AEEsBARMEMR
N LB - A
%\ﬁiﬁﬁi&“%ﬁ%

AEERERER
%% A % B 10 5B

B 8 {18 #5440 o
REAETEHS 8
MEELE2HSRAR
I Y 52 ()RR <

‘mm Hin}

WASEB ARELAEA
Ke2EITHEELANE
BEEE 2HBESER
MEMERECEAE - iy
FTHEACHEAE mA
& B bt B A B sE2(h)()
ﬁﬁzizié\ﬁa HIJLW%IH%
PHENEAREEHE

BBTA
EEEBEEKRATARSNOKRX

2z

= IER

78 B &R & B R RR
EM‘“EF&EM‘WQEO

MEFREBZHBEERR

HARERBREIEER T

REEBERARZRIMIHED
REHRARNEECHBE
TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK

105



NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4T A

B M 1% R Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

()

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income
and other net (loss)/gain” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12
months ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

J an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

(iif) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(1)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effect.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping;

. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no
contractual obligation for the Group to deliver cash
or other financial assets or the Group has the sole
discretion to defer payment of distribution and
redemption of principal amount indefinitely are
classified as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade
and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

1)

(k)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The following intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- trademark 5 to 10 years

- computer system 2 to 3 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Development and formation costs
The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site
which will be completed for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
burial plots.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

0

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones
is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is
determined by an apportionment of the total
development costs (see note 2(k)) attributable to
completed but unsold units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

BEEBR (&)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(i).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to

identify indications that the following assets may

be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an

impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments;

- interests in associates; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (that is a CGU). A
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset is allocated to an individual CGU if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
CGU if otherwise.

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment |osses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, every three months. At
the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE - —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

e

(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(p) Share-based payments

(i)

Share options granted to employees
The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEtBR(E)

(Continued)
(p) Share-based payments (Continued) (p) UBRMAEE SR (E)
(i) Share options granted to employees () BRTIESEZHEKE

(ii)

(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Share options granted to non-
employees

Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date
the counterparty renders the services. The
fair values of services received are recognised
as expenses (unless the services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

FEEBE(&K)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(f), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

(s)

G e s

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

ERTBE (&)

WS (&)
FKEEF&EHZ Wt (&)

WAL TR — e 8

EHREEEEE . 06

52 BT HE B R 49 AL &
?EJ% S T B B ] R R

¢ RAREENOE FFR
B IR 18 3 5 A K o /R
40 PR AL O R 25 ¢

s AKEHEBEHNELEIIRE
A—HEE MIZBREE
RAEERBAOBHEP
]

e AKEMEMNERESL
EAKEEEARAZN
EE BAKEHLESD
EREBHONNRAEEA
58 B RITEVRER o

DA SR TP ERFE R
an 3Kk AR 75 1 i) 4% 1O B ) B AR

7
e

BHEERARBERRAEP B
BAKECEENE m A RS
WER AR B AR () R K B
fRtF) ERBEEF KRS
HEREORAHRE-HR - JE
Hﬁzéﬁlﬁ?ﬁﬁ‘élﬂﬁzﬁﬂﬂgﬁ’ﬂ?ﬁi
RN MRFHFEEBEE
REMNAE ,Hﬂi'iﬁ

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER

129



130

NQtes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4T A

B M 1% R Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good
or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided
by the other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentive, granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets
or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of non-PRC operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

BEEBR (&)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued) (v)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BETBE (E)
(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting (w) 2 EPHRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Company’s executive
directors, which are the chief operating decision
maker of the Company for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3.

HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 - Related Rent

Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(a)

e

G e s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or services lines is as
follows:

Disaggregation of revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021

W 25 & 53 &R & ¥

(a) W=D IF
BEBZEMmARBEES DN

KERFEHZHEZDHFN
%
—E-_-f#+ A

# £
=t -HULFE KD F

Stem cells and

immunocytes
Funeral and other
services businesses Total
BABR
G4
Bl MR REMES Eh)
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT AREFR
Major products and services IRERRRE
Funeral services and cremation services provided RNEEEE 7 BEE LBERESR L
in funeral parlous and funeral service centres 124 2 BERS LA BRE
under the Group's management 69,561 - 69,561
Funeral arangement and related consultancy  BEZHRIAEZARE
services 2,342 - 2,342
Sales of burial plots and tombstones HEEMRER 28 - 228
Provision of advisory service on stem cellsand ~ REBMIAR &R ABH ARG
immunocytes - 733 733
Sales of biotechnical machineries and other ENRREERANEFERHE
electronics products - - -
72131 733 72,864
Timing of revenue recognition W3 HeRR e
At a point in time RE-BHY 5,532 - 5,532
Over time RER R 66,599 733 67,332
72,131 733 72,864
Primary geographical market IEHENIS
The PRC EF 69,561 73 70,294
Taiwan =) 1,450 - 1,450
Hong Kong i 892 - 892
Vietnam i3 28 - 228
72,131 733 72,864
FEEREBERAT —E-—FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WZEHHBEHE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) W=k (&)

Bz -FT-FF+ -4
= — ALt EE WA

Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020

Stem cells and

immunocytes
Funeral and other
services businesses Total
El
SRANR
BERE REMER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Major products and services TEERRRE
Funeral services and cremation services provided  AEBER 2 AR REERHTL
in funeral parlous and funeral service centres 24t 2 BERE K AL RE
under the Group's management 60,961 - 60,961
Funeral arrangement and related consultancy ~ BEZH RREHARE
services 2,290 - 2,290
Sales of burial plots and tombstones HEEMRER 435 - 435
Provision of advisory service on stem cellsand  FREERAR R RAREHRE
immunocytes - 356 356
Sales of biotechnical machineries and other EMMBERRAMEFEREE
electronics products - 4,298 4,298
63,686 4,654 68,340
Timing of revenue recognition gt el o
At a point in time RE-BEY 4,853 4,298 9,151
Over time RERED 58,833 3% 59,189
63,686 4,654 68,340
Primary geographical market TERETS
The PRC s 60,961 356 61,317
Taiwan 52 1,802 346 2,148
Hong Kong &b 488 3,952 4,440
Vietnam il 435 - 435
63,686 4,654 68,340

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

Funeral services and cremation services

The Group offers services of planning funeral
arrangement and interment, organising and hosting
of the funeral. Revenue from funeral services is
recognised when services are provided. Except for
sales of prepaid funeral services packages offered
to individuals, payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the funeral services
are provided. Sales of prepaid funeral services
packages is sales of funeral services based on a
contract prior to death occurring. The payment is
due when the contract of prepaid funeral services
packages is signed, which gives rise to contract
liabilities at the inception of a contract, until the
revenue recognised when the funeral service is
offered. Details of the prepaid funeral services
packages contract are disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Funeral arrangement and related consultancy
services

Revenue from funeral arrangement and related
consultancy services is recognised when services are
provided. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the funeral arrangement
and related consultancy services are provided.

Sales of burial plots and tombstones

Revenue from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones is recognised when the control of
burial plots and tombstones is transferred to the
customer, being when the right to use of burial
plots and tombstones has been passed. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the burial plots and
tombstones.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

WamBkaEBEE (&)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts
with customers (Continued)

Provision of advisory service on stem cells and
immunocytes

Revenue from advisory service on stem cells
and immunocytes is recognised when services
are performed. Advisory service on stem cells
and immunocytes is advisory service based on a
contract prior to the advisory service. Payment
of the transaction price is due when the contract
of advisory service is signed, which gives rise to
contract liabilities at the inception of a contract,
until the revenue recognised when the advisory
service is rendered.

Sales of biotechnical machineries and other
electronic products

Revenue from sales of biotechnical machineries
and other electronic products is recognised when
the control of such products is transferred to
the customer, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specific location.
Transportation and handling activities that occur
before customers obtain control are considered
as fulfilment activities. Following the delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risk of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 90
days upon delivery.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied
performance obligations on the above mentioned
revenue, have original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines and geography. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally
to the executive directors of the Company (the
“Executive Directors”), which are the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

W RkTEBEL (&)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group had below two reportable segments:

(A)

Funeral services: Provision of funeral related
service, including arrangement services and
related consultancy services, provision of
funeral and cremation services and sale of
burial plots and tombstones; and

Stem cells and immunocytes and other
business: Provision of advisory service on
stem cells and immunocytes and sales of
biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products.

The segment information provided
to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is
as follows:

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Executive Directors
monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible asset and current assets with
the exception of certain financial assets
measured at FVTPL and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, contract liabilities, lease liabilities,
amounts due to directors, amount due to
a shareholder, provisions and current tax
liabilities attributable to the activities of
the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wiz RSEEE (E)

as follows: (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

Segment results represent the earnings and
loss of each segment without allocation of
fair value gain on investment properties,
fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets
measured at FVTPL, (impairment losses)/
reversal of impairment losses recognised
under ECL model on financial assets, other
income and other net (loss)/gain, unallocated
head office and corporate expenses, finance
costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)
(A) The segment information provided A) BZ-—ZF - —#F
to the Executive Directors for the —F = 5_‘5 F+ = A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WX RS EHEF (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) D EBER (&)

(A) The segment information provided (A) éé —E- —FFK
to the Executive Directors for the E-_FEFfZFH
reportable segments for the years _-/- A iF F Z 12 #
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is FHTEZENTRE
as follows: (Continued) 5 2B 5 2 E R W

T (#&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities DHEE BERAE
(Continued) (&)

For the purpose of assessment by the
Executive Directors, the finance costs on
bank borrowings and lease liabilities were
not included in segment results while the
bank borrowings and lease liabilities have
been included in the segment liabilities.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive
Directors are provided with segment
information concerning interest income and
expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments,
revaluation deficit on freehold land and
buildings, fair value gain/(loss) on financial
assets measured at FVTPL, (impairment
losses)/reversal of impairment losses
recognised under ECL model on financial
assets, depreciation and amortisation,
income tax expense, and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARA

(Continued)

(b)

B1 75 R B &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = =

=

Segment information (Continued)

(A) The segment information provided
to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is

as follows: (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 is set out below:

(b)

=G+ ASt+—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(A)

B EBER (4

WamBkaEBEE (&)

B

)
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‘%:;ﬁi—iﬁ
—E-_FF+ A

_+ H i F EZ 12 &
THITEFWITRE
o EH 5 B E R W
T (#&)
DEELE
(&
ERREE_—_T - —fF
EZEZZFF+ = A
Z+—H¢¢F2ﬁﬁ
7 B K5 E o 88 & IR M
WITESRHEZ2AEEH
ARED 2 ERHT
LU

EERAE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BLEE
2021 2020
ot s St <3
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Funeral and other
services business Total services business Total
E4RE LR
SE4R SRR
BERE  REMEE 4 BERE  REMEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIR  ARETR AREFR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
Segment revenue Sk
- Funeral services and cremation -REEERIRERR
sevices provided in funeral parlous and @1& Righ L iR ’ﬁZ
funeral service centres under the Group’s management BERERALR 69,561 - 69,561 60,961 - 60,961
- Funeral arrangement and related "ﬁ%zﬁ&* EEE] ﬁF*?
consultancy services 2312 - 232 2,290 - 2,290
~ Sales of burial plots and tombstones - BEEHRER 28 - 28 435 - 435
- Provision of advisory sevice -RERBRREEER
on stem cells and immunocytes % s 733 33 - 356 3%
- Sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronics - EREEER
products EMEFEREE - - - - 4,98 4,298
2131 33 72,864 63,686 4,654 68,340
Segment operating profit/(loss) 3,0M (520) 2,551 9,598 (366) 9,232
Other items:
Amounts included in the measure of segment operating profit/(loss):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(6,550) (226) (6,776) (9,462) (120) (9,582)
Amortisation of intangible assets (578) = (578) = = =
Loss on written off of prepayment (12,013) - (12,013) - - -
Amounts not included in the measure of segment operating profit/loss)
but regularly reported to Executive Directors:
Interest income 561 1 562 208 1 209
Finance costs (2,131) (49) (2,180 (2,502) (8) (2,510)
Revaluation deficit on freehold land and buildings
(158) - (158) - - -
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets measured as FVTPL
340 - 340 (32) = (32)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment losses
recognised under ECL model on trade and g
other receivables, net E‘Hﬁ /mﬁiﬂﬁ@ et (2,566) - (2,566) 1,242 = 1,282
Income tax expense FEBRAY (2,888) (14) (2,902) (1,875) ) (1,883)
Other: ﬁ‘rﬁ :
Additions to non-current segment assets REERBABEE 3,440 463 3,903 3871 879 4,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
(A) The segment information provided

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is
as follows: (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

There are no inter-segment sales during the
year (2020: Nil).

F-—F1-A=T-RLEE

=

W R 3 EEHR ()
(b) ZEBEF (&)
A) BE=-F=-—-—FF
—E-FFL=F
=t —HULFEREHR

THITEFNATHKE
7 BB 5 B & A

T (#)

DEEE -BEEKAE
(&
AEEHELHMBEE
(ZE_TF E)-

The following table presents segment assets TERHEINR T —F
and segment liabilities of the Group's k—ZZ_ZTF+=H
reportable segments as at 31 December 2021 =+ —HASEEAT®RSE
and 2020: DEH S EREE Ko A
BE
01 2020
ka2 CREE
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Funeral and other
services businesses Total sernices husinesses Totd
&R
S50
RERE  RRMER it BERE &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
AREIR  ARBIR  ARBFR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
Segment assets AYEE 34,531 4160 238,697 3875 5739 244,495
Segment liablties P8k 135,452 6,048 141,500 141836 708 148878
FEEGEEERAR —T=—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wiz RSEEE (E)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment (B) A/I#EDH WKz 1A
revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities w BEE-BERAM
and other items HEZ#H K

2021 2020
—EC--& —EC-TE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E ARETR AREFT
Revenue g
Total reportable segment revenue 7] ¥ & % 2P Uk a5 0 58
and consolidated revenue Kbz e W 72,864 68,340
Profit or loss B
Total reportable segment FEEINREFPEEZ
profit derived from Group's AT E 9 B0 a A R R
external customers 2,551 9,232
Fair value gain on investment REMEXFERR
properties 16 711 101
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial ¥R AFEFFABZTE
assets measured at FVTPL Z,ﬁﬁkﬁgﬁﬁ TE
Wz (B8) 19 811 (32)
Unallocated other income and AABEMBA REAM
other net (loss)/gain (BB),/ W358 1,242 2,314
Net (impairment losses)/reversal of A T &BZBHEE
impairment losses recognised BREENIET 2
under ECL model on BHERCRERSRE),/
WERERREE
— Trade receivables - B SN IE 6(d),
34(a) (400) (7)
— Other receivables - E th e YR IE 6(d),
34(a) (2,397) 1,233
Finance costs B E A 6(a) (2,182) (2,521)
Unallocated head office and AOBBBRAAMAE
corporate expenses (15,109) (8,841)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before 4R A B AT (E518) /&
taxation (14,773) 1,479
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

S '+ | —
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W R 3 EBE#E ()
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) D EBER (&)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment (B) A/ EDH WKz 12
revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities s ﬁ/z EBERAM
and other items (Continued) HH %M (&)

2021 2020
—E--f —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Assets &E
Total reportable segment assets ﬁﬁﬁ%/\*ﬁﬁﬁm (= 238,697 244,495
Unallocated head office and AN BIARREEE
corporate assets
— Cash and bank balances -Be MRS 15,041 26,571
- Finandial assets measured - RATEF AR
at FVTPL AEBZHMBEE 4,095 -
— Other deposits and prepayments - E 4% & & F8 1+ U8 3,706 3,851
- Others - Hfth 2,315 2,697
Consolidated total assets REREEMAE 263,854 277,614
Liabilities BfR
Total reportable segment liabilities A $R&E D& EEHE 141,500 148,878
Unallocated head office and APRBBRATAME
corporate liabilities
— Amount due to a shareholder - —BRR A 11,390 11,701
— Other payables and accruals - H R RIE R
FERTHIR 3,921 4,587
- Others - Hfth 1,455 722
Consolidated total liabilities meERGRRE 158,266 165,888
Other items HiIEHE
Year ended 31 December
#EtZA=t+-BLEE
200 2020
Z§z-% 3085
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Consolidated Funeral and other Consolidated
services businesses  Unallocated total  services businesses  Unallocated total
EHnR ZARR
f%4R SRR
RERE  RAMER FHE i BERE  REWLER AR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
Other items:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (6,550) (226) (962) (7,738) (9.462) (120) (846) (10,428)
Amortisation of intangible assets (578) - - (578) = - - -
Loss on written off of prepayment (12,013) - - (12,013) - - - -
Interest income 561 1 25 587 208 1 1 210
Finance costs H@éﬁﬂ (2.131) (49) 0] @18) (50 ®) (1) (2,521)
Revaluation deficit on freehold land and buildings KA £ £ R i (158) - - (158) - - - -
Fair value gain/(oss) on financial assets RATE
measured as FVTPL AFER 340 - m 811 (32) - - (32)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment losses & 5 R 2 ft &1
recognised under ECL model on trade and };’”IETZE f
other receivables, net 8 (2,566) - (231) (2,797) 1,282 = (16) 1,226
Income tax expense ﬁfﬁiﬁ ﬁi (2,888) (14) - (2902 (1,879 ® (1,538) (3421)
Additions to non-current segment assets FEFROANER 3,440 463 368 4m 3871 879 144 4,894

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(c)

Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group's revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets, intangible assets, interests in associates,
goodwill, other deposits and deposits for hire
of funeral parlours and funeral services centres
(“Specified Non-Current Assets”).

The geographical location of customers refers to
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical locations
of Specified Non-Current Assets are based on the
physical location of the assets under consideration.
In the case of intangible assets, interests in
associates and goodwill, it is based on the location
of the operation to these assets are allocated.

(c)

Revenue from
external customers
(by customer location)

WamBkaEBEE (&)

ih & & K
ATHEBOAEERE IR
BEP W R(NVAEEZY
¥ BERREB BEME &
FAEEE BREE Ny
NFEHER BB HMkd
LEAEEERBEERE DO
2HRE([BEFRDEE])
ZHEER DN

BEEZMEWR T EREH®RE
HARE an 2 M [ o 5 E IR
PEELMEMENRBEE
FRERUEREE ﬁ%ﬂ
WEE REERARNER
ﬁ%’%%&ﬁ%&%éFz
X REE-

Specified
Non-Current Assets
(by physical location)

REMRERZH R REFRYEE
(BERBERS) (RERLEES)
For the year ended As at
31 December 31 December
BE+-A=t+-HLEE R+=ZA=+-8
2021 2020 2021 2020
—¥--§ C—ET-ZE Z¥C-§  —Z-EF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARBT:T
The PRC HE 70,294 61,317 37,688 40,829
Taiwan ag 1,450 2,148 33,073 29,250
Hong Kong 6 892 4,440 60 203
Vietnam e 228 435 59 M
72,864 68,340 70,880 70,393
Information about major customers FTEEFEHN

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidatea Financial Statements
4T B s < MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZE T -—F+ - A=+—HIFE

5. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET 5. HttlARE#M (BE)
(LOSS)/GAIN W% iR ER

2021 2020
—B-—% —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFIT
Interest income on bank deposits |ITERZHEMWA 587 210
Total interest income on financial assets X $HAK AN & 2
measured at amortised cost EEEZHE
WA s 58 587 210
Sundry income HMIBA 846 287
Rental income from investment properties & &% 2 & WA 221 265
Government grants ISR 178 712
Revaluation deficit on freehold land and sk A W+ BT~
buildings (note 14(c)(ii)) B EEA
(B 5E14(c)i) ) (158) =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEWE  BE L& E
equipment Z BB (35) =
Gain on lease modification HEER s W 29 =
(Provision)/written back of provision BRAG AR AS (B 4E)
for cost of service (note 30) BB (KEE30) (454) 399
Reversal of impairment losses on 6] # 78 - g R E A 18
prepayment - 784
Loss on written off of prepayment MEETE I 2
(note 23(e)) &8 (MiEE23(e)) (12,013) -
Net exchange gain/(loss) FE 5 Uzt ( Eﬁ?ﬁ it 28 (343)
(10,771) 2,314
6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. BR¥im (B54R) &A
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREA (BB Jaf g mg,/
(crediting) the followings: (5FA) NP BB EBET:
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-THF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
(a) Finance costs (a) BEERA
Interest on lease liabilities HEGEZFE 2,077 2,366
Interest on bank borrowings fETTfﬁEZﬂ 105 155
Total interest expenses on financial I IR A FEETA
liabilities not at FVTPL BmsMBaE
BB 2,182 2,521
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRA (BIEEE
emoluments) M )
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TEAREM
=pl 27,251 21,332
Contributions to defined TE R FGR KA &)
contribution retirement plans B 1,238 258)

28,489 A1, SOl

TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK 149
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
6. LOSS/(PROFIT) BEFORE TAXATION 6. Fﬁ*ﬁ BEEE (& F)

150

(Continued) (%#8)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT
(c) Depreciation and amortisation (c) &R #H
Right-of-use assets (note 15) FRAEEE (MiE15) 5,031 5,076
Property, plant and equipment W BB NEE
(note 14) (M5E14) 2,707 5,352
Intangible assets (note 17) EREE (MFE17) 578 -
8,316 10,428
(d) Other items (d) HmIEH
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN &
— audit services —FET RS 954 711
— non-audit services — TR R 207 -
Cost of inventories FEKAK 6,871 10,496
Rental income from investment EMERS KA
properties less direct outgoing WEERX
of RMB nil (2020: RMB nil) /\Eﬁé@fc
AE@%TE) (221) (265)
Lease payments for property, W BB K&
plant and equipment not MEEE
included in the measurement (T AHES
of lease liabilities: BzitE) &K
minimum lease payments MER R 240 257
Impairment losses recognised B 5 EWRIE 2
under ECL model on trade TEH{EE B
receivables, net AT 2
(note 34(a)) B2 ERRE
B EFER
(Mf3E34(a)) 400 7
Impairment losses/(reversal of H fh fE W R IE 2
impairment losses) recognised BHEEER
under ECL model on other BRIBETZ
receivables, net (note 34(a)) B R
VERIENSEi-V
CREEE
B %) 558
(M 3E34(a)) 2,397 (1,233)
2,797 (1,226)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. HZEAEBRZHAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
—E=-—% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEF T
Current tax BVEARRIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (note 29(a)) RIS
(K3E29(a)) 2,888 1,883
Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 29(a)) FHENSEH (H7129)) 14 -
PRC withholding tax (note 29(a)) P EITERR (FI5E29(a)) - 1,538
Total #Et 2,902 3,421
Notes: B 5E -
(@)  Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong (@ WBEEBINESHOMREHFER

Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax
of the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on
the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit above
HK$2 million.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Independent State of
Samoa (”"Samoa”) and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
for both years.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25% (2020: 25%) in
accordance with the Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on Enterprises Income Tax (/FZ A R H ME
¥ FT1§Bi)X) except that Chongging Xizhou Funeral
Service Company Limited (“Chongqging Xizhou"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%)
in accordance with FAEBARRBEREMBHEE, which
is applied to Chongging Xizhou since January 2011 and,
provided that the conditions precedent to entitlement of
preferential tax rate are fulfilled by Chongging Xizhou
in each of subsequent years, the preferential tax rate
can be applied to Chongqing Xizhou up to December
2020. Pursuant to <87 3E 48 78 2B A B B I S FT1S A
BRAA%) (Announcement No. 23 of the Ministry of
Finance in 2020) issued in April 2020, Chongging Xizhou
was subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2021 to 30 December 2030, when the annual
revenue from the encouraged business exceeded 60% of
Chongging Xizhou total revenue in a fiscal year.

RHE AEREREREH2ES
P TT 2 4 B ¥ 1528.25% 5T FE - T R
B2EEB T 2% 1% 16.5%5
R ARFAEMBHFESREREZ
SEEBHEANBEERFE B R
16 5% e At - a8EREEE

BOEBFESHIRGHERR R A
méfﬁéﬁnﬁﬁﬁ&n% i %8
B2EEB NG ERBE S A
16.5% °

HRAERBE—"Z T+ A
St HUEFERBEEBELM
o] FE AR TR A - BRI AR H BB A
G-

AREE RN EFEGHAZNRES
HE BEETBVE([EET])R
REREAES ([RBRAEHS])A
SRR Z AT A IA o

‘$l@ L2 WB AR BREDE
HANE D EFTE m&&x%(_
7_7¢ 25% ) 2 EEFTE mfﬁ
BEAQRAZEHEZENBAR
E%%E%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁé%
BEDAREASAHAELEMS
REBIZIS% (ZE-ZTF:15%)
CEEHERAT MEBERRE
BT —F—ARERREEH
A mEESRAREASFEEE
KREEEBBERRZEREHS AIE
%%HT EEAEERERE-Z
TEF+_A-RBER-_ZT_ZTF
@ﬁ%%m<%wﬁf Nk
TEMSHRBEMNAE) (I
ANE[2020]523%%) 8 T — —
E—f—HARE_ZT=ZTEF+_A
=+ HHHE MR —EYREEE
%%E%éﬁ@ﬁ%%%i%kﬁ
i@ H U A #960% @ Bl 5 55 £5 & 7]
ZEHEEEFHEIS%

FEEHEMARAT —B--FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)  Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”),
a direct subsidiary of the Company, Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“Bau De”) and Bu Lao Lin Limited (“BLL"), both
of which are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2020:
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan.
No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as Bau Shan has accumulated tax losses brought
forward which exceed the estimated assessable profits for
the year, and Bau De and BLL have no assessable profits
for both years.

(e) Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2020:
20%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision
for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao
Son Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for
both years.

(f) PRC withholding tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits earned
after 1 January 2008.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

7.

GERBRZAEH (R)

B (#5)

(d) ALFEEMBARELLEGRK
BOBARAE ([EW]) RARE®R

RREZEMBARERESEERD
BERAR ([EE]) RTEMERA

Al ([TEMR]) BREBEEEMESHEE
MEMAREE RERFEFN
17% (ZE=ZFF :17% ) BME &
EMBH -BREILANFEEAR
MR HIBEIEBaTEAERTE
F -AEERTEMNRMEFTEY
EERF AN WHERAELE
FRSBivE L 4 -

(&) ARAzHEIFZEEBEWEAR
AIELAEGEEAER AR ([E WL
475 |) B Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa
Corporation ([HLV Duc Hoa ] )781R
BUEEREZRERERET ZER
Bt M 1L20% (ZZEZFF:20%)
CHEHNERCEMSH AR
£ |l 4 % & HLV Duc Hoak R fi &
EHEERTEF Eﬂﬁﬂﬁi?ﬁ@ﬁtﬁ
EMRSHELRE

f RPEBEKIHARMEGIMNEESE
ERA-ZEENF— A —HERR
i A B A% B FE IR 10% H) Bl R 80 4
EFEFIFL o

BERAREAEZAEHRAX LS
i (ER) radz ik :

2021 2020

—g-—% —EFF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARBEFT

(Loss)/profit before taxation BrELAT (E51) /8 F (14,773) 1,479
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation, % #8 B85 75 al S A #E & A

calculated at the rates applicable to (E18) mAE A

(loss)/profit in the tax jurisdictions HREGGRE R (EE)

concerned S m At E 2 B g (2,944) (111)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR R S 2 B s & 3,590 2,107

Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBAZ TG E (384) (787)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIEEE 2 B

TE 2,640 674

PRC withholding tax TR - 1,538

Actual tax expense BERFHIERHR 2,902 3,421
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G e s

I\‘/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BIEEB (R aEH) F£383(1)ME K&
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (PRI (BBEESHMEER)HAFD
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about F2H B EATHBEZESHIWM
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: ™
2021
—g--§
Retirement
Salaries and benefit
allowances Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EENE Fees (note i) bonuses contributions Total
HFeREH BRAEH
e GED) Bt HEL:EN Eohy
Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARETR ARETR ARETT AREFR ARETR
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu") ARB R (T81%E]) 3,432 680 48 - 4,160
Mr. Xu Jianchun (“Mr. Xu") u’ﬁi%ﬁi [SF54]) 1,244 - - - 1,244
Dr. Xu Qiang ("Dr. Xu") raflT ([fREL]) (i) 46 S = = 46
Non-executive director FRTEE
Dr. Xu Qiang (“Dr. Xu") rEBt([%EL) (il 4 = = - 4
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ("Mr. Chai") ~ BRELAE ([ExE]) 58 - - - 58
Mr. Sun Fei ("Mr. Sun") BREE (THRE]) 50 - - - 50
Mr. Wang Jun (“Mr. Wang") IHRE(TTEE]D (i 50 - - - 50
4,884 680 48 - 5,612
2020
i3
Retirement
Salaries and benefit
allowances  Discretionary scheme
Name of directors EENE Fees (note i) bonuses  contributions Total
FeREt BINER
we GED; MiEEL TEIf @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu 254 3,549 929 78 - 4,556
Mr. Xu HE 1,334 - - - 1,334
Non-executive director EHTEE
Dr. Xu BT 53 - - - 53
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai BELE 62 - - - 62
Mr. Sun Brs 53 - - - 53
Mr. Wang B 53 - - - 53
5,104 929 78 ] 6,111
REEGEEERAT —B-—E£EHK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to the
executive director are generally emoluments paid or
payables in respect of those persons’ other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

(ii) Redesignated as executive director and the chief executive
officer of the Company on 22 January 2021.

(iii) Resigned on 4 March 2022.

No director of the Company waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the directors did
not hold any share options under the Company's share
option scheme. The details of the share options are
disclosed in note 42.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2020: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of
the emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
individuals are as follows:

EEHWN(8)
3 -

i) XNHRTEENHFS RHREY
FE—RDBINHEANZEAL
HRARBREWNBRARNEEEH
FriR e H b AR TS VBN S -

(i RZZBEZ—F—A=-+=-HFAMTAE
ARRAMITEEREFEHNTE °

iy MN-ZTB-__F=AWBEBT-

RMEFE AARMEEFTREX
[ B PR 3R AL ] 3 BN K SR 1B R L 4 1)
EfA] & = X 3k B T 3 BN AE & A
KRMARKE R 2 2/ SRR
BAEE-

RZE-_—FR_ZF_ZTF+_A
=+ —H EFVEFERQFBER
BETEETMNERE - BREZFIS
B FE42 5 55 ©

mEHAL

hEEaHFALEEMmE (2%
FWMB)ARAES HF @MEAW
HSRBE -EH=R(ZF=F
Z)RBFALZHMERNT

2021 2020

—g-—% —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREFTT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e MR EMET 3,587 1,014

Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 60 33
Contributions to retirement benefit RIKEFIF B K

scheme 15 29

3,662 1,076
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10.

1.

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. BEEH AL (E)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals =Z(ZE_EF: :%)E%%_%FA
with the highest emoluments are within the following T2 EHMNF TS EE
band:
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECETE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to £ %1,000,0007% 7T
approximately RMB829,601 (BERHNARY
(2020: RMB889,162)) 829,6017T
ZEZTF AR
889,1627T) ) 0 3
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ 7t £2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB829,601 B 7T (HHERK
to RMB1,659,203) (2020: RMB889,162 AR#829,601LE
to RMB1,778,325) AR ¥51,659,2037C
(ZE=TF:
AR¥E889,16270 &
AR®1,778,3257L) ) 3 -
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to ﬁAﬁﬁﬂiVW $€EITEE4HWT£T—J_
any of the three (2020: three) highest paid individuals as Z(ZEZEF ZZ)BaH AT
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as Ak \Iﬂﬁﬁ XA EHMAIE A A

SR AIA K £ B 2 ) - ok fr AR
B -

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ 10. E2 @z (FX)
(EXPENSE)

compensation for loss of office for both years.

There was no tax effect on each component of the other REEFEEAN oL AL 2
comprehensive income/(expense) for both years. mkE (AX)XEBBETE-
LOSS PER SHARE 1. BRREBHE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREXEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on BREAREBEDREBERR G
the loss attributable to owners of the Company BAE(LEEAR®9,872,000
of RMB9,872,000 (2020: RMB2,974,000) and the T(ZE_ZFTF: AR
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary 2,974,0007T) R F A BITE
shares (2020: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue =Rl % ﬂ? ¥ $1742,500,000
during the year. BR(ZEZZ ¢ 742,500,000
HX EHX) n-I—
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEFE
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, B2 -G _ZE-_FTF
there was no dilutive potential ordinary share TZA=T—BILEFE LE
outstanding. Therefore, the diluted loss per share is BTHEINESEE L AR
the same as the basic loss per share. I It EREEEBENGHES
IREAREEAER -

TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries
are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme administrated and operated
by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC and
Vietnam subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to scheme based on certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of all qualifying employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and
Vietnam respectively. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered
and operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan
for employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme,
the employers are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 6% of the employees’ relevant income.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan managed by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer)
and its employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earning as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
retirement benefit schemes beyond the contribution
described above.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% Y

T+ _A=t+—HILEE
14. YE - -BERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

=)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

(a)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
BHAFE
L]:¥4
KAk FH-RER
RigF BEKE  HAZHRE RE EBIR Ehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTL  ARETR ARETR  ARBTR ARET:
Cost or valuation
As at 1 January 2020 Z£-A-A 25,307 16,174 15,089 4,446 1,181 62,197
Exchange adjustments ER%% (870) (154) (199) (92) (4 (1,319)
Additions HE 2,342 137 1,089 145 3,713
Transfer from construction in progress EHEER T - 927 - - (927) =
Disposals HeE - = (5) = = (5)
Surplus on revaluation ERH 279 - - - - 279
Less: Elimination of accumulated W REHEHE
depreciation (200) - - - - (200)
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-FF+-A=t+-A 24,516 19,289 15,022 5443 395 64,665
Representing: B
Cost AR - 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 40,149
Valuation - 2020 - —2-%F 24,516 - - - - 24,516
24,516 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 64,665
As at 1 January 2021 24516 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 64,665
Exchange adjustments 734 103 68 (16) - 839
Additions - - 288 463 552 1,303
Disposals - - (34) (1,687) - (1,721)
Surplus on revaluation, net 3,546 - - - - 3,546
Less: Elimination of accumulated W RHTEHE
depreciation (457) - - - - (457)
As at 31 December 2021 RZB--FtZA=1-H 28,339 19,392 15,344 4,203 W 68225
Representing: B
Cost 22N = 19,392 15,344 4,203 947 39,886
Valuation - 2021 fhE-—F-—% 28,339 - 28,339
28,339 19,392 15,344 4,203 %7 68,225
FEEREBERAT —E-—FFR
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AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - & B & &%

(&)

(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#EER
BHAFE
L7
KAEHE Ri-RER
ThREF BERE  BAERE RE ERIR foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AREFR AREFRT ARETR ARETR
Accumulated depreciationand ~ RiHTEREEHE
impairment losses
As at 1 January 2020 WZZ-%F-HF-A - 13,569 1,968 4,243 = 29,780
Exchange adjustments ERAE = (134) (178) (92) = (404)
Charge for the year REEXM 200 3,447 1,659 46 - 5,352
Elimination on disposals SR 3 = = () = - ()
Elimination on revaluation B HE (200) - = = = (200)
As at 31 December 2020 WZEZFF+-A=1-H - 16,882 13,444 4,197 - 34,523
As at 1 January 2021 W-Z--%-A—-H - 16,882 13,444 4,197 - 34,523
Exchange adjustments ERRE = 93 53 (16) = 130
Charge for the year KEEYH 457 1,273 725 252 = 2,707
Elimination on disposals HERLHE - - (32) (1,419) = (1,451)
Elimination on revaluation ERREHE (457) - - - - (457)
As at 31 December 2021 RZB=-%+-A=1+-H - 18,248 14,190 3,014 - 35,452
Net book value REiE
As at 31 December 2021 “F--%+-A=1+-H 28,339 1,144 1,154 1,189 947 32,773
As at 31 December 2020 W-Z-Z€+-A=1+-8 24,516 2,407 1,578 1,246 395 30,142
(b) Had the revalued freehold land and buildings held (b) fWEEMFTEERZKAERE
for own use been carried at cost less accumulated T RAETF TH AR AR R FH AT
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have E7ER - BFREMESWOT:
been:
2021 2020
T_—F —E_TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBFRE  ARETFI
Freehold land and buildings BEB A2 KA ERE
held for own use T REF 19,257 18,873
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e RS R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

= —

=

—FT_HA=+—RHIFE

() MEZRAVEE

(i)

AFEER
TREZIRNHSHRER
REEEEAENAE
EMENRFE FRS
BEMBREERF13
%EIE%%E%WE
MRFERER XFER
EMEWF@W%%ﬁ
Bl A a3 A B
MABRMEREENLE
EMT

e HFEfE:RMK
—EHAEE
RFE-AERE
EXBERFTER
IR B ™5 R
EHE-

e F_EMME:MUSE
“EwmAE(HE
EEZAABRE
AB)FHERFE:
BEHAEZATER
EETRME—E
wWAE  TABR
BWABERYEMS
BIEAE2EZE
AE-

« ESERE:NE
ZHRTHEEA
B EAFME:

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEREHE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (c) MEZRAFEFE (E)
(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) RFEEL(E)
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into
R-B--%£+ZA=+-B2
ATEFENER
Fair value at 31
December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-E=-%
+-A=+-H
2ATE E-Ef E-ER E=E4R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFRT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement EEMATEGE
Freehold land and buildings KAZRIHR
- Taiwan BF-aE 26,914 - - 26,914
Buildings - The PRC BF-HE 1,425 - - 1,425
28,339 - - 28,339
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020 categorised into
KoP-BF+-A=+-82
DTEHEHEA
Fair value at
31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZFZFF
t-A=+-H
ZATE F-ER FZER £=ER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL N S ARBEFIL AREFTL
Recurring fair value measurement LEHATENE
Freehold land and buildings KAEELHR
- Taiwan BF-RE 23,124 = = 23,124
Buildings - The PRC BF-HE 1,392 - - 1,392
24,516 - - 24,516
During the years ended 31 December 2021 b"\ Eﬂz E-T-_—Fk=
and 2020, there were no transfers between T F+_-_A=+—
level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out AtFE F—[EHE—
of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise [E < fi 3 i 68 4 - JTHL
transfers between levels of fair value AFEZEXBEF=EE
hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting e REE 2 BE Z%E’\\#fi
period in which they occur. EHRATEER 2MH
LI SR ERE @S
Tﬁ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

()

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group's freehold land and buildings
held for own use as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 were revalued and the valuations
were carried out by APAC Appraisal
and Consulting Limited (“APAC"), an
independent qualified professional valuers,
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, with recent experience in the location
and category of properties being valued. The
Group's directors have discussed with APAC
on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation are performed at
each interim and annual reporting date.

Valuation techniques

HERH

() MEZRFVEE (&)

(i) R-FEELR(E)
RZEZ—FR-ZF=
TZFE+-_A=+—H" K
SEBIEERCKAE
X REFHEEMG-
RBEEZZ=-_—FR=

—EF+ZA=+—
HIEFEE HEHY L
M EYMERTERE
FlIERBEELER 2B
VEBRMGERMDE KRG
ErREBABERAR([E
RI)ET EZEFHRE
FEREBPETHE
N AEEEEEHETIK

Freehold land and buildings - Taiwan

KAZBLIRIET - A8

Direct comparison approach

BERERE

Buildings - The PRC
BT -

Direct comparison approach

BRLERE

The fair value of properties held for own use
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined
using direct comparison approach by
reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for building quality,
location of the properties and timing of
the reference transactions. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the
property-specific adjustment rate. There has
been no change on the valuation technique
during the year.

A fh AR & KA
% o
Unobservable input Range
FORREAE iR
2021 2020
-5 C-Z-EF
Property-specific adjusting rate  (30%) to 18%  (30%) to 18%
MEETHEE (30%)E18%  (30%)£18%
Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (3%) to 10%  (5%) to 10%
MERTHEE B%E0%  (5%)F10%

Re&kTBERFELSR
ZMEZAFETDER
BEELBEEE BE2%E
AR EZTE"
YTHRBEXZHZETE
E MEWH RERED
HE-NFEFEEAR
YMEHELRERB R
AEE - B E R &S
) o

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEREHE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (c) MEZRAFEFE (E)
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (ii) BEEE=/E L FEL
measurements B2E #«/
The movements during the period in R LliE=E FE
the balances of these Level 3 fair value FTEAREBNT
measurements are as follows:
Freehold
land and
buildings - Buildings -
Taiwan The PRC Total
KR EE
TR
7 1BF
-8E - thE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_TF—HF—H 23,824 1,483 25,307
Depreciation charge for the year REEFERS (170) (30) (200)
Exchange adjustments (ER RS (870) - (870)
Surplus on revaluation BhAH%
— recognised in other comprehensive R E M2 EHIKRFEER
income, included in “properties FPATESHFEE]
revaluation reserve” 340 61) 279
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+-A=+—H 23,124 1,392 24,516
At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—F—HF—H 23,124 1,392 24,516
Depreciation charge for the year AEEMERS (161) (296) (457)
Exchange adjustments B 5B 734 - 734
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation EHAR/ (Bi)
- recognised in other comprehensive - E 2 R HER
income, included in “properties A WJ%E@%%J
revaluation reserve” 3,375 329 3,704
~ recognised in profit or loss, -REHER ST AEMKA
included in other income REMEEFE
and other net loss (158) - (158)
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—%+=ZA=+—H 26,914 1,425 28,339
Effect of foreign currency exchange HiEE R Y % (2N
differences of properties held for own use are EHEZENTERER
recognised in other comprehensive income in R < H A 2 25 78
“foreign currency translation reserve”. R o
(d) The carrying amount of freehold land and buildings d RZTFE=Z—F+=H=+—

held for own use pledged as security for the
Group’s bank borrowings was RMB23,552,000
(2020: RMB20,394,000) (note 28) as at 31
December 2021.
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e MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

E-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

=

(Continued)

(e) There was no impairment loss on property, plant (e) BE_ZT-_—FR_ZT_FF
and equipment has been provided for both the +ZA=+—HILmMEFE-
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. MERDE BERRBTRE

BIEEIE -

(f) As at 31 December 2021, the Group's freehold f) R-ZE-—F+-_A=+-—
land amounting to RMB1,578,000 (2020: H AEEREBEEFEZHR
RMB1,420,000) was under trust arrangements. BEZXAEEITHABARE

1,578,000 (ZZE =T F: A
R #1,420,0007T) °
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EAESE
Prepaid Leased
leasehold lands properties Total
BERHEELH HEWME @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT AREFTT

Cost 7%

At 1 January 2020 R-E-FF—-F—H 2,804 38,476 41,280

Exchange adjustments ERICES = (36) (36)

Additions NE - 1,181 1,181

At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=+—H 2,804 39,621 42,425

At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—F—HR—H 2,804 39,621 42,425

Exchange adjustments B A = (12) (12)

Additions NG - 368 368

Lease modification HEENR = (617) (617)

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H 2,804 39,360 42,164

Accumulated depreciation EEHE%

1 January 2020 RZE-TF—-H—H 67 4,685 4,752
Charged for the year FENK 67 5,009 5,076
Exchange adjustments R = (22) (22)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-_ZF+-A=+—H 134 9,672 9,806
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-_—%—H—H 134 9,672 9,806
Charged for the year FEMK 67 4,964 5,031
Exchange adjustments B 5 = ©) )
Lease modification HEER = (302) (302)
At 31 December 2021 R-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H 201 14,325 14,526
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H 2,603 25,035 27,638
At 31 December 2020 ZEZEEFZA=1—H 2,670 29,949 32,619
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AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EHEEE (&)

Notes: B 5

(i) The Group holds lands of which the Group is the (i) rEEBRZ T (BEHRABA LM
registered owner of the lands, including the whole or part 2ER I NA S EIDE) 2 E L
of undivided share in the underlying lands. Lump sum BEAKXEBERBELAES
payments were made upfront to acquire the lands from T?E"ﬁ_)\ﬂﬂlﬁﬁiiiiﬁlfﬂ‘f*%iﬂﬁﬁ
its previous registered owners, and there are no ongoing FomAREBLM BEZIRR - BA
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease. FEELR

(i) For both years, the Group leases various offices and (i) RPMEFE AEBHEHEZERA
properties for its operation. Lease contract is entered i/SUF%%LA te B DAV EE
into for fixed term of 0.50 to 5.42 years (2020: 0.33 to )]E'].}EHHFEF&O 5085.42F (=
6.42 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual T -FTF:0.3386.42F) - FHETY
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In RERIEERER  WBETR KR
determining the lease term and assessing the length KA - REE B RFTET A
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the HHBzRER AEECEARSG
definition of a contract and determines the period for HWTERLETES LA RFNITH
which the contract is enforceable. HAf o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

e

15.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets

G e s

E_T_—F+_HA=+—HBILFE

EHESE (8)

BEREENBERE D 2EREER

by class of underlying asset is as follows: ENEREFEIMAT
2021 2020
—g-—% —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Ownership interests in leasehold FIsAHE AN T B i 8y
land carried at amortised cost ERAGIAR 2 HE i
with remaining lease term of: B
— Between 10 and 50 years - 102504 2,603 2,670
Leased properties carried at HEMERITEK AT
depreciated cost, with remaining B R®IRFH N ?O 50%
terms between 0.50 and 5.42 SARF(ZT=FHF:
years (2020: 0.33 and 6.42 years) 0.33%6.42%F) 25,035 29,949
27,638 32,619

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

AREaER cHEZRAXER

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: DT
2021 2020
—T-—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use 1ZfAREE EfERI & D 2
assets by class of underlying asset FREEETEMS
(note 6(c)): (HtzE6(c))
— Ownership interests -MHEtH oA REER
in leasehold land 67 67
— Leased properties -HEWmE 4,964 5,009
5,031 5,076
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZHME (H5E6@))
(note 6(a)) 2,077 2,366
Expense relating to short-term HEHEERBENRX
leases 223 240
Expenses relating to leases on low- EEKEEEEMLE
value of assets, excluding short- BEMmRE  T~eRE
term leases of low-value assets RKEBEERHHEE 17 17
240 25V
FEEREBERAT —E-—FFR
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B M 1% R Ml 5

/—_]_\
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EHEEE (&)
Cash outflow for leases HEBES R
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash HAGABES RER v HESLES
flows for leases comprise the following: FELAT & 18 -
2021 2020
—g-—% —EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ETTT
Within operating cash flows KEREREN (240) (257)
Within financing cash flows MEREREAN (6,480) (6,523)
(6,720) (6,780)
These amounts relate to the following: ZESHWEHINTRIBEER:
2021 2020
—g-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ETTT
Lease rental paid ENEERES (6,720) (6,780)
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. I B %E
2021 2020
—¥Z—-F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ETTT
At fair value RAYE
At 1 January n—H—H 6,531 6,622
Exchange adjustments [ERIEEE 159 (192)
Fair value adjustment to profit or loss FFABRZAFERAE 711 101
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 7,401 6,531
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16.

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment

properties

(i)  Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

] Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

J Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

G e s

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

16- E§%¥ ( 'I‘E,)
REMEZRNFEFE

(i)

nFEER
TREJIRBEPRRELE M
EEGFENETEBYMENLQTF
B BEAREEMEREEL
FI3RAFHEHIFETEN =R
ARFEEFHK - A FEFERE
BB A& 2 2 E T E B
MEABMITEREREE G
EBETHT:

. E-BfE:RANE—E
HAfEE B A TE B
REEXRBERHER
EERMSNRALH
B

s FEMfE:NAE_EH
AEB(MEEEZ A
R ABFERFE
FEHABEZABREMK
YRME-—BHAET
R AEBEARYLEM
BLEEBAE2EZHA
&

. FSEME UEENT

ARG AEFERYF
(5

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. EEME (F)

Fair value measurement of investment REMEZ A FETE ()
properties (Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) XFEER(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into

R-8--%+-R=+-B2

ATEAEDER

Fair value at 31
December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

R-%=-%

+-A=+-H
ZAFE F-Ef FZER £ZER
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement SEMATENE
Investment properties REME
- Taiwan -RE 5,899 - - 5,899
- The PRC - 1,502 - - 1,502
7,401 - - 7,401
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020 categorised into
RIBZZEF-A=+-B2
AHEHESEA

Fair value at

31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

RZZE_E

TZA=1+-A
ZATE F-ER FZER £=ER
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement BEUATEE
Investment properties RENE

- Taiwan -RE 4,993 - - 4,993
- The PRC - 1,538 - - 1,538

6,531 = = 6,531
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G e s

16.

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of

investment

properties (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no transfers between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group’'s investment properties as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 were revalued and
the valuations were carried out by APAC, an
independent qualified professional valuers with
recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. The Group’s directors have
discussed with APAC on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

16. IREWME (§)
REWE 2N FEFE (&)

(i)

(ii)

RFEER (&)
REE-_ZT-_—FR_ZT_F
F+-_A=+—HLEFE &F
—EHEE-ZEsoETEESR.
NEEAF-EXEE-EHE
HoAEEZBKR BN BEH
RKAFEEBHR 2HEHIBEHES
WREBEER-

AEBZRENER T —
FR-_F-_FF+ A= +—
FEETEMGR -HEABL
ﬁ%%@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ
A EYRAEN RBERAR
HEELER ESEATHAREF
EHREAHETHER A&
@é%aﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ@ﬁ&
KAEER

EEE=ZFE L FHEITIEZ
g

Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
fHERH FOHEHAE #E
2021 2020
—¥--§ e
Freehold land - Taiwan Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (20%) t0 30%  (25%) to 10%

KAERLTH - RE BREEBE
Land and buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach
THREF - E BERHBE

The fair value of investment properties is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for location and size of the
properties. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the property-specific adjusting
rate. There has been no change on the valuation
technique during the year.

NEETREX (20%)F30%  (25%)Z10%

Property-specific adjusting rate~ (3%) to 10%  (5%) to 10%

NEETREE B%)E10%  (5%E10%
WEMEZAFEDEREE

HLBEEE E2ZAHER
MEZME URDEZRE
b Jo T AE 1F A B o & F{E AT
EEABYEARBLERIEM

PN N

B AN FE - E R ML E

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. L EME (F)
Fair value measurement of investment REWMEZ2ATFHETE (8)

properties (Continued)

(iii) As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment
properties amounting to RMB5,899,000
(2020: RMB4,993,000) were held under trust

(iii) " — T -_—F+-_A=+—
B AEEREEALHFEE
ZIEWE B ARES,899,000

arrangements. T(ZZEZFF: AR
4,993,0007T) °
(iv) Fair value adjustment on investment properties (iv) BEMELATENFABERNGS

is recognised in the line item “Fair value gain BEahkEMmr2Elk=mie [
on investment proporties” on the face of the EWMEZATERR] —ERA
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other R o

comprehensive income.

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B & &E

Computer
Trademark system Total
(5L ElRSR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Cost B
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEF—H—H 20 1,832 1,852
Exchange adjustments B 56, 58 B (1) (47) (48)
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+=ZA=+—H 19 1,785 1,804
At 1 January 2021 RZTE=—F—H—H 19 1,785 1,804
Addition NE - 2,600 2,600
Exchange adjustments FE X AT - 38 38
At 31 December 2021 R-E—_—F
+-A=+—8 19 4,423 4,442
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H 18 1,832 1,850
Exchange adjustments T H & (1) (47) (48)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZTF
+=ZA=+—8H 17 1,785 1,802
At 1 January 2021 R-E-_—F—H—H 17 1,785 1,802
Charged for the year FEMR - 578 578
Exchange adjustments M 2 - 38 38
At 31 December 2021 RITEZ—%F
+=ZA=+—H 17 2,401 2,418
Net book value REE({E
At 31 December 2021 N=Z|=-—%
+=HA=+—H 2 2,022 2,024
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF
+TZA=+—H” 2 - 2

EEMEMAGABRIERFH
WR B AREE D RIS B A7 Al & A
HA2 = 10F # 85 -

Trademark and computer system have finite useful life
and are amortised on a straight-line basis basic over its
estimated useful life of 2 years to 10 years respectively.
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18.

=)

B 75 3 2% Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. Rt E AT HER
2021 2020
—T-—% —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREETFIT
Cost of investment in associates: %xﬁﬁ’\ H/NEIIE o) 5 97NS 500 500
Share of losses from associates JE (LBt N B E1E (105) (105)
395 395
Less: Impairment losses on B QR 2 REEE
associates (395) (395)
The following list contains only the particulars of material TRIEHAFELTARERLAW

associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,
whose quoted market price is not available:

#
I B A EARE A A
B1E

Form of business  Place of Registered Paid-up
Name structure establishment  capital capital Group's effective interest  Principal activities
A ERRERS gRBINY  ERER HREX SEEMER TEEH
2021 2020
It bl

Guangdong Weixiang Established PRC RMB24,000,000 RMB1,000,000 30% 30% Research and development
Biotechnology Co., Ltd." (2020: RMB24,000,000)  (2020: RMB1,000,000) of cell cultivation
("Guangdong Weixiang")

ERAZENBRERLA BRI ME AR®24,000000  ARH1,000,0007 30% 30% HEARERE

([ExABR]) (222 (Z3-%%
AR824,000000)  ARE1,000,0007)

Guangdong Yashan Established PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB700,000 20% 20%  Research and development
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (2020: RMB10,000,000)  (2020: RMB500,000) of cell cultivation
("Guangdong Yashan")

ERELEYHRERLE BRI TE AR#10,000000T  ARH700,0007 20% 0% HEEMEEE

([BREW]) (Z3-%% (Z2-%%
AR#10,000,0007T)  ARH500,0007)
Foshan Zhougong Intelligent Established PRC RMB6,000,000 N/A (note 1) 4% N/A" Not yet commenced business
Technology Co., Ltd. (2020: N/A) (2020: N/A) (note 2)
("Foshan Zhougong")
FUTEIERREARAR BRI P AR 6,000,000 41% TEA HERRER
(THWET]) (ZZ-25:78R) a2
a The English translation of the companies’ names is for & RRAEBHEZEHRLE - HEA
reference only. The official name of these companies are BB ARP o
in Chinese.

Note 1: Registered capital of Foshan Zhougong was not paid-up Ml RZTE=—F+_A=+—RH#%

as at 31 December 2021. L ITEMERRRUE -

Note 2: Foshan Zhongang was established on 15 July 2021. M2 BLULEIR=_ZE=_—F+tA+HA

All of the above associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

SV

A EPTA RS AR AR

BRI AR -

TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK
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Are M IS R B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

At 31 December 2021,

the aggregate amount of
individually immaterial associates recognised in the
consolidated financial position is Nil (2020: Nil). During
the year ended 31 December 2021,
amounts of the Group's share of loss and other

the aggregate

AN

At

R4+ _A=+—RHILFE

18. REIEATIIHER (&)

—E-—F4+-_A=+—H R&EE
B 75 R O 3R R B 5R Y {8 Bl 3F & K B
M/\jﬁﬁlgﬁt’jiﬁ(*f ii iﬁ)
B2 T -_—F+-—_A=+—H1t
FE $’§IJE1EJ§§E&,HJ@’1\EHQ

comprehensive income are Nil (2020: Nil) and Nil (2020: g %ﬁ 2l /“;U 7%75 ( —EFTFF)
Nil) respectively. EZE(ZZZFF:
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT 19. A FHEFABEHIAEZ
FVTPL MBEAE
2021 2020
—F--—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR®ETT
Measured at FVTPL ERAFEFABRE
— Mutual funds/unit trusts established ~-REEBRI2EEES
in Taiwan (note (i) BAEFE (MG ) 34,482 33,639
Trading securities BEZES
— Equity securities listed outside —REARIILETZ
Hong Kong (note (ii)) AR A7 & (B LG ) 4,095 =
38,577 33,639
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Notes:

@)

(ii)

G e s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 @:I:—_z_ ——&5+=ZA=+—HLEE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT
FVTPL (Continued)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEE 12 {%0) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on
17 July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and
4 July 2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross
receipt of each funeral services deed entered into after
31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan as trust
monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds
and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were managed by
fund managers of these financial institutions in Taiwan.
The mutual funds and unit trusts comprise a basket of
financial assets including local and foreign currencies
bank deposits, bonds and equity securities listed in
Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They have
no fixed maturity and coupon rate.

The fair value of the above financial assets is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

At 31 December 2021, the trading securities were stated
at fair value, determined by reference to bid prices
quoted in an active market.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are presented within

“operating activities”

as part of changes in working

capital and trading securities are presented within

“investing activities”

in the consolidated statement of

cash flows. The Group has obtained a net realised and
unrealised profit of RMB811,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: loss of RMB32,000).

19. MAFEFTANERTEZ

MBEE (48)
B 3 :

(i) BER-_ZEZE-_FtA+EHERX
BHIN—_ZFEZE=FtA—HE=
ST LFELANAE—FBIIZE
EBEEETEGN XEBAERNZ
T -—F+A=-F+—HBIILZF
HREEBRBEZORESREET
BN BEEZ75%1EBERS -

EREECRERAENEEREER
BfEst HbaBzaSTo i
BECEBATE FHREGHEE
fERA—ETHHEEEAK &
BRBRIINEEERTER £
ENEMINE T LT 2 E SRR
EINEE

LR BEERASERTEBR
FEERERESR #E ZEW
BEEVEETFIHAARFEA K-

LB EENRFEDERER
T IS IR B A BN E

iy MHZZE_—F+=-_A=+—H'E
ERXHFERATEIE HE2ER
BRSBTS E ABME -

BEAFEFABEFEZHBKEE
REAREeRERIKEEKIRNR
- tEReEESREH —PH EE
FBHARIEEETSH ] REF -HZE
TE -+ - A=+—HItFE"
AEEEBARKES11,000 2B &
BERERFEN(ZETF
B ARM32,0007T) °

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL 20. B E
2021 2020
—¥Z—-F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETTT
Cost: PR :
At 1 January n—H—H 18,449 19,167
Exchange adjustments [ERIEEE 561 (718)
At 31 December KR+—HA=+—H 19,010 18,449
Accumulated impairment losses: EEHREEE
At 1 January n—HA—H 18,449 19,167
Exchange adjustments PE H 38 & 561 (718)
At 31 December W+ —H=+—H 19,010 18,449
Carrying amount at 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H2
FREE - -
Goodwill was arising from the Group obtained control BETREAEEFZBKEBIRER
of BLL through the acquisition of 100% equity voting EREEEZELEESARBEN T E
interests in BLL which is engaged in provision of elderly M‘Z1OO°/0|31]LMTX7R$%EEI’JHQ$%£T&'
care and related consultancy services. FRENRZ IR
The goodwill was fully impaired prior to year ended 31 REE_T-ZTF+-A=+—8H
December 2020. IEEEZA BEETR2ERE.
21. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION COSTS 21. B % B B 3L B &
2021 2020
—B-—% —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Development and formation costs N D AV N
— burial plots under development - AEFEEN
for sale 4,529 4,542

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for burial plots construction
in a cemetery site which will be completed for sale by
burial plot and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. B8
2021 2020
—F-—%f —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETX ARBET T
Merchandises for resale EEER 714 630
Completed burial plots BExIEH 911 916
1,625 1,546
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B RHEMEWKFRIE
2021 2020
—EB-—% —E-EE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
Trade receivables =) 3¢ 1,216 996
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEBERE
(note 34(a)) (Bt5E34(@)) (777) (377)
Trade receivables, net B RINGIA R
(notes (c) and (d)) (Bt 5 (c) K2(d)) 439 619
Prepayments (note (e)) BT FIE (KisE(e)) 26,680 38,861
Deposits (note (e)) e (HiEe)) 2,268 1,899
Other receivables (note (e)) H Ath U IR (B REe) ) 2,343 3,540
31,730 44,919
Representing: =l
Current BIEA
— trade and other receivables — B 5 NHMERFKIE 30,686 43,820
Non-current JEBNER
— deposits for hire of funeral parlous —HRBREERBERE
and funeral services centres FLZiRE 1,000 1,000
— other deposits —HiEe 44 99
31,730 44,919
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  All of the current portion of trade and other receivables (@ FEESREMEKRKIERER] HH*B

are expected to be recovered within one year and BB —F R E - AR
prepayments are expected to be recognised as expense BEHR —FARIEEE $5BHHEE
within one year or in its normal operating cycle. REBFAZ -

B 5 2 A M 3008 7 B R
AT(ERE -

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables (b)
approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

23. ESRHEMBURIE (&)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() Trade receivables with the following aging analysis by age
presented based on the invoice date, net of allowance, as
at the end of the reporting period:

GHE

(&)

AT RREEMRE S EEHR (4
BREEB)REZAHNZ2IZERED
-

2021 2020

—FC-—f —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBET T

0 to 180 days 0% 180H 439 619

The average credit period for funeral arrangement
services granted to non-funeral services deed customers is
45 days (2020: 45 days).

There is no credit period granted to customers for the
other service rendered by the Group.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in
note 34(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B5 RHMEWERIE (&)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,075,000 (2020: RMB344,000) which are past due
as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
RMBNil (2020: Nil) has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default because of the good
repayment records of those customers and continuous
business relationship with the Group. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables and
other receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 are set out in note 34(a).

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are deposits paid for funeral parlours and funeral
services centre, prepaid hire charge of funeral parlours
and funeral services centres, prepayment for purchase of
biotechnical machineries and other electronics products,
prepayment for purchase of raw materials and prepaid
agency commission for funeral services of approximately
RMB1,000,000 (2020: RMB1,000,000), RMB8,756,000
(2020: RMB8,543,000), RMB3,421,000 (2020: RMB
3,515,000), RMB11,812,000 (2020: RMB11,891,000)
and RMB2,606,000 (2020: RMB14,599,000), respectively.

A commission is paid to the agents when the service
deeds amounts were received. During the year, one
of the agents, which was incorporated in Taiwan with
limited liability, was dissolved. The directors of the
Company considered that the Group is no longer able to
request future services from this agent, and the chance of
recovering the prepayments made to this agent is remote
as advised by the Group’s Taiwan legal adviser. After the
above assessment, the Group has written off the relevant
amount of prepayments with this agent in full under the
funeral service segment, and recognised a loss on written
off of prepayment of approximately RMB12,013,000
(2020: nil) during the year.

G e s

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

PsE: (%)

(d)

RZZEZ—F+=_A=+—8B" &
SENBESEUREBRLEAERES
A ANRE,07500T (ZE-F
£ A R#344,0007T) Rk 4 B H
CDEHMERER RESHNGE
FOARBZL(ZEZZEF AR
BT ) D mHA0R K B RER I
BARABRAEN REZSEFREN
BROHRTEEAEEREGRHESE
KRR - AEBYERZEEHET
EEAEER -

BE-Z-_—HR-_FT-_FTF+=
A=+t - RLFENEZEKFR
R E A AR IR ER 2 FE B #E
PP EE34(a) °

FTATEN RIE RS KOE A FE UK
H A B RTEEE KRB ERS S O
iﬁz&%~%%ﬁ&%%%ﬁ$
hZENEE BELEDRRES
FPEMETFERZBNRE -BE
EMAzBNREREERERSE
ZHEMREMAES L AR1,000,000
T (ZZT =T F: AR®1,000,000
7)) - AR #¥8,756,000T (Z & =
T AR #8,543,0007T) - AR
3,421,000 (ZZE_FF: AR
3,515,0007T) * AR #11,812,000
T(ZEZETF: AEMHsmom
T) M AR¥2,606,000T (— & =
T4 AR#14,599,0007T) °

W B BR 75 R 40 SR IE B RS R RO S A
%%oiwvﬁ¢—%ﬁ@(wéé
MR ERDR)RE - AR
%%%R*@ﬁxﬁlééﬁé@
MHER AEBABEBEZA
BBESRAKR - B U E AR
TRNMBEMNREOREEM P L
M EE AEERFARADBEM
HEERE D ST HEZRIEAIERE
TE AT RE - I R M S TR R IE &
BHARM12,013,000T (—ZF =
TE ) o
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AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. R& RBITHEHES

(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: (a) RENBEITHEBBIE:
2021 2020
—¥-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 117,557 123,674
Cash and cash equivalents REBBARARR
in the consolidated statement of RERERERA
financial position and consolidated ~HIR& RIRESEEY
statement of cash flows 117,557 123,674

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

At 31 December 2021, cash at bank and on
hand of the Group of RMB19,051,000 (2020:
RMB13,760,000) were denominated in RMB
and placed with banks in the PRC. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant
and accordingly, no allowance for credit loss is
provided.

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash at bank
and on hand are denominated in the following
currencies:

FTRSRRESARTER
IR 8 2 BRI K 8 -

F:?:—¢+:HE+—
CAEBZRITRERFER
@Z%AE%W,OM,OOO%(:
—ZF 4 : AR¥13,760,000
L) AAREFELFBRR
FEZEIT AR R BINE
BRI P B HNEE B GBI K 45
fE -EERNEESERETET

R-ZB-_—FR-_F_FF
+ZR=+—81" K%lﬂﬁi
TTHRHEETREN G LR
HFRIOTWBOBETEMN &
THRHREEBEREE-

AEBZBOTRTFEARASZE
EENATIIE®EE:

2021 2020
—E-— —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREEFIT

us$ ETT 5,706 13,211
HK$ BT 9,580 14,074
RMB AR 19,053 14,906
NTD ek 83,082 81,348
VND M E 83 135
EURO BT 53 _
117,557 123,674

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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—FT_HA=+—RHIFE
24.

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

S

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. IRE&ERIBITEHE (E)

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

Lease liabilities

(b)

BREEE

Bank borrowings

3 B IR

Amount due to a
shareholder

HEERE RITHEE Eft—-2RFEZRE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—§--§ C-E-%F CZ§--§ C-I-TF CZB--F -T-F%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETr AREFRT ARETT ARETR ARETn
At 1 January W—A—A 31,870 34,860 6,964 8,389 12,221 8,604
Changes from financing H&EREREE
cash flows
Repayment of principal ~ EEREAE
of lease liabilities re#n (4,403) (4,157) - - - -
Repayment of bank BERTEE
borrowings - - (1,161) (1,166) - -
Payment of interest MEMT (2,077) (2,366) (105) (155) - =
Advances from B-BRENEMRTE
a shareholder - - - - - 1,677
Total changes from REREREDLH
financing cash flows (6,480) (6,523) (1,266) (1,321) - 1,677
Finance costs BERA 2,077 2,366 105 155 - -
Changes in amount due & EEE T BN —%
to a shareholder BRRZHEED
under operating activities - - - - - 2,666
Addition of right-of-use ~ REFREEE
assets 368 1,181 - = - =
Lease modification REBX (344) - - - - -
Exchange adjustments A (3) (14) 201 (259) (322) (786)
At 31 December “+=A=1+-H 27,488 31,870 6,004 6,964 11,899 12,221
FEEREBERAT —E-—FFR
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AR e SRR I Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

TR F+-A=+—HLEHFE
25. B RHMEMRIE

2021 2020

—g-—F —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AR¥ETTT

Trade payables (note (c)) B 5 RRIE (Fak(c ) 2,221 2,217

Other payables and accruals H 8 < 5RIE R B ET K 11,878 14,659
Financial liabilities measured at REHK AT EZ

amortised cost MBar’ 14,099 16,876

Notes:

(@  All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate to their fair values.

(0) The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables,

(@) MEESMAMENZFARBHER
—FRNEERRRA -

() BZREMERNK

AFERE -

B REEEE

(@ NATARBESHREZENKER

based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting BERHZERDY
period:
2021 2020
g Jemd 3 —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREF T
0 to 30 days 0%230H 650 853
31 days to 90 days 31HZ90H 724 260
Over 90 days 90H M E 847 1,104
2,221 2,217
The average credit period on purchase of goods is BERROTHEEERAB (=

30 days (2020: 30 days). The Group has financial risk
management polices in place to ensure that all payables

are settled within the credit timeframe.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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e MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. EHE®’

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETFIT
Funeral services deeds (note (a)) BERERY (KiiEa)) 83,366 83,304
Burial plots under development Frl B 203 e 209 (Ft 5T (b))
and tombstones (note (b)) 2,346 2,348
Stem cells and immunocytes and ~ #A0RE & & A0 B I H qth 275
other businesses (note (c)) (BF7E@©)) 4,848 2,528
90,560 88,180
Analysed as: DA
Current BN HA 90,207 87,994
Non-current JERN A 353 186
90,560 88,180
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRIRAFEMBABELE S D

recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward

contract liabilities.

BEAHENKESRE-

Stem cells and

Funeral Burial plots under immunocytes
services development and and other
deeds tombstones business
BUARE %
il
EERBERY RAEPELRER E 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT ARBFT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=-F=-—%+=H
=+—-HLEEE
Revenue recognised that was included FAFENE N B BERTERA
in the contract liabilities balance Yoz
at the beginning of the year 1,695 43 -
FEEGEEERAR —T=—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

26. BWER (&)

Funeral Burial plots under Stem cells and
services development and  immunocytes and
deeds tombstones other business
BHEREE
AR E A
BERBEL FE PR R ER X%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-T-TF+ A
:+* BIEFE
Revenue recognised that was included FAFTENERESRERL
in the contract liabilities balance W
at the beginning of the year 2,024 99 360
As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted R-ZEBE-_—F—F—H 648EA

to RMB88,180,000. Contract liabilities, that are not
expected to be settled within the Group’s normal
operating cycles are classified as current and non-current
based on the Group's earliest obligation to transfer
goods or services to the customers.

Notes:

(a)

Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services
deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral
services deeds are prepaid funeral services packages
which mainly comprise particular types of funeral services
at the choice of the customers to be arranged in future.
The Deed Holders can elect to make payment on a lump
sum basis or settle the outstanding amount of the funeral
services deeds by mutual agreed instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering
these services, after having taking into account of major
factors including the timing of the instruction of the Deed
Holders. Amounts received from funeral services deeds
sold are recorded as contract liabilities. When the Deed
Holders have defaulted payment for two months and do
not pay back the defaulted amounts after the Group’s
not less than 30-day’s demand notice, the funeral services
deeds would be regarded as lapsed and a minimum of
20% of the total sum of the funeral services deeds or the
instalments paid, whichever is lower, will be forfeited as
income. The Deed Holders can request for funeral services
or terminate the funeral services deeds at any time
after the funeral services deeds are sold. Accordingly,
contract liabilities is classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

z~

i—g:_fﬁ—'—:ﬂ = r—EIEE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. EHIEE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Mz (&)
(@)  (Continued) (a) (%)
According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7& BRIBEREBEEERKI AEEA
ZEEIRIEM]) in Taiwan, the Group has to deposit 75% BRR—_ZZ=F+A=+—H%
of the gross receipt of each funeral services deed entered RT3 2 B 17 TR & AR 7 22 49 P R UK
into after 31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan ANBREZIS%TERRAE 2 2 B#
as trust monies. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has BEREXEE RZTZ—F+=
invested trust monies in mutual funds and unit trusts in ﬁ =+—H - FrEEEREETES
Taiwan at a carrying amount of RMB34,482,000 (2020: REEBENEEESREMET K
RMB33,639,000). Details are disclosed in note 19 to the HE A AR#34,482,000T (=&
consolidated financial statements. —TF: AR¥33,639,0000T) ° 7
BREGE T RRM T 195 E -

(b) It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and (b) ZABEEELASHNHKETET
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount MEMMEEREE MZESER
will be recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue ERFEEAREERGERERE
recognition criteria are met. g e

() Contract liabilities of stem cells and immunocytes and (0 BHARLEEEABREEMEBLNS
other business are arising from the receipt in advances HAaBEERPNERFIE &
from customers and such amount will be recognised as 18 & B G ETT & 8 B U R HE R AR
revenue when the relevant revenue recognition criteria I T 2R A U 2 o
are met.

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
Future lease payments are due as follows: RREENKZEEBERAT
2021 2020
—g-—f —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARET T
Lease liabilities payable: AR THEZ AN Z
HEBE:
Within one year —FA 4,564 4,403
Within a period of more than one  BiE—F{B BB M F
year but not more than two years 4,699 4,549
Within a period of more than two BB FETEEAF
years but not more than five years 15,768 14,840
More than five years B8 1 F 2,457 8,078
27,488 31,870
Less: Amounts due for settlement  J& : 1218 A R 2| A E 4 &9
with 12 months shown KIE (P A E
under current liabilities Bf&) (4,564) (4,403)
Amounts due for settlement after 128 A 18 2 i {E 4 6 F 1B
12 months shown under B AERBEE)
non-current liabilities 22,924 27,467
FEEREBERAT —E-—FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. HEEBE (&)
Details of maturity of lease liabilities are set out below HEBEZIBMFBRHN T X R
and in note 34(b). F£34(b) °
28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. SRITHEE
2021 2020
—g-—% —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Bank borrowings RITIEE
Current liabilities mEAaR
— Portion of term loans from banks -R—FREEEER
due for repayment within 1 year RITEHERIT D 1,192 1,138
Non-current liabilities FEmEBBE
— Portion of term loans from banks - R—FERIEEED
due for repayment after 1 year RITEHEFRIL D 4,812 5,826
Total EEt 6,004 6,964
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank borrowings were RZEBEZ—FRZZZFF+ A
due for repayment, which are based on the scheduled =+—HB ROEEER T HHE
repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan (HEHZXQE X s N PTE] AR T8
agreements, as follows: EEEAHNGE)EE:
2021 2020
—B-—f —E T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREFT
Within 1 year —FR 1,192 1,138
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FRERMFA 1,211 1,156
After 2 years but within 5 years RMEEEBERAFER 3,460 3,582
After 5 years RAFI% 141 1,088
4,812 5,826
6,004 6,964
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants. If the Group were in breach of
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group's liquidity risk are set out in note 34(b). As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after
one year contain a repayment on demand clause and
hence these balances are not expected to be settled
within one year and are classified as a non-current
liability.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the effective interest
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows:

28. RITIEE (E)

FIBERSERTEEREXBITR®
FIfR -mAEBERRHE 28 A
MEEREERERIBFEE-

E.uluiﬁﬁiﬂAmﬁ FEFEH
A EF34b) RZEZ—FER_E
—EF+ A=+ —H AEETE
ERBEBYHEEENRHE-

FRBRITIEERB R ATIE -

R—FRIMEENRITEEHNE
HERERKBREGK Bt - 254&
HRIEHAN—FABKRGES L0 ER
ERBEE-

R - —FR_ZB-_ZTF+_A
Z—t+—B RITEEZEEI XN
T
2021 2020
—F-—% —ZEETF

Variable-rate FEF =X

1.37%-2.04% 1.37%-2.29%

Bank borrowings of RMB4,213,000 (2020:
RMB4,846,000) denominated in NTD were secured by the
freehold land and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying
amount of RMB23,552,000 (2020: RMB20,394,000)
(note 14(d)). The remaining bank borrowings of
RMB1,791,000 (2020: RMB2,118,000) (note 35(c)(v)) is
guaranteed by Mr. Liu.

BITEEARK4,213,000T (=

—ZTF: AR¥4,846,0007T) T3
LA E TUAREE Z K
AEBITHWREFETLELEA
R #23,552,0000 (T —_ZF:
AR #20,394,0007T ) {E & 8 (Kt
F14(d)) B TRITHEBEARE
1,791,000 (ZE = F ¢ AR
2,118,0007T) (M #E35(c)(v)) A 2l
FTHERER

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29. G MBI AKRANZHE

29.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HZEWBMRREFEARNZBIETIE
financial position represents: t=
2021 2020
—T-—-F§ —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
At 1 January m—H—H 3,567 4,002
Provision for the year FEEE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax - R EEMEN
(note 7) GEY 2,888 1,883
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7) - BEEBNEH (KME7) 14 -
— PRC withholding tax (note 7) - R EIFE O
(BEE7) - 1,538
Income tax paid during the year FAREBNES (3,138) (4,519)
Exchange adjustments & A 236 663
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,567 3,567
(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) REWMABELEMBEE
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC, BIBEREMEMRGHRE B Z
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared Tf)\i R gt A BB S

in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB22,434,000 (2020: RMB12,260,000) as
the Group controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax
Act of Republic of China, the net dividend or
net surplus earning received by a profit-seeking
enterprise organised as a company from its
investment in another domestic profit-seeking
enterprise shall not be included in its taxable
income. Such exemption is not applicable for
investment in foreign profit-seeking enterprise,
which is subject to income tax at the rate of 17%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
(Continued)

As one of the Group's subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan,
a rate of 17% is applicable to the calculation
of the income tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB21,764,000 (2020: RMB22,230,000) as
the Group controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of
Withholding Rates for Various Incomes issued by
Ministry of Finance of Republic of China, the net
dividends or profit distributed to a profit seeking
enterprise having its head office outside the
territory of the Republic of China from investment
in an enterprise within the territory of the Republic
of China shall be withheld at a rate of 20% of the
amount distributed.

As one of the Group’s subsidiaries operates within
the territory of Taiwan having its head office
outside the territory of Taiwan, a rate of 20% is
applicable to the calculation of this withholding
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as
this subsidiary has no retained profit that can be
distributed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29. Z €M BN TAZFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
unused tax losses of RMB27,673,000 (2020:
RMB27,556,000) available for offset against
future profits. Other than tax losses amounting
to RMB18,447,000 (2020: RMB18,557,000)
that would be expiring from 5 years to 10 years
pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the remainder at
the end of the reporting period can be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

(&)

() REBERELEFREBEE
RZEBEZ—F+ A =+—
A AXEBE2ABAMESE
ARM27,673,00000 (ZE =
THE: AR#¥27,556,0007T) 7]
FA DA K 88 oK 2R 0 A o B IR 3% AR
Bl -#wm ke ENHEBRA R
BFEBNSE10F 3 e F |
B8 AR #18,447,0007T (=
T-_FTF: AR¥18,557,000
TN R EBR 2 FR IS
AR AR A 8 o A R AR E A
2 BB BT TR - MRt A A
HEBMERECHEEE -

30. PROVISIONS 30. #fE
2021 2020
—¥Z—-F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF T
Provision for future costs of RMBERRFZ
delivering funeral services HRIR LA
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,550 3,044
Provision/(written back of provision) RIS AR At
for cost of service (note 5) (BB ) (MI5ES) 454 (399)
Exchange adjustments PE H FE B 82 (95)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 3,086 2,550

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of
delivering funeral services in future, after taking into
account of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee
payable to the sub-contractor for each funeral service
deed performed, the current market conditions and the
price of deeds. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting period to estimate if the
contract liabilities for funeral service deeds can cover
the estimated future costs of delivering funeral services
and determine the need of making a provision in the
consolidated financial statements.
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31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL 31. B&F
No. of shares Amount
& E &8
RMB'000
ARBF T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREBEIB T ERmR
At 1 January 2020, 31 December RZTE-_ZTF—H—H"
2020, 1 January 2021 and T F+ =R
31 December 2021 =+—B-Z2=—%
—A—HBRZE=_—F
+ZA=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares issued and CBTRYGBREER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December R_ZE_ZF—H—QH-
2020, 1 January 2021 and ZEEZFE+A
31 December 2021 =+t—8 ZE=-_—%
—A—BRZZE=—%
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREBABRKDNAKEIR 2
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled BERBEREARD ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁAL?ﬁ
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. BRE—RETRR- B L BER®
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the KRARZHBTEEMEAZTERSE

Company'’s residual assets.

RER

TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. &

32. RESERVES

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and () AEEEERZZEHDFN
closing balances of each component of the ﬁiiiﬁ EER HIRE MR A
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the nEHR AR Tﬁfﬁﬂ*ﬁ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. ZEMEFERZ EHFIFHI
Details of the changes in the Company’s U
individual components of reserves between
the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
AR5 B 2 B
BiriaE ERGE 2R ERE RitER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AREBTRT  ARETT AR%TR
As at 1 January 2020 RZZZZTF-f—H 220,633 (13,658) 7,027 (185,836) 28,166
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (5,151) (5,151)
Exchange differences on BRERBRREEL
translation of financial EXER
statements = (5,187) = - (5,187)
Total comprehensive expense A& 2 ER X A%
for the year - (5,187) - (5,151) (10,338)
Lapse of share options AR R - = (7,027) 7,027 =
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+=ZA=+—H 220,633 (18,845) = (183,960) 17,828
As at 1 January 2021 R=F=—-F-f—H 220,633 (18,845) = (183,960) 17,828
Profit for the year KEE RN - - - 13,765 13,765
Exchange differences on BERBRREEL
translation of financial EXZZ
statements - (2,803) - - (2,803)
Total comprehensive AEEZE (R /WALE
(expense)/income
for the year - (2,803) - 13,765 10,962
As at 31 December 2021 RZZB_-%+-A=t—H 220,633 (21,648) - (170,195) 28,790
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the Company’s share
premium account are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in
relation to the acquisition of Bau Shan
during the group reorganisation in 2007. The
merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between aggregate net asset value
of Bau Shan acquired and the consideration
paid for the acquisition of Bau Shan pursuant
to the group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

According to the applicable laws and
regulations in Taiwan, the Group's Taiwan
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their net profits after taxation, as determined
under the relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to companies
established in Taiwan, to a non-distributable
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
the registered capital of the respective
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before the distribution of a dividend
to owners but after offset the previous years’
losses, if any.

32. fiEfE (&)

(b) REEHEERAR

(i) RGzE
@ﬁﬁ;ﬁ%“ﬂﬁiﬁ
RAlz B mERPE
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EE%%W@E¢@%

BT HEE-

(ii) SOHFE
EHEBIR _ZT £
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WBELEBmERE
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FEoAEEME NFEHEIE
FrfiE s B L BEEF
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(iii) £ JE
BIEREMNEREER
ﬁ% TEBZEEBWS

FEARERNESE
%42 AlzBBEEs
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. fi#fE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) REEMHERAZE (&)

(Continued)

(iv) Statutory surplus reserve (iv) 2EREFE

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group are required
to appropriate at least 10% of their
profit after tax, as determined under the
relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC, to a non-distributable
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before the distribution of dividends
to owners. The non-distributable reserve
fund can be used to offset the previous
years’ losses, if any, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital
of the subsidiaries, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of its
registered capital. The non-distributable
reserve fund is non-distributable other than
upon liquidation.

According to the Vietnam Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set
their reserve fund according to the respective
Charter. Under the Charter of the Vietnam
subsidiaries, they are required to transfer
5% to 15% of profit after tax to set up the
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 10%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of

reserves

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for freehold
land and buildings held for own use in note
2(g) and is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(t).

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to eligible participants of
the Group recognised in accordance with
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(p).

(viii) Other reserve

The Group accounted for partial disposal of
interests in subsidiaries without losing control
as equity transactions and the difference
between the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests and the consideration
received, after re-attribution of relevant
reserves was recognised in “other reserve”.

32. fiEfE (&)

(b) REUHERMAE (&)

(v) YWEEW W E
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ff# 5 - AR 3R 7 P FE2(9)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. fitifl (&)
(c) Capital Management (c) EXERE
The Group's primary objectives when managing AEBEEEBEAZEZERER
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to MRAEBEMFELSE #®
continue as a going concern, so that it can ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ/\’%)(@i&&ﬁ
continue to provide returns for owners and benefits Hfth i 2 B8 0 & 75 2R Al 25 -
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal HRIREERNEH LR ﬁzli
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. PR o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, RERFNIHABEERER -~ &
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends EgRREMEREAINZRE
paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new B REERATHEA B
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. TFRHIEEEENRDE
I8 o
Consistent with other companies in the industry, MAMRAZERAR —&K A%
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the L‘Aﬁ?%%ttwﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁm
gearing ratio which is total liabilities divided by EEBRE tl:jz?;z Bmaff
total assets. The Group aims to maintain the B%L/(,%Eéfég AKBEETE
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing KEEBBLELERENE K
ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as FR_IBZ—FRZIZEZZE
follows: F+ZRA=+—RBZEEA®E
LR
2021 2020
—¥Z—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT ARBTT
Total liabilities 158,266 165,888
Total assets 263,854 277,614
Gearing ratio 59.98% 59.75%
There were no changes in the Group's approach to HBFFELR - AEEYE
capital management compared with previous years. KEBz2ARATEEE - AR
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RSO =NEIEE RN E
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. HEHE2EERBEERS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

33.

34,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 33. #ZEAEsZ2HMEIR
CATEGORIES
2021 2020
—ET—% —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFIT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BAFEFABRE
ZHEEE
— Mutual funds/unit trusts established —REEKIIZEER
in Taiwan HEe BAEst 34,482 33,639
— Equity securities listed outside —RBEBFEIIN T2
Hong Kong N 4,095 =
38,577 33,639
Amortised cost B SRR 119,534 127,833
Financial liabilities MBEE
Amortised cost B 5K R 61,053 71,591
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MiBEMREERMEIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZA¥FE
INSTRUMENTS
The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk, HAEE s MBETEEBA  RRE
interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk FEERR RBETRER ﬂ"’?ﬂ
arising from financial instruments. The Group's exposure B f"im{ﬂ p MR ERER -
to these risks and the financial risk management policies Earg e e T e g SN S l ‘?JE

and practices used by the Group to manage these risk

are described below.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivable, other
receivables and deposits, debt instruments at FVTPL
and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to this credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. Eﬁ% EEBERHEIR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit Risk (Continued)
Except for debt securities at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Besides,
the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
refundable rental deposits is considered to be low,
taking into account (i) the landlords’ credit rating
and (ii) the remaining lease term and the period
covered by the rental deposits. Information about
the Group's credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

Debt instruments at FVTPL

The Group invests in certain debt instruments
which are unrated. The investments in unrated debt
instruments have to be approved by the directors
of the Company. The directors of the Company
regularly reviews and monitors the portfolio of
debt instruments. Details of the terms of these
investments are disclosed in note 19. Summary of
the fair value and principal amount of these debt
instruments are set out below.

Zza

(a)

FEER (&)
BRERATVEFAERSNERSE
FI AEBREEREER
BEAHSREERAMIEAR
EATRERE - BE AN EE E()
EFXEER ARG THEES
MR RENHMB K&
ERATROESREMELN
EFEERRERARE-FHEA
SEEERRER &R5FE

[\ B K AR B RE R (BB )
mﬁﬂm LI T

BRFEITAED ZEH
I A

REEBRERETRILZE
BITR - RKFRZ2EBHIAR
BEKAKRNBIEEIME-RARQ
REETHRNTRERELT
BEAE - ZERENERFRS
RWEF1ORE - ZEEKE LA
MAFEEAS TS WD
To

2021 2020
—¥--§ I e 33
Principal Principal
Fair value amount Fair value amount
AFE b.¥ AYE g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETT ARBETL AREFT
Unrated RTR 34,482 34,681 33,639 33,414
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEZzEEY

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with a minimum credit rating of Baa3, which the
Group considers to be low credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit Risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. In
respect of trade receivables from funeral services,
the Group generally offer credit period of 45 days
to customers, whereas no credit period is granted
to customers for other services rendered by the
Group. Normally, the Group does not hold any
collateral over trade receivables. At 31 December
2021, the ECLs for trade receivable were measured
and loss allowance of RMB777,000 was provided
(2020: RMB377,000).

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking account of any collateral held
is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. The
Group segments its trade receivables based on
geographic regions, due to different loss patterns
experienced in the different regions.

B+ _A=1+—HLFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. Eﬁ% EEBERHEIR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAE E(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit Risk (Continued) (a) EERR (&)

EBEZENGIE (&)
TREHBBAEEMHE KN

Trade receivables (Continued)
The following table provides information about the

Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FEERRKE S EWHRIE A
receivables: HEEBBEZER:
2021
Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEHEsEE REEE BiREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk ARETR ARETR
PRC FE
Current (not past due) BVER (AR AR) - 115 -
1-30 days past due #HEA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #1H831-90H 1% 312 4
More than 90 days 1 HA R B90 A
past due 100% 557 557
984 561
Hong Kong &HE
Current (not past due) BIHER (R#mE) 38% 26 10
1-30 days past due #HA1-30H - - -
31-90 days past due #HA31-90H - - -
More than 90 days 1 HA B 3890 A
past due - - -
26 10
Vietnam i
Current (not past due) BIER (R H) - = =
1-30 days past due #HEA1-308 - - -
31-90 days past due #1HA31-90H - - -
More than 90 days 1 HA B 3890 B
past due 100% 206 206
206 206
Total st
Current (not past due) BOER (R#@HR) 7% 141 10
1-30 days past due #HEA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #HI31-90H 1% 312 4
More than 90 days 1 R B 1890 A
past due 100% 763 763
1,216 777
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MR ETERIHE IR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAFHE(LE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Credit Risk (Continued) (a) f'f%ﬂ (#)
Trade receivables (Continued) BEZEKE (&)
2020
—EETF
Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount  Loss allowance
TEEAE 1R & FEmeE EiERE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
ERld AREETTT AREETTT
PRC th &
Current (not past due) BNER (KmEf) 5% 604 30
1-30 days past due #H31-30H = = =
31-90 days past due # H131-90H 100% 21 21
More than 90 days & B3 3E90 H
past due 100% 117 117
742 168
Hong Kong &
Current (not past due) BIER (R#@EH) 6% 48 3
1-30 days past due #EI1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #HA31-90H = = =
More than 90 days %1 HA 8 3890
past due - - -
48 3
Vietnam i
Current (not past due) BDER (R# A7) - - -
1-30 days past due #HA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #HA31-90H = = =
More than 90 days 18 B kB3890 H
past due 100% 206 206
206 206
Total st
Current (not past due) BNER (RmEf) 5% 652 33
1-30 days past due #H31-30H = = =
31-90 days past due # H#131-90H 100% 21 21
More than 90 days 1 HA B 3890
past due 100% 323 323
996 377

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 12 months. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been

collected, current conditions and the Group's view of B ¥ EWRIETERS BALE
economic conditions over the expected lives of the MAKBEZEHER
receivables.

TEEGEEERAR —E--—FFH

EHEBEX

B DA S BR R 5P 2R 9B M SR B 0
OB B RO IA R AR

ERiBEE12A8
ZEFE WA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. Eﬁ% MEEBERHEIR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL /N
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit Risk (Continued) (a)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

s 1E(.*)

FERER (&)
EZERFE (&)
RAFER -BHREHKEAEZE
ERERZEHOT

PRC  Hong Kong Vietnam Total

FE &k H @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT ARETT AR%ETn

Balance at 1 January 2020 RIZZZE-A-H2&8 214 52 17 383
Impairment losses recognised ERARERHE 14 3 102 119
Impairment losses reversed EAOAERE (60) (52) = (112)
(46) (49) 102 7

Exchange adjustments A% = 5 (13) (13)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZE+-A=+-Az&R 168 3 206 377
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIZZ-FE-A-Az&& 168 3 206 377
Impairment losses recognised ERRRERE 393 7 - 400
Balance at 31 December 2021 WZZ-—-F+-A=1+—-A2&% 561 10 206 771

The following significant changes in the
gross carrying amounts of trade receivables
contributed to the increase in the loss
allowance:

- origination of new trade receivables net of
those settled resulted in an increase in loss
allowance of RMB400,000 (2020: increase
in loss allowance of RMB7,000).

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors
of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase
in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

G e s

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. M EARBEERIHEIA
ZAFHE(E)

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit Risk (Continued)
Other receivables and deposits
(Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of other receivables during the year is as follows:

(a)

EERRE (&)
BhEUFBERZE (&)
RAFE - Bt B KRRIB 2 B
BERERZSHNT

2021 2020

—FT—F —T_THF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBFR AR¥ETTT

Balance at 1 January R—HA—B2z#& 2,751 3,993
Impairment losses recognised RARFERRZREEE

during the year 2,650 174
Reversal of impairment losses NAFEHERZBEEE

recognised during the year o] (253) (1,407)

2,397 (1,233)

Exchange adjustments E A 15 9)

Balance at 31 December Nt+—A=+—8B2#& 5,163 2,751

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBESEMR

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on current rates at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group is
required to pay.

AEEBETENLEERS
BEEAGHNBRSERER B
EARERETRERRE
NREBEEEFFBEEMEESR
kMR %ﬁiﬁ%?ﬁiﬁ
ERERKFRHERGERAE
Eg2HtE- $Elhmzﬁ
RRTHERARPELFIK
MEBTERZHZIBR #
NHEREERERNZRS M
RATECMEBIRESRME 2
AEEERE NEMEHK
E,Hﬂ/m%bﬁiﬁ'ﬁ/\

THRBEI N mEPRRETE
BETAMBEBEZHRTAL
B BRETEMBEE
DIRBEAHRMBRBASTRE (B
BEHRAEONERGFEZFER
E-WRFBNE AR®RE
HRZBITHNE)UARAEH
ANRZEFHBFE

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE T -_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. i RAMEERMEIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL Z’ASFE(.‘E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELRK (&)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings is RITBEENINHBE SN IIRE
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. EREEABRFER-
2021
—8--%
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
SHFERRERE
More than
More than 2 years Total
1 year but but less contractual
Within  less than than  More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BE-5 gEmE
BoR 3 SRR

HEX  R-FR i if BBIF RERESE kEE
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFR ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR

Non-derivative financial liabilities — F/T4 G KEE

Trade and other payables BAREMERTE 14,099 - - - - 14,099 14,099
Lease liabilities HEERE - 6,308 6,125 18,000 2,500 32,933 27,488
Bank borrowings RITEE - 1217 1217 3,543 " 6,238 6,004
Amounts due to directors ERES2HE 1,563 - - - - 1,563 1,563
Amount due to a shareholder ER-ERRZHE 9,757 2,142 - - - 11,899 11,899
25,419 9,721 7,402 21,543 2,641 66,732 61,053
2020
k- 3:2
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
APARRELRE
More than ~ More than
1yearbut 2 years but Total contractual
Within less than lessthan  More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BA-F  BEMF
BB B4R ANARER
REL  R-FR kS 1F  BBLF RERELE KAfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRL ARBTR ARETRL ARTR ARETR  ARETR AR¥TR

Non-derivative financial liabilities — F/T4 G KEE

Trade and other payables BAREMERTE 16,876 - - - - 16,876 16,876
Lease liabilities HERE - 6,482 6,304 18,119 8,500 39,405 31,870
Bank borrowings RITEE - 1,239 1,239 3,718 1,09 7,292 6,964
Amounts due to directors ENEE 2B 3,660 = = = = 3,660 3,660
Amount due to a shareholder B —2RR 27 10,024 520 1,677 = = 12,221 12,221

30,560 8,41 9,220 21,837 9,596 79,454 71,591
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

B+ _A=1+—HLFE

3. B EIBEERUBIAR
ZAEE(R)

(b)

/Jlbibﬁéﬂﬁoﬁ nﬁ)

B EEENMERRETE
ZAEET A E AR - bt 5t 3EDT
EHMBEBEEEIAFAZS
FELREY-

Interest rate risk (o) FIZEREp

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk AEBEAZBANZEERITHE

in relation to bank borrowings at variable rates. EzRenENERER KK

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate l BAEAXBERNEEHEAERZ

risk in relation to fixed-rate lease liabilities. The N E R =R b e 4N & E &

Group did not use derivative financial instruments ERTEMB T AU DEE

to hedge its debt obligations. BEEE-

Bank balances are carried at low interest rates and RITEAKRENNEZHE

the interest income thereon is not significant. EENMERALFEK-

(i) The following table, as reported to () BWmEAEBEIEEMHN
the management of the Group, details HwE TRFHAEBR
the interest rate profile of the Group's REBHRNEENED
borrowings at the end of the reporting EP
period.

2021 2020
—E--% i S 3.2

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

RMB'000 (%) RMB'000 (%)

ARBTR  BRHE®%) ARBTT BB FIE (%)
Fixed-rate BE

Lease liabilities HEARE 27,488 | 6.87%-13.79% 31,870 | 6.87%-13.79%
Variable-rate &8

Bank borrowings RITEE 6,004 | 1.37%-2.04% 6,964 | 1.37%-2.29%

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
The directors of the Company performed
sensitivity analysis with estimation of a

general increase/decrease of 100 basis points.

(ii) BREE T H
KARESURE LT/
TR 10018 £ B > 4 5 i
1T BURRE DA o

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. i BEKEERHEIA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates for variable-rate
borrowings, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group's loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB50,000
(2020: RMB58,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after tax (and accumulated loss) and other
components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated loss)
and other components of consolidated equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2020.

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the directors of
the Company monitor the Group's foreign currency
exposures and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through bank deposit denominated
in a foreign currency that is a currency
other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are US$,
RMB and HK$. The Group’s policy is to
ensure that its net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot values when necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the year end date.

3. B EIBEERUBIAR
ZAEE(R)

(d) E%EkR (&)

(i) %Eﬂz S MR
AEEETHEERR
TEREANINEFED
RITER (NEBESF
H R E AN
B¥) - 35| Bt 1E B &
B AEET ARBRE
T AREBRERYEH
KXER2BRBERE
EW“;%% LA RE AR 1

ERFELEFETES
m%%

TRANAKEER RS
HARAEAEBERD &
EWNAINZEBEEZ
ERREEXREME
ZEERER -T2 ®mM
EERBEBBIOIUARE
IR BETVBRRFHEBZ
B RBE -

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
FEHZMERR (UARETIR)

2021 2020
—g--f —ZE-ZF
uss RMB us$ RMB
T ARE E ARE
'000 '000 ‘000 ‘000
T T Tr T
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBHeEEY 1,013 99 1,459 246
Net exposure arising from recognised BREERER
assets and liabilities EEZERFE 1,013 99 1,459 246
FEEREBERAT —E-—FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. Eﬁ% I E

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

z \

Currency risk (Continued) (d) B¥RERE (&)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (ii) SBEE 5 H
The following table indicates the TRIWEERE RS
instantaneous change in the Group's loss AEBBEAFECIE
after tax (and accumulated losses) that would RNZ BB IR L
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the EREPTA AR R E
Group has significant exposure at the end BHEFIEZBELT K
of the reporting period had changed at SECBRBEBE (RE
that date, assuming all other risk variables srEE)BeE iZEﬂ i
remained constant. In this respect, it is cHUME BERE
assumed that the pegged rate between UL A R TR B B IE K
the HK$ and the US$ would be materially HrTeEETHLHEME
unaffected by any changes in movement in BzAEMNEBEEZESMX
value of the US$ against other currencies. IERTE-
2021 2020
—E--f kSt 33

Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/ Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/

(decrease) (increase) (increase) in (decrease) in (increase) (increase) in

in foreign inloss  accumulated foreign exchange in loss accumulated

exchange rates after tax losses rates after tax losses

Ex RHEEBE RitEE [ % BRHEEE RitEE

L#/(FH) B/ (Em)  BY/(Em)  ERH/(TER) B/ 0Em)  ®e/GEm)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT

Us$ e 2.1% 17 17 6.7% 81 81
(2.1)% (17) (17) (6.7%) (81) (81)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits,
bonds and equity securities listed in Taiwan and
other foreign stock markets.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities as
disclosed in note 19.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

B+ _A=1+—HLFE

3. B EIBEERUBIAR
ZAEE(R)

E¥EkE (8F)

(ii) BBEZH (&)
BRERE DT RERE XS
BERAREHRAER
SEATRA LR RS
N A 5 B T ER SN R
BremI A BEARE
BARAIREUERAR
&R A B I 8 & ¥ LA SN
mf%ﬁ@mﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REWFRIE - Z DT
TEH«E&?I\%%*E’J%F%&
RMEARAEEZRIE
EAEENZEZSE R_F
_”iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ

LT

(e) HEZERER

REBEAZ 2 B EREHE
RXRBRAFEFABZAE
Zﬂﬁ%éé

REBzERET NEMER
DRegly EXTEEER
EReBREMINEE %"ﬁi»%
ZEWRINERITER BEF
MERES-

NP 1R EE - R EE B
HER EMRAR SR E E R
B A B 48 L B o

BEE D W
UTERESNIRER i&i
HIRFI AR 2 am ERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HABEARE
ZAE

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the financial assets measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2020: 10%) lower/higher,
the Group's loss after tax and accumulated loss
would increase/decrease by RMB745,000 (2020:
RMB1,132,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets measured
at FVTPL.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’'s loss after tax (and
accumulated loss) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market
index or the relevant risk variables, and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:
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(f)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the
financial controller performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. A valuation report with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
is prepared by the team at each interim and
annual reporting date, and is reviewed and
approved by the directors of the Company.
Discussion of the valuation process and
results with the directors of the Company
and the audit committee is held quarterly, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

3. B EIBEERUBIAR
ZAEE(R)

(f) DFEFE(E)
(i) BAFESTEZHE
ﬁ%ﬂﬁff(”ﬁ)
RNFEER(E)
e HFEfE:RMK
F-EBWAEGE
NEE BERE

EXBERFER
EERBMS N RH
BWRE-

« ECBHE:NE
— BB AE (7
EEFABER
NE) EHEATE
HELIN-FA L
%A 3k 0 —
WA R BE
BB AL TS

BEAE2EZE
AE-

« ESEME:NE
ZHRTHEEA
EHEATHE-

AEBE B HUBKR
mmvgm.% ﬁTﬁﬁﬁ%I
BETHE -ZBKREE
MARAEERERE
BgRE-ZEEREH
PALRFEREAPRE
HEHRE ERA VA

EEH2ON BHEAR
AE=REHRILE-BF
BARBEERERE
B mERRFRE
R-EHELEE®RSEH
B o

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. Eﬁ%
d/N

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

(ii)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2021 categorised into

(f)

MEERUMBIR
1E(.‘.‘§’

l

AT & ()

(i) BRFEGTEZHE
ﬁé&ﬁf(ﬂﬁ
’_\:'Z{E_nﬁ_i

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into

RZF=Z-£+ZA=+—-HK RZBZEF+-A=+—HH
AFEFAENER ATEAENHA
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2021 Level 1 2020 Level 1
R-B=—-% RZZ_ZF
+=A=+-8H +=ZRA=+—-H
HATE $—E MATE -l
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBFT ARBFT
Recurring fair value EEMATENE
measurements
Asset &E
Financial assets measured BATEFNBETE
at FVTPL ZHBEE 38,577 38,577 33,639 33,639

During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, there were no transfer between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’'s policy is to
recognise transfers between Levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEREAIXS

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party

transactions:

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the

K AEERIN
BARS:

(a) EEE
AEBETE

R BHRREMETD

P BB X

REEFLATEER

BEAEME
BEEAEBMEBERE
XN FARRABES (BANHES

Company's directors as disclosed in note 8 and FigEBE)RETHRRFREE (H

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed AR EEOPTIRER ) 2 RIBAA T -
in note 9, is as follows:

2021 2020
—B-—% —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFTT
Short-term employee benefits M HEAE B R A 5,612 6,111
Post-employment benefits BB A2 S =
5,612 6,111

Total remuneration is included in
note 6(b)).

“staff costs” (see

fiEE6(b) ) °

Fo@Et ATEIRA] (R

Remuneration for close family members (b) FEEBABRFZHE
of key management personnel
Remuneration for close family members of key AEEFZEERABIE M
management personnel of the Group is as follows: ST
2021 2020
ZF-—-F —B_FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETTT
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan Close family member of
key management
personnel 1,733 192
BIEE T L FEEBRABER
Ms. Liu Ting Hsin Close family member of
key management
personnel 751 240
BIET R+ FEEBRABER
2,484 432
FEEGEEERAR —T=—FFH
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ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEEHFRS (8)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Remuneration for close family members by FEEBAEBRFZ2HME
of key management personnel (%&)
(Continued)
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFTT
Analysed as: DA
Short-term employee benefits EHESRN 2,484 432
Post-employment benefits BB t2 A - -
2,484 432
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FMBEEAHATEIRA] (R
note 6(b)). BisE6(b) ) °
(c) Other related parties transactions () HEMBEIZXRS

(i) On 15 March 2013, a renewal deed of
trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was entered
into between Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia
("Ms. Li"), spouse of Mr. Liu, in relation to
the land property situated in Taiwan at No.
943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township,
Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the “Niao Song
Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau
Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be
registered under the name of and held on
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten
years commencing on 15 March 2013. Ms. Li
has agreed that she shall act in the interest
of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song
Property during the term of the Niao Song
Deed.

(i)  On 25 March 2016, a deed of trust (the
“Neimen Deed”) was entered into between
BLL and Mr. Liu in relation to a land property
situated in Taiwan at No.0300-00001 in
Section Laizikeng, Neimen District, Kaohsiung
County, Taiwan (the “Neimen Property”).
Under the Neimen Deed, BLL agreed that
the Neimen Property, which is owned by BLL,
shall be registered under the name of and
held on trust by Mr. Liu for BLL. Mr. Liu has
agreed that he shall act in the interest of BLL
in relation to the Neimen Property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE —Z —

=

—FT_HA=+—RHIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEFREaAXTS (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Mr. Liu signed a tenancy agreement
agreeing the Group to lawfully use the
property situated at unit 1404 on Level 14,
Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping Road,
Chonggqing City, the PRC at a monthly rent at
RMB6,000 starting from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2020.

On 1 April 2016, BLL was granted by Mr. Liu
Ting-Hsuan, close family member of Mr. Liu,
on an exclusive basis a licence to use a
number of trademarks in connection with the
elderly care and related consultancy services
of BLL at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

Guarantee for the Group's bank borrowings
of RMB1,791,000 (2020: RMB2,118,000)
(note 28) is given by Mr. Liu during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell
Therapy (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongke
Guangju”), a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and is indirectly
held as to 30% equity interest by Mr. XU
and his associates through a controlled
company, and Zhongke Zhengi Biotechology
(Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Zhongke
Zhengi”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an agency agreement (the “Agency
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agency
Agreement, Zhongke Guangju has agreed
to engage Zhongke Zhengi as a tier 1 agent
to represent its sales and/or services of stem
cells and immunocytes in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Macau.

* for reference only

() REMBELSZXRS (&)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BrEe R HERZ

H,MZIS%ITDHH%H@
i AR B & B AT B
15 ELIE B 14181404
EZ2WME BT —NF
*H*Ei_’?—iﬂz
+—A=+—H - 8AH
® B ARE6,0005T -

RZZE—XRFWMA—B-
RpEst o (R EMI
FIRTEMELBRS
A R DA(E B E M E
EZEREEFZRRY G H
LETEE REAREF
1,000/ 7T °

BHE-_ZE£-_—%+=-H
=t+—BLEFEE X
A AR®1,791,000
TT(ZEBEZZTF: AR
2,118,0007t) (Bff5E28)
ZAEERTEERM
BiRe

N — L& — A
_WL—E ‘:F'ﬂrm

BRE(ER)ARA
(Fﬂiﬂﬂfmj'—F'aﬁEMJ
Bl AR A A
FAEFEEREBEA
EBRERATEERA
H30% A i) B AR Rp B
EMRFE(EB)ERA
A (+PREHE]) (K%
ZWJ%/&ET)%‘TIF&E@
W ([REWWZE]) -
BREWZE PRERR
EZah A —
REF BERHPEH- %-i
S KR YR IR AR
em@mrEe &,/
K ARFE ©

* EHRE

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEEHFRS (8)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions
(Continued)

(vi)

(Continued)

Zhongke Guangju, as service provider, will
in addition to providing stem cells and
immunocytes products and/or services, be
responsible for complimentary advisory and
promotional materials. Zhongke Zhenqi,
as agent, will be responsible for market
development, market promotion and
providing market feedback to Zhongke
Guangju. The prices of the products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju were
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between both parties and are consistent with
the prices provided by Zhongke Guangju
to existing agents. Zhongke Guangju may
determine at its own discretion the sale
prices of the relevant products and/or services
based on market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Zhongke Guangju has provided stem cells
and immunocytes products and/or services,
and complimentary advisory and promotional
materials to Zhongke Zhengi of RMB212,000
(2020: RMBNil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. X ERAERXZ (&)

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() Other related parties transactions (c) HHEMBERZXRS (&)

(Continued)

(vi) On 13 September 2021, Zhongke Xunda Wiy RZE-_—FNLA+=
Biotechnology (Shenzhen) Company H ARARHEEZ2EW
Limited* (“Zhongke Xunda"), an indirect N\ R R R E A R
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, BEORIDBRAAE ([H
entered into a capital increase agreement BEafiE ) B8R Y ™
(the “Capital Increase Agreement”) with RKEAMBREEHIELE
Shenzhen Nanyue Crown Block Bio Intelligent ERAR([EHMRE])
Equipment Investment Co., Ltd. (“Nanyue I EHE ([EEH
CB") to increase the registered capital of #)  BARAEEEES
Zhongke Zhenhui (Guangdong) Medical BNBRAIFREZEE (f
Technology Company Limited (“Zhongke RIBEREBRA
Zhenhui”), an indirect non-wholly- (IMhERZEZE]) 2 ufﬂﬂé
owned subsidiary of the Company, from A AR®10,000,000
RMB 10,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 on a pro TREPIEMNE AR
rata basis. Pursuant to the Capital Increase 80,000,0007T ° R 5 12 &
Agreement, Zhongke Xunda and Nanyue e PRIFERBRK
CB agreed to contribute, by way of cash, HRENLNRE2 XD
RMB35,700,000 and RMB34,300,000 into MARBEEZEMER
the registered capital of Zhongke Zhenhui, & AR®35,700,000
respectively. Nanyue CB is ultimately owned TR AR®34,300,000
as to approximately 71.25% by Mr. Xu and TLoMmBREHRITLEE
his associates. REBBAGEKERLN

71.25% °
As at 31 December 2021, Nanyue CB WZZFE=Z—F+=H8
contributed RMB4,800,000 into the =t+—HB mBKERF
registered capital of Zhongke Zhenhui. MEZEsaMERALE
AR ¥4,800,0007T °
*  For identification purpose only * BRI
(d) Amounts due from/(to) other related (d) FEuW/ (EMf)HE#tEEERS

parties g

Particular of amounts due from/(to) other related JEU (FEA) HMBEE R &

parties, which are included in trade and other (it AE 5 & H M E W IE

receivables or in trade and other payables are HBHREMENKE)NF
disclosed as follows: EEWELT
2021 2020
—%--% —Z-%
RMB'000 RMB'000
Relationship Mz ARETR ARETTT
Ms. Chang KEFLL  Keymanagement FEEEAE
Hui-Lan personnel 1,445 90
Mr. Liu ZIEEEE4E Close family TEEBABRA
Ting-Hsuan member of
key management
personnel (165) (264)
FEEGEEERAT —ZT=-—FFRH
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AR e B IS ok MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEEHFRS (8)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Amounts due from/(to) other related (d) B (EMf)EMEER
parties (Continued) FIE (#8)
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is FAGRREESENT:
as follows:
2021 2020
—g-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan REBLZ T 1,445 129
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan REFEE N/A N/A
i#EH i A
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and SHEAEEMR BEURAR
repayable on demand. FEEE-
(e) Amounts due to directors (e) ENEZE 2z
Particular of amounts due to directors are disclosed EEERE E’] R
as follows: ™
2021 2020
—¥-—% —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREF T
Mr. Liu Bl 1,141 1,143
Mr. Xu T 136 2,517
Mr. Sun R E 12 =
Mr. Chai ek 115 =
Dr. Xu fREL 147 =
Mr. Wang FhAE 12 -
1,563 3,660
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and CHEAEERR BEBEURAR
repayable on demand. EEEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

G e s

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEFREaAXTS (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f)

36. OPERATING LEASES

Amount due to a shareholder
Particular of amount due to a shareholder is

BN —EBRRZHRE
BN —2BRRFENFBERE

disclosed as follows: m
2021 2020
—g-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological B S E AR
Technology Company Limited B AR 11,899 12,221
As at 31 December 2021, the amount due to ﬁ(‘: E - — 4%+ -_A=+—
a shareholder classified as current liabilities BT —EZERENDEA
amounting to approximately RMB9,757,000 ﬁ@]fﬁi MRIBLHRARE

(2020: RMB10,024,000) are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand, and approximately
RMB2,142,000 (2020: RMB520,000) are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year,
while the remaining portion of RMBNil (2020:
RMB1,677,000) are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable over one year.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2021, the Group had contracted with
tenants in respect of part of its office and investment
properties for the following future minimum lease

9,757,000t (ZE=ZFF: A
R #10,024,0007T ) A& -
EBEREARTEEE AR
2,142,000t (ZE & F:
AR #520,0007T ) & 3 # -
EmBEBEEAR—FREE ME
BA>PABARBZ T (ZZE =
THE: AR¥1,677,000L) &
mIEH - ESBAR —FE.E
\ﬁo

36. EEHE

AEBEAHEA
RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H &%
ERmEBIMAERKRE Y EME

BMPATHNZARRERENKBAN

payments:
2021 2020
—®¥Z—-F —EFF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBFTR ARBFTT
Within 1 year —FR 207 212
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERAFA - 212
207 424

Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by
the Group for certain of its investment properties. Leases
are negotiated for terms of 3 years (2020: 3 years). None
of the lease includes contingent rentals.

EREEHRERADNAAEBEGE
ETHREMERKBHAS HEALE
EEARIFE(ZE_ZF
EHAOBEXAES -

F:3%F)

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXA&IE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 REEEMBHREARBEZRZE
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements T+ A=T—HREREBETZ
are as follows: BARAEDAT -
2021 2020
—g-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Capital expenditure contracted EENERERE
but not provided for: BEAFAX:
— Investments in associates — BB &N T 11,160 8,700
— Investment in a joint venture —-R—HEeELEZRE 6,500 6,500
— Constrution in progress —ERIR 768 S
18,428 15,200
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. IRIEE
As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of the RZBEZ—F+ZA=+—H 'K
Group were secured by land and buildings with an EERTEEREEBREAARE
aggregate carrying amount of RMB23,552,000 (2020: 23,552,000 (ZE_FF: AR¥
RMB20,394,000) (notes 14(d) and 28). 20,394,0007T ) 2 + b J 1 = {E K 47

(BF5E14(d) }228) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ= —

39. B AS

39. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, which are (a)
private companies or, if established/incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

RnZ—ZT = — =%
+—A=+—8 &AAaZ2H
BAr(ALARE K (HR
BEBEINK EMAAL) A

FHEEFBLARAKRNBERZ
B8 218

F R

A
\
-

LUNNE

Place and date of Authorised ordinary share Issued and fully paid-up
incorporation/ capital/ ordinary share or registered Attributable Principal activities/place of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital equity interest operation
e/ Ee iRy E?&ﬁ&ﬁﬂ“mﬁ
il PCE RABERAH #hax HERER it RE IBRH/BERY
2021 2020
“§--f “E0%E
Directly held
E#RA
Bau Shan Taiwan NTD70,452,000 NTD70,452,000 60% 60% Provision of funeral services,
29 December 1998 (2020: NTD70,452,000) (2020: NTD70,452,000) sale of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
Eil ae 70,452,008 4% 70452,00081 4% REEERSG HERERK
“AMNETZAZAE (ZEZERE:045000 (ZEZTE:70452,000 RNRRERR/ AR
#4%) Fa%)
Full Spread (China) Limited Hong Kong N/A HK§1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007 (2020: N/A) (2020: HK$1)
i (PE)BRAH B TER 18T REER/ B
ZZZrETARE (ZEZZE:1§H) (ZBZ2E:1387)
Allied Smart Development Limited Hong Kong N/A HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010 (2020: N/A) (2020: HK$1)
REERARLA % @R ,’ét REBR/ES
“E2-TEMA-A (Z2-%%:THR) (ZB-2E:187)
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and sale
9 August 2010 (2020: N/A) (2020: HK$1) of funeral services deeds/
Hong Kong
PERES (BE)ERAA ik TER 137 Mﬁ%@ﬁm&iﬁﬁ%’iﬁﬁiﬁ
“Z-Z5\ANB (ZZ-%%:FER) (ZZZ2F:E7) 20/%%
Dayrise Enterprises Limited BVI US$50,000 uss1 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 (2020: US$50,000) (2020: US$1)
AAGEERAR EE%&% 50,0005 %7 BREBR/ RBRLES
T-REAATZA (ZZZZ£:50,000 (Z2=%E1%7)
*7)
Jing Run Limited BVI U5$1,000,000 US$1,000,000 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010 (2020 US$1,000,000) (2020: US$1,000,000)
REERAT ARRZES 1,000,000£ 7 1,000,000% 7T TER/EERAES
ZE-TEZAtZH (z3-2k: 1,000,000 (ZZZF4:1,000,000
) %)
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive/Hong Kong
17 April 2012 (2020: N/A) (2020: HK$1)
K (58)5RAR £k @R 1T TER/EH
“Z-CEMAHLE (Z222%:7ER) (ZZZ2F:0E7)
BRERENRE (BR) The PRC RVB10,000,000 RVIB10,000,000 100% 100%  Research and testing development/
ARAT* 29 November 2018 (2020: RMB10, 000 000) (2020: RMB10,000,000) The PRC
Gk R 100000007 AR10,0000007C ERiEE DEVLE
Z2-\Ft-AZThE (z2-%%: \R% ZECTEARE
10,000,0007C) 10,000,0007c)
Zhongke Zhengi Biotechnology Hong Kong N/A HK$1,000,000 100% 100% ~ Sales of biotechnical machineries/
(Hong Kong) Compan Umned 9 Apm\ 2019 (2020: NiA) (2020: HKS1, 000, 000)
HEEEMHE (B8 BRAT # ol 1,000 000470 imfmtﬁéﬁ/ 3
S NEMAAR “3C%E: %ﬂﬁ/ (-2-%% 1,000,000
)
Indirectly held
RERE
Chongging Xibao*" The PRC 1S$8,000,000 US$8,000,000 100% 100% Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 (2020: US$8,000,000) (2020: US$8,000,000) investment holding/The PRC
ERGE E 8,000,000% T 8,000,000% 7 REBBRBRREER/®
“ZZLE=AtAA (ZZZ%4:8000000  (ZZ=F4:8,000000
*7) %7
Chongging Xizhou*" The PRC RMB300,000 RMB300,000 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/The PRC
25 October 2006 (2020: RMB300,000) (2020: RMB300,000)
P AR 300,0007 AR%300,0007 RURERE/ T8
Z2E5ETAZTRA (ZZ-ZF: ARE (ZB-Z5:ARK
300,0007¢) 300,0007C)
FEEGEEERAR —T=—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. IBAT (&)

220

(@) (Continued) (@ (&)
Place and date of Authorised ordinary share Issued and fully paid-up
incorporation/ capital/  ordinary share or registered Attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital equity interest Principal activities/place of operation
g/ HELiEks/ E%ME"‘M )
HEATEH RI%EREH #RhEs g% TR TEEN/BERY
2021 2020
¥ CEC0Ef
Indirectly held (Continued)
RERE (8)
Sino-Life Eternities Limited BvI US$50,000 US$10,000 18.75% 78.75%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010 (2020: US$50,000) (2020: US$10,000) ) )
REFERERAT ABRAES 50,000% 70 10,000% 7T REBR/RBELEE
“E-Z2EPATEA (ZZ2ZF%:50,000 ZBITEN 10,000
E9m) Em)
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited Hong Kong NA HK$1 18.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
- 20 April 2010 (2020; NA) (2020: HKS1) Hong Kong
PEFEARHERAT i R 1ET uihe B8
“E-ZEMA-1A (Z2-%5 TER) (Z22%&:1%71)
Jinhao Enterprises Limited BVI 15850,000 Uss1 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
o 13 September 2010 (2020: US$50,000) (2020: Uss1) N )
SRLFERAA REANEE o S000ET 157 RERR/ZERAES
“2-REAATER (Z22FF:50000 (ZF=FF1%T)
1)
Sino-Departures Limited Hong Kong NA HKS5 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 (2020: NiA) (2020: HKS5) Hong Kong
HERTEBRAA 20 ) ) TNER AT HARE/ B
“¥——%t+-A&A (ZB-2E:THR) (Z2-%4:
Bao Son Life Vietnam 55200,000 15200,000 80% 80%  Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 (2020: US$200,000) (2020: US$200,000) )
BlEH ## 200000570 20000057 RABR/ /88
Z3-Z#7AZtH (ZERF00000%7)  (ZFZFF:200000%7)
Ban Shan Consulting Limited Samoa US§50,000 US§1 60% 60% Inactive/Taiwan
14 November 2013 (2020: US$50,000) (2020: US$1)
BES 50,0005 7C NER/BE
“F-=£t-A1EA (ZFZFF:50,000
)
HLV Duc Hoa (note (b)) Vietnam VND50,000,000,000 VND39,750,000,000 - - Sale of burial plots and provision
22 June 2012 (2020 : VND50,000,000,000) (2020: VND39,750,000,000) of cemetery maintenance
senvices/Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa (it A 50,000,000, 00067 & 39,750,000,0008 8 HESNRREEREERE/
ZE-ZERAZTZR (Z3-%%: (B-2%: FES
50,000,000,0004E )
BLL Taiwan NTD15,000,000 NTD15,000,000 60% 60%  Provision of elderly care and related
12 October 2015 (2020: NTD15,000,000) (2020: NTD15,000,000) consultancy services/Taiwan
A 15,000,000 4% 15,000,005 4% REGELREEEARE/ 08
(-3-%% 15,000,000 (-2-2% 15,000,000
Has) Ha%)
Chongaing Shouen Elderly Care Services  The PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
Limited* B 27 September 2016 (2020: RMB1,000,000) (2020: RMB1,000,000) The PRC
ERRBALRRARLT g ~ ARH1,000,0007 ARH1,000,0007C HARE/ T
“2-REAAZTER (ZE-FEARE (ZE-FEARE
1,000,00070) 1,000,0007c)
Zhongke Life Holding Co., Limited Hong Kong NA HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
22y 2019 (2020: N/A) (2020: HK$1,000,00Q) Hong Kong
RHEGERERAR Bt TER 1,000,007 HEE %/é’é
“3-hFLA-128 (ZR=%F:TER) (=222%:1,000000
B7)
Zhongke Xunda™ The PRC RMB40,000,000 RMB1,812,890 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
17 September 2019 (ZOZO RMB40,000,000) (2020: RvB1,812,890) The PRC
PR 40,000,000 ARB 812,897 HARE/E
“3-WENATER “E-TE\RK (-2 TE AR
40,000,0007C) 1812,89070)
Zhongke Zhenhui** The PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 51% 99% B\omedi(a\ technology research/
19 May 2020 ~(2020: NA) (2020: NiA) The PR
hRER )\Rﬁ% 0,000,000 ) AR¥10,000,0007 ihgﬁ%ﬂ W%/ %8
ZECEERATAA (Z22%%:18R) (Z22%%:76R)
EXFRRERRAMAA The PRC RMB70,000,000 RMBNI 51.1429% - Not yet commenced business/
20 December 2021 ~ (2020:N/A) (2020: N/A) The PRC
2 ARHET00000007 _AREER HARR/HE
ZE-£+ZAZ1A (Z22%F:1ER) (Z2=%5:1ER)
@ Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise established in the i slca D VA OB N
PRC S
4 Wholly-domestic-owned enterprise established in T R B A A S B A B 1 EE
the PRC
¢ For identification purpose only EXEE ]
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

/T\

G e s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

39.

The Group does not hold any ownership interests
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based on
the terms of the contract under which HLV Duc
Hoa was established and controlled by the Group,
the Group receives substantially all of the variable
returns related to the involvement in HLV Duc
Hoa's operations and net assets and has the
ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most
significantly affect those returns.

The following tables list out the information of
the Group’s subsidiaries which has material non-
controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised

MEASE (&)

(b) AEEINHEFEEHEHL Duc
HoaZ fE{a P fE#E 25 - SR T
el WINE-NET D VA 2l
HLV Duc HoaZ 72 & R Z &5k -
AEBKRALTEZBERZR
BAHLV Duc Hoa%# z Al & [
REFEE UWRBRENEE
HZEOHRBERATE ZHLY
Duc Hoa 7 o

(0 TREIIAKEESHBAR (H
BERIFFEE RS ([FRERE
@m))MER - TXE2®2H

financial information presented below represents BENRERKRETEMNRA
the amounts before any inter-company elimination. M HEAT 2 &8 e
2021 2020
—F=-- —E-%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR

Bau Shan and

Bau Shan and

its subsidiary, Bao Son its subsidiary, Bao Son
BLL and Ban Life and its BLL and Ban Life and its
Shan Consulting subsidiary, Shan Consulting subsidiary,
Limited HLV Duc Hoa Limited HLV Duc Hoa
BUR 2R
HEHBAT HIBEARA
TERR ElLlESR TERR
Ban Shan  HMEBAF Ban Shan ElLEGR
Consulting HLV Duc Consulting  HMEAAF
Limited Hoa Limited HLV Duc Hoa
NC| percentage FERERBATL 40% 20% 40% 20%
Current assets RBEE 167,692 14,271 184,921 14,346
Non-current assets ERBEE 33,070 59 29,246 119
Current liabilities MENEE (212,056) (46,038) (217,579) (45,582)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (4,812) (353) (5,826) (186)
Net liabilities AETE (16,106) (32,061) (9,238) (31,303)
Carrying amount of NCI FEREZERE 6,442 6,412 3,695 6,260
Revenue Wiz 1,450 228 1,802 434
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BR) /&7 (14,711) (758) 5,184 (904)
Total comprehensive 2E(AX)/ hEps
(expense)/income (6,868) (758) 5,123 1,206
(Loss)/profit attributable to NCI -~ FEIZRRIEZ L 2
(E#8),/ &7 (5.884) (152) 2,074 (181)
Total comprehensive (expense)/  JEIZRERIEEZ
income attributable to NCI 2E (AR WagE (2,747) (152) 2,049 241
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from  E&EEHESE (RH),/
operating activities MAFRE (4,570) - 1,840 2,124
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from ~ #HAZEHRLHEAN/
investing activities (i) FE 559 (64) 3,383 (135)
Net cash outflows from BEZHRSRLFE
financing activities (1,264) - (1,300) -

TEEGEBARARN —FE-—FFRK 221
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ARe MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z =T =-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
40. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 40. g%}%"‘lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ*&%i&

41.

SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group disposed of 48% of equity interest of Zhongke
Zhenhui to Nanyue CB at nil consideration. Nanyue CB
contributed RMB4,800,000 to Zhongke Zhenhui, and the
equity interest of Zhongke Zhenhui attributable to the
Company reduced from 99% to 51% thereafter.

An amount of approximately RMB361,000 (being the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
liabilities of Zhongke Zhenhui) has been transferred from
non-controlling interests, and credited to “other reserve”.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDAIRY

On 2 July 2021, the Group disposed of its entire 51%
equity interest in Zhongke Kangyuan (Guangzhou)
Biotechnology Company Limited* (“Zhongke Kangyuan”)
to the non-controlling shareholder of Zhongke Kangyuan
at a consideration of approximately RMB833,000.
Zhongke Kangyuan is inactive during the year.

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities
attributable to Zhongke kangyuan on the date of disposal
were as follows:

41.

HE-_2-_—F+-_A=+—81Lt
FE AEBUSRERAERREN
ERRIREZ48% W - AR KB [
BlZE)F & AR ®4,800,0007T ' 1t
BARNBEEPREZREHII%
(& ZE51% °

—E4EHARE361,0007T (BIE
PRESZEEREEMNLD)E A
R s R B WEF A [H At R4
&l e

HE—HEHEBLE

RZEZ—F+tHAZH AR Tru?
PRIET(EMN)EMEIEEFRA
(T RLET])) By FEHE Hxﬂx%ﬁ:.,\
RARIETHZE51%EE REA
#) AN R833,0007T ° F BHEE T F
AN ZE TS VE B o

REEER FRETEEEEKE
BragEmT:

RMB’000
AREFX
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE:

Property, plant and equipment ME BE K& 36
Other receivables R el 39
Cash and bank balances He RIRITHER 1,740
Other payables H {th B4 FRIE (121)
1,694
Less: non-controlling interests R IR R E S (830)
864

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—REMBATIZEE:
Consideration received B AR (E 833
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (864)
(31)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHRSRHTE:
Cash consideration received BUIRENR(E 833
Less: cash and bank balances disposed of B HEZRE RIRTTER (1,740)
(907)

*  For identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

41. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDAIRY 41. HE—RBMHEBAT (&)
(Continued)

42.

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended
31 December 2021 did not contribute significantly to the
results and cash flows of the Group during the period
prior to the disposal.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

2009 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option
scheme (“2009 Share Option Scheme”) was approved
and adopted. The major terms of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme are summarised as follows:

(a)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group as incentive or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.

The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which the Group holds an equity interest, including
any executive directors and any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of such subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; and (ii) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the
2009 Share Option Scheme will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
offer date of the particular option, which must be
a business day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as shown in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date of that
particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the particular option.

42.

BE_Z-_—F+-_HA=+—HIF
EHE 2B A TR & HEH A
%Z%%ﬁﬁiﬁﬂi/mgiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

UREGSEROABERZ

X5

—EENFERETE
REARBDAHE-_ZTAF /A
“HHANBRREEARE CHE
ERMBRETE (T NERE
BrgstEll) — TN FBBRER
S ER GBI T :

(@) BEREFEZBENERARF
) 5 7% 55 [ 2 1F i 3R] BE 1R
BERNAER2EERIER
BEAREHASEELE
RRE) S B oK 22 8 -

(b) AERZ2EZRFEHAR
&/YEEHW%ET&$E
BRFARAESZNTARER
(MREER])NEMIEEHE

TRE BREARA  EEMH
MERRREMREERNE

ﬂ%ﬁ%%&&ﬂ#ﬂﬁ%%
(&?ﬁﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%%) ;
“ﬂ&/iﬁ&ﬁ%%“*
WEAZEAA - BE RE -4
BAREBERMN-

© —EEATHREHHATH

BENITEESTE IR T
ERE (N EBRENE

BB (LAEAREEBR)KRMD
RE RS AFRER EBRE
B 32 BT A U TR M w%%&%
TEHEBEMNZLHA A [EE
%E%Tﬂ%”%taﬁf%
EEBETRHFEH YT E RGN
HREEBEREZHBEHNE
B o

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#E T - —F+_-_A=+—
42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2009 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(d)

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme was expired during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any
participants in any twelve-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of the
grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by
the eligible participants concerned for a period
of 30 days from the date upon which it is made
provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the
adoption date of the 2009 Share Option Scheme
or the termination of the scheme. An offer shall
be deemed to have been accepted by the eligible
participant concerned in respect of all shares
which are offered to such participant when the
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer
duly signed by the eligible participant, together
with a non-refundable remittance in favour of
the Company of HK$10 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company,
within such time as may be specified in the offer.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42.

G e s

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2009 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(9)

/\\/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=ZZT=-—F+-_A=+—HILFE
DLIRESERKABERZ
5‘85 (n‘ﬁ)
ZEENFEREZ (B
they are (9 BMR-ZE—Z=FREHZBERE

For the options granted in 2010,
exercisable starting half year from the grant date.
The exercisable period should be determined by the
board of directors upon grant of the share option
but in any event should not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the circumstances by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of shares in respect of
which it is so exercised. Each such notice must be
accompanied by a non-refundable remittance for
the full amount of the subscription price for shares
in respect of which the notice is given.

The terms and conditions of the options granted
are as follows:

Number of
shares issuable
under options

mE REFREL B BERF
FRAARITE A TITEHRE
EZHEFENROBREL

T HEE®NATSEB
X E B B AT 105 -

EARAARAARBHFLER
BANBERT 2L D 1TRE
B ZBAATRARRE
BB TT 0 R 7T (2 B AR AR P O
EOEROHBE -EEHEBAL
ARMAATREESR R
FHHBAPAL ROBER
D REE(E

B BREZ R R
T

fi {1 4n

Contractual life of

granted Exercisable period options
MR 2 R
gETROBE TEH BRESHEN
Options granted in 2010:
“T-TERECBRE:
Options granted to directors:
ByE=zBIE:
-on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZ-ZF-A+—H —Z-Z5\A+-REZZ=-TF=-A+-AH 105
Options granted to employees:
BFESZBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-ZF-A+-A “E-ZEN\A+-BEZZZZF_AT-H 109
Options granted to consultants:
RYERzBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-TF-A+—H ZE2-ZE)/\A+-HEZZ-_ZE_A+-H 106

Total share options 60,000,000

BRER

The method of settlement for the options granted
is by equity. The closing price of the Company's
shares immediately before 11 February 2010, the
date on which the options were granted, was
HK$1.16.

RbhzBRENERAEREE
TR ARRBBOREE-F
—ZF_A+— A (BNERE
ERLZBH) A 2ETER
1.168 7T °

FEEGEEARAT —B--EER
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42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. LUBHEZERMKAEBEE 2

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) X5 (48)
2009 Share Option Scheme (Continued) —EENFHERETSE (E
() The particulars of outstanding options at the end () MRIMEHRzZERITEERE
of the reporting period as follows: BT
2020
—E_FHF
Number of
Weighted shares
average issuable
exercise  under options
price granted
ks Juelvd
fE A AT
nEF 5 7
T1EE B EE
Outstanding at the beginning FEARITEE HK$1.18 48,232,000
of the year 1.18% 7T
Lapsed during the year FRE KK HK$1.18 (48,232,000)
1188 T
Outstanding at the end FRERITE N/A -
of the year T iE A
Exercisable at the end FRATITE N/A =
of the year 3 A
The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire BER_ZE-—FTF_A+—H
ten years from the date of grant. All of the options RHzBRES XL B MR
were lapsed during the year ended 31 December THEEEm - MBEBRENE
2020. E_E_TF+_-_A=+—H
IEFERK-
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42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. U BHEEZERBRMKABEHZ
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2009 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(k)  Fair value of share options and assumptions

(1)

Granted to director and employees

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based
on the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model.

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

X5 (4)
—ETNFBEREN B (F

k) BEREZAR

(1)

TEETEBEARRD A

NS S EWNEEE
RTEFLER
AEBUAE L BEREND
BEzZRBzrAFEZ
EEERBEREZIAFE
FPE-ERBRE M
AFER_BEAHEE
BRAAE-BREZE
MEPRAABEAZ —
BAZH-

TR 8 50 0 T3 AR 3 S
08 (AR AR 2 104 52
R ghF 25 B ) BHE - R
157 52 RE B 5 R

DH%E i‘ﬁi%@ﬂx%)ﬂﬁ?ﬁ@
EREET -EAEHE
%J)\%(TJ%TE““ ]

EEHAFERBTELE
7(7?3;“

“E_FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. 2&@%%&%%%%2
XK

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 5 (&)
2009 Share Option Scheme (Continued) —EENFHERETSE (E
(k)  Fair value of share options and assumptions k) BEREZATEERK
(Continued) (&)
(i) Granted to consultants (i) KT B
The fair value for share options granted is FELEEREZATE
measured using the market-based approach, Tﬁﬁiﬁﬁ MSERETHE
by reference to the discounted cash flows WHEB2ERBREERE
to estimate the fair value of the professional NSRRI 2 BEE
fees that should have been paid. The value RAzAFHE-BEDLR
was developed by discounting future cash ZEBEMAMEERE 2B
flows from the services to be provided by M - B R AT R R AR ULAR
the consultants, taking into account the BeBELEANRER
uniqueness of the services provided by the %5 BR PR DA K2 E fth B R R
consultants, the historical monthly payments X BIRIRE R B R
to similar services provided by the consultants REZRB 2 RKRE
and the service period, along with other out MEFL -

of pocket expenses.

On 11 February 2010, 41,900,000 share RZT—ZTF=A + —
options under the 2009 Share Option H AXRAIERE_ZFZT
Scheme were granted by the Company to the NEBRESERAE
consultants of the Group which entitled the B~ Eaf % 141,900,000
holder thereof to subscribe for an aggregate MEBRE ZFERE
of 41,900,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 HYEFBEANTE ZZ
each in the capital of the Company with an —ZEFNAT+—HREE
exercise price of HK$1.18 per share during —E-_ZEF_-A+—H
the exercisable period from 11 August 2010 IEfTEEHR Tﬁ 71k FE
to 11 February 2020. During the year ended ER1ISETRES H
31 December 2020, all of such share options 41,900,0000% A A & i%
were lapsed. AP GREMBOIBTZ

Lo ZIRD S = F e
F_EF+-R=+—
AIEFE REzTHEK
BHUT R
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42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2021 Share Option Scheme

In view of the expiry of the 2009 Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
adopted a share option scheme at the extraordinary
general meeting on 22 April 2021 by way of an ordinary
resolution (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”). The major
terms of the 2021 Share Option Scheme are summaries
as follows:

(@) The purpose of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel,
to provide additional incentive to eligible
participants and to promote the success of the
business of the Group.

(b) The eligible participants include any director,
employee, advisor, consultant, supplier, agent,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of
the Company or any subsidiary of the Company,
who, in the absolute discretion of the board of
the directors of the Company, has contributed or
may contribute to the Group so as to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

(c)  The exercise price of a share option under the 2021
Share Option Scheme shall be determined at the
absolute discretion of the board of directors of the
Company but in any event will not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of
the particular option, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
business days immediately preceding the offer
date of that particular option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the offer date of the particular
option.

URESEROHABEREZ
X5 (&)

—E - —FERETE

ER_ZTNFEREFERER
—ZE= §¢+ ﬂ +—BI1EF
IERED VNN —E-—F1A
-—+= EZHX?%%‘JKELM%E
RERENERETS (22—
FHERETE]) T —FHERKR
EETEIN EE BRI T

(a) ZE-—FHEREFEIZEN
ARSI REBERAL
BEEBERSEERBEINER
MBS AEBER 2K -

by ALAFPNEFS2REBBIAR
FERZ2EE (BRARAR
AABERMBRR 2 EME
= REE -EBHE -FHAA HE
BORE - BEFP AEBHHSE
EEEBHIERAEEED
BRI ATREFELER - AHED
REBEB 2K -

(0 —T-_—FBEREFIAETHE
BEZITEERARAESES
BRBET HEERmOMWNITE
BERATE&ERE: (VR ERE
BRENZHRR(BAERERE
BB RBERXMER®RER
FRREBRZAWHE (i)
ERFEBRENZLN B HA
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42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. LUBHEZERMKAEBEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2021 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(d)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue,
unless the grant of options, beyond the limit of
10% but not exceeding 30% of the shares in issue,
is specifically approved by the shareholders of the
Company in an annual general meeting.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted pursuant to the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue.

An offer shall be made to a eligible participant in
writing in such form as the Company’s directors
may from time to time determine and shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant
concerned for a period of 10 days from the date
upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the adoption date of the 2021 Share
Option Scheme or the termination of the 2021
Share Option Scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by the eligible participant to
whom the offer is made when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed
by the eligible participant, together with a non-
refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant
thereof is received by the Company within such
time as may be specified in the offer (which shall
not be later than 10 days from, and inclusive of,
the date of the offer), or within such time as may
be determined by the board of directors of the
Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2021

X

5 (&)

—E--FERETE (E

(d)

BRE-ZT-_—FHEREFEI X
Eﬁﬁ@%h%%%%ﬁ%%
Fr 75 B8 AR BE P 17 1 BF 7 Bk 3%
2RO E=EE T8 iﬂa%
TRMOEHNI0%  HERT
HBE10%ETHEE30% 2 B 8%
TROBREZERE AR X
ARERERBREAFRE L&
AL AE o

BRIEARD AR E BRIE
TE2EAHE BRE=
T EBEREAENAREET
MEMERETS DXL X
BIFRONERE(REETT
EREARITERNERE) ET
EmeE & MR ETHORN
BE - TEBBEETRON
1% °

MEERSEEELN ZENE
NEEBmAFAES Hiiﬁﬁ
NEIEENRRE WEBE
mgﬁzatﬁmHZ%ﬁm
AHBEBEEERS2BERERN.
MR T —FHREFTE 2
H B ER10E F e ER I
B BREZHOBTHHEER-
MR EBLHTEEEE 2RKHE (T
BEREHBE (BEZB)RE
FF10B)A IR ARAES
CREBEGEMEMRAIAIBEET
ZERBEAN ARE B EELR
EFREN 2 AEERSEEL
NEZBECEMNEN 2 0B E
A0 [7) B UR B LA R R R A U ER
AZ DT RIERIEK.00%E T
NEAR L BREZRE A
EHZNREGSACEEBAE
S HERER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H =

B+ _A=1+—HLFE

42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. UIBHEEZERBRMKABEHZ
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

43.

2021 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(9)

An option may be exercised at any time during
the period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors of the Company to each grantee
at the time of making an offer for the grant of
an option, but in any event no later than 10 years
from the date of offer.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the circumstances by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of shares in respect of
which it is so exercised. Each such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount
of the subscription price for shares in respect of
which the notice is given.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2021 under the 2021 Share Option Scheme.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

X5 (4)
—E-—FEREN B (E

(9)

BRETNRARREZTEAER
HELBREZQERRE R
A & AR A T8 TE H) B R O BE B
TE-HE—UDBERTAIEER
BEHOHBEFT105F-

ARANBARAARAZELER
BANBERAT 2L E D 1TRE
B ZBMAERBRE
R UL AT R o 7T R AR AR P Y
EOkRkOHBE -SBRBANA
RMER ERELNEH
RS RBEROREE-

HE-FT--—#+-A=+—-8L

FE-

BERE T - —FRBARE

SRR

43. XA BRRAR

2021 2020
—F—F —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE ARETx ARETFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRMIEE 39 13,966 14,805
Intangible assets mVEE 2 2
13,968 14,807
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H b fE WL 5B 118,530 102,425
Cash and cash equivalents RehBE2FED 9,006 13,545
127,536 115,970
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables H & < 5RIR 43,496 | | 43,731
43,496 43,731
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE 84,040 72,239
NET ASSETS BEE 98,008 87,046
EQUITY s
Share capital N 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves ERe] 32(a) 28,790 17,828
TOTAL EQUITY AR 98,008 87,046
FEEGEEERAT —E-—EER
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4T A

B M 1% R Ml 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE

1B R fh 3t

44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. &
ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies,
judgement:

(i)

management has made the following

Consolidation of an entity in which
the Group does not hold any equity
interests

The Group conducts a portion of the
business through HLV Duc Hoa in Vietnam
due to regulatory restrictions on the foreign
ownership. The Group does not have any
equity interest in HLV Duc Hoa. The directors
of the Company assessed whether or not
the Group has control over HLV Duc Hoa by
assessing whether it has power over HLV Duc
Hoa, has the rights to variable returns from
its involvement with HLV Duc Hoa and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over HLV Duc Hoa. After assessment,
the directors of the Company concluded that
the Group has control over HLV Duc Hoa
as a result of the contractual arrangements
and accordingly the financial position and
the operating results of HLV Duc Hoa are
included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements throughout the years presented.
Nevertheless, the contractual arrangements
may not be as effective as direct legal
ownership in providing the Group with direct
control over HLV Duc Hoa and uncertainties
presented by the Vietnam legal system could
impede the Group's beneficiary rights of
the results, assets and liabilities of HLV Duc
Hoa. The directors of the Company, based
on the advice of its legal counsel, consider
that the contractual arrangements with
HLV Duc Hoa and their equity shareholders
are in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in Vietnam and are legally
enforceable.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R R I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #H = —

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, interest in
associates, goodwill and deposits)

The Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or CGU
and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Provision of ECLs for trade
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for the trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with credit-impaired are assessed for ECLs
individually.

= —

=

44, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. 37

—F+-A=+—RAIEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. &

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(iif) Net realisable value of inventories
and development and formation
costs of burial plots
Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated cost of completion
and estimated cost to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value based on assessment of the realisability
of the development and formation costs of
burial plots which takes into account costs
to completion based on management’s
experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. If there is an
increase in cost to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will
decrease which may result in writing down
development and formation costs of burial
plots to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value
of development and formation costs of burial
plots is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

44, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. 37

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv) Depreciation and amortisation

(v)

(vi)

The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and
amortisation charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
assets of similar nature and functions and
taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation and amortisation
expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject
to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
current tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Provision on funeral services deeds
The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin
to the estimated cost of delivering funeral
services in future, after taking into account
of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIFE
44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. &

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Provision on funeral services deeds
(Continued)

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for
each funeral service deed performed, the
current market conditions and the price of
deeds from sub-contractors. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period to estimate if the receipts
in advance for funeral service deeds can
cover the estimated future costs of delivering
funeral services and determine the need
of making a provision in the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair values of freehold land and
buildings held for own use and
investment properties

The freehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties of the Group
were revalued at each reporting date during
the year based on the appraised market
value provided by independent qualified
professional valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information
from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ T -—F+-_A=+—HIFE

44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. St 3 R &t (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) AFTTBHARZEZEEZRR

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued) (#)

(viii) Estimation of incremental borrowing viii) 1% & 12 8 (& & F X
rate (“IBR") (/_fm;-e EEFIE])
The Group cannot readily determine the REBRELESBEEH
interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, ERNEZHNE -EHit K
it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities. EEFRAEEEERNE

REHEAB - EE 15
BENEREHEERN LK
BIRIRT - NEB B ER
HERAEEEAFHEN
BEZEE WREMUE
THR K AGHEUER
ZEHETHEAMFTEE
SZME-Ht - EEE
B ERMTARER§

The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing FFEEXNIZRE B
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted EREARAZAERF
to reflect the terms and conditions of the E(flm-MEBRAAKRE

lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE T -_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

45. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS 45. R EZE=-T-—%+—-H
i A\
AND NEW STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT =t+—BHBLEFEFEEEMHE
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 5] K & W 2 85T & #h % Al
4,

31 DECEMBER 2021 ZURERE

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEBTEREFEAUTEEME

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are WARER 2T BRT B @S ER

not yet effective: R HAZET :
Effective for i EN=E =
accounting periods P& 3ok ol
beginning on or after SHBREN

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and the 1 January 2023 ERUBREEANETRARRAREE —T-=F
related Amendments Bix -A-A

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to 1 January 2022 BEAMBREERNEIN (BiIR)Elf —T==%F
the Conceptual Framework SEE -A-H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS To be determined EANBREENE10RREASIEN HER
28, Sale or Contribution of Assets F8% (BA RN REFHAGER T
between an Investor and its Associate GAREPEZEHEES EATE

or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19- 1 April 2021 EERBREENE 6% (BTX)-F —ZT--F
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 Z—ENFZFAEECOVID- 195 mA—-A
June 2021 kY

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification 1 January 2023 BROHRENER (BIR)KELEAIHE —B==%
of Liabilities as Current or Non- /?/)ﬁi HARGREFREL (= -A-A
Current and related amendments to E-ZFF) 7 LT
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 1 January 2023 ERCHENS\RREBNEREEN —FT-=F
Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of ERREESR (BN )8R ERE —R—H
Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of 1 January 2023 BRI ERFESE (BiIK)gstdits —T-=F
Accounting Estimates Vid: -A-H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax 1 January 2023 EAQERF (BN EAE-xv 5 —E-=%
related to Assets and Liabilities arising ELHEERBEWENEERE —-A—H
from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Property, 1 January 2022 ERMBREENS 6% (BIA) £ —F-C
Plant and Equipment — Proceeds BERRG-REFEANZIEAE -A-H
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous 1 January 2022 BRCIHERETR (BAIXEES —E--F
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a H—-EITAHHE —A-H
Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual 1 January 2022 BERAMBREER (BFIN) BB FHE —S-2F
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 EAI-F-|FE-F-FEHHF  —RA-H

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45.

46.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;
45.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of the Omicron variant of COVID-19
in early 2022, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented.
The Group has paid close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 outbreak and kept evaluating its impact
on the financial position, cash flows and operating results
of the Group. The outbreak is a non-adjusting event after
the reporting period. It is considered that this does not
have any material impacts on the carrying value of assets
or liabilities at 31 December 2021.

Ui

46.

& B 1% Rk M 5
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SAE
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Five Years Financial Summary
hFETFERRE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the ZAEENRBAERBUBREEZEE LE
Group for the last five financial years is set out as follows: REENREERIWOT :

Results E4

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—¥--§ _—_ZT-TF —Z-NhF —ZE-N\F —T—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETT AREBTT ARBTR

(Restated)

(2%))

Revenue Wz 72,864 68,340 66,610 62,667 60,709

Gross profit EH 37,977 29,167 32,042 27,889 30,598

Loss for the year FEEB (17,675) (1,942) (4,164) (8,523) (20,794)
Loss attributable to RAREE A

owners of the Company 1L 1 (9,872) (2,974) (3,804) (8,352) (19,334)
Basic loss per share BRELREE

(RMB cents) (ARBS) (1.33) (0.40) (0.51) (1.12) (2.60)

Assets and liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
B+=-—A=+—-8

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

“¥-—-f C—ZT-F “E-NF ZE-N\F ZE—LF

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTR

Non-current assets ERBEE 70,880 70,393 76,569 43,072 48,004

Current assets MBEE 192,974 207,221 216,588 193,481 184,327

Current liabilities nEEE 130,177 130,732 137,010 125,510 111,022

Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 28,089 35,156 38,498 8,234 9,220

Net assets BEFE 105,588 111,726 117,649 102,809 112,089
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